
 
1 
 

  
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Council to be held in the Council 
Chamber - Municipal Offices, on Monday, 27 June 2011 at 2.30 pm at which meeting 
the following business will be transacted and any other business which may be legally 
transacted at such a meeting.  

 
Councillors 

Anne Regan, Barbara Driver (Chair), Garth Barnes, Ian Bickerton, Nigel Britter, 
Chris Coleman, Tim Cooper, Bernard Fisher, Jacky Fletcher, Wendy Flynn, 
Rob Garnham, Les Godwin, Penny Hall, Colin Hay (Deputy Chair), Rowena Hay, 
Diane Hibbert, Sandra Holliday, Peter Jeffries, Steve Jordan, Robin MacDonald, 
Paul Massey, Helena McCloskey, Andrew McKinlay, Heather McLain, Paul McLain, 
John Rawson, Diggory Seacome, Duncan Smith, Malcolm Stennett, Charles Stewart, 
Klara Sudbury, Lloyd Surgenor, Pat Thornton, Jon Walklett, Andrew Wall, John Webster, 
Paul Wheeldon, Simon Wheeler, Roger Whyborn and Jo Teakle 

 
Agenda  

 
1. PRAYERS 

 
 

2. APOLOGIES 
 

 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 

4. TO APPROVE AND CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 16 MAY 2011 
 

(Pages 1 - 4) 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 

 
6. COMMUNICATIONS BY THE MAYOR 

 
 

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 

 
8. MEMBER QUESTIONS 

 
 

9. IMPERIAL GARDENS OUTLINE DESIGN AND 
CONSULTATION 
Discussion paper of the Cabinet Member Sustainability 
 

(Pages 5 - 16) 

10. FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2010/11 AND QUARTERLY 
BUDGET MONITORING TO MAY 2011 
Joint report of the Director of Resources and Cabinet 

(Pages 17 - 102) 



 
2 
 

Member Finance and Community Development 
 

11. CONSTITUTION REVIEW WORKING GROUP - UPDATE 
ON THE REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION 
Report of the Constitution working group 
 

(Pages 103 - 
106) 

12. NOTICES OF MOTION 
Motion A 
Proposed by:  Councillor Sudbury 
Seconded by: Councillor McCloskey 
This Council notes with concern the County Councils 
proposals to cut £2 million from the £5 million budget for 
subsidised bus services. Bus journeys provide a vital public 
service, helping to prevent social isolation for the elderly and 
the vulnerable; allowing people to access essential 
healthcare services, employment, and leisure and shopping 
opportunities. Encouraging people to travel by bus also helps 
reduce congestion. We therefore believe the effective use of 
public subsidy for bus services is an appropriate use of public 
money.  
  
Specifically, we are concerned that the current proposals 
could and should have been the subject of better 
consultation, with more meetings in Cheltenham giving more 
detail on the cuts proposed and changes considered.  
 
Therefore this Council; 
 

1. Whilst understanding the financial pressures facing 
local authorities, urges the county to listen to the 
residents of Cheltenham who are concerned about 
cuts to their valued bus services. 

 
2. Recognising the high turnout at a recent public 

meeting in Charlton Kings about the threat to the P & 
Q service, appeals to the County Council to extend 
the consultation period and hold more public 
information sessions in the town with a view to 
protecting those subsidised services that are most 
valuable to local people.  

 
Motion B 
Proposed by:  Councillor P McLain 
Seconded by: Councillor Godwin 
It is now two years since the Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) on Garden Land and Infill Sites was 
published and a first review of the document should be 
undertaken.   
 
Parts of the SPD are out-of-date- and as a result of changes 
introduced by Planning Policy Statement (PPS3).  There are 
also differences of opinion regarding the interpretation of 
parts of the document from all sources, which indicates that 
the time has come for the SPD to be reviewed and updated.   
 

 



 
3 
 

Therefore this Council; 
 

1. Propose that members of the original working group, 
plus replacements and additions where required, 
should be reconvened as soon as possible with the 
aim of reporting back to the Council meeting on 
October 10th 2011. 

 
Motion C 
Proposed by:  Councillor Smith 
Seconded by: Councillor Stennett 
The Cheltenham Borough Local Plan (second review) was 
adopted in July 2006 and covers the period 1991 to 2011.  
Plan policies have been saved and will form part of the Local 
Development Framework (LDF). 
 
Important changes have occurred to core policies and 
proposals as a result of central government changes 
contained in Planning Policy Statement (PPS3).  Whilst these 
changes have affected housing development policies, other 
changes have occurred, or they have become outdated.   
 
Therefore this Council; 
 

1. Propose that a third review of the Local Plan policies 
as a matter of urgency should be undertaken before 
final acceptance of the LDF.   

 
Motion D 
Proposed by:  Councillor Godwin 
Seconded by: Councillor Wall 
The present system of dealing with planning appeals appears 
to be flawed.  Whether a planning application is refused by 
the committee, or as a result of an officer’s delegated 
recommendation to refuse and the applicant goes to appeal, 
we believe a substantial statement should be made in writing 
to the Planning Inspectorate.   
 
The statement should set out all of the reasons given for the 
refusal and carried out professionally.  The present system of 
sending a copy of the case officer’s report to committee, plus 
a copy of the minutes to the Inspectorate is inadequate.   
 
Therefore this Council; 
 

1. Propose that a time-limited review of the Council’s 
approach to planning appeals, through a member 
group, or an officer report to the next Council meeting, 
should be undertaken.   

 
2. Ask that officers consider the re-employment of a 

qualified Appeals Officer.  
 
Motion E 
Proposed by:  Councillor Wheeldon 



 
4 
 

Seconded by: Councillor Bickerton 
With Cheltenham Borough Council’s electricity contract due 
to be renewed shortly and in order to reach our CO2 
reduction target of a 30% reduction by 2015, purchasing zero 
carbon electricity from a green energy provider should be 
considered.   
 
Therefore this Council; 
 

1. Recommends that purchasing zero carbon electricity 
from a green energy provider be a major 
consideration when choosing the new supplier. 

 
 

13. TO RECEIVE PETITIONS 
 

 
14. ANY OTHER ITEM THE MAYOR DETERMINES AS 

URGENT AND WHICH REQUIRES A DECISION 
 

 

 
Contact Officer:  Saira Malin, Democracy Officer, 01242 775153 

Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 Andrew North 

Chief Executive 
 



 
 
 
 

 
- 1 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 27 June 2011. 
 

Council 
 

Monday, 16th May, 2011 
5.00  - 5.10 pm 

 
Attendees 

Councillors: Anne Regan (Chair for agenda item 1-3), Barbara Driver (Chair 
for agenda item 4-11), Ian Bickerton, Nigel Britter, 
Chris Coleman, Tim Cooper, Bernard Fisher, Jacky Fletcher, 
Wendy Flynn, Rob Garnham, Penny Hall, Colin Hay (Vice Chair 
for agenda item 5-11), Rowena Hay, Peter Jeffries, 
Steve Jordan, Paul Massey, Helena McCloskey, 
Andrew McKinlay, Heather McLain, Paul McLain, John Rawson, 
Diggory Seacome, Malcolm Stennett, Charles Stewart, 
Klara Sudbury, Lloyd Surgenor, Jon Walklett, Paul Wheeldon, 
Simon Wheeler and Roger Whyborn 

Also in attendance:   Sara Freckleton (Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer) and 
Andrew North (Chief Executive) 

 
Minutes 

 
1. PRAYERS 

In the absence of her chaplain who was not able to attend this meeting, the 
Mayor, Councillor Regan, opened the meeting with a prayer.  
 

2. APOLOGIES 
Apologies were received from Councillors Godwin, Barnes, MacDonald, 
Thornton and Webster.  
 

3. ELECTION OF MAYOR 2011 - 2012 
Councillor Driver was proposed for the office of Mayor by Councillor Garnham 
and seconded by Councillor Seacome.  
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Driver be, and is hereby, elected Mayor of the 
Borough of Cheltenham and Council chairman for the ensuing year.  
 
The Chief Executive invited the Mayor to sign a Declaration of Acceptance of 
Office of Council chairman for the ensuing municipal year 2011 – 2012. 
 
Councillor Driver took the chair.  
 

4. ELECTION OF DEPUTY MAYOR 2011 - 2012 
Councillor Jordan congratulated Councillor Driver on her election as Mayor and 
proposed Councillor Colin Hay for the office of Deputy Mayor, seconded by 
Councillor Rowena Hay.  
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 1



 
 
 

 

 
- 2 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 27 June 2011. 
 

RESOLVED that Councillor Colin Hay be, and is hereby, elected Deputy 
Mayor of the Borough of Cheltenham and Council vice-chairman for the 
ensuing year.  
 
The Mayor congratulated Councillor Colin Hay on his appointment and looked 
forward to working with him over the coming year.  
 
The Chief Executive invited the Deputy Mayor to sign a Declaration of 
Acceptance of Office of Council vice-chairman for the ensuing municipal year 
2011 – 2012.   
 

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
None declared.  
 

6. TO APPROVE AND CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 
28 MARCH 2011 
The minutes of the last meeting had been circulated with the agenda. 
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 28 March 2011 be 
agreed and signed as an accurate record.  
 

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY THE MAYOR 
No communications were made by the Mayor.  
 

8. NOTICES OF MOTION 
 No motions were received.  
 
 

9. TO RECEIVE PETITIONS 
No petitions were received.  
 

10. ANY OTHER ITEM THE MAYOR DETERMINES AS URGENT AND WHICH 
REQUIRES A DECISION 
The Mayor invited the Chief Executive to announce committee changes of 
which he had been notified as the proper officer.  
 
The Chief Executive advised members that he had been notified by the Leader 
of the Conservative Group, Councillor Duncan Smith that; 
 
- Councillor Regan would replace Councillor Driver on Social and 
 Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
- Councillor H McLain would replace Councillor MacDonald on Licensing 
 Committee 
 
This was noted by members.  
 

11. CLOSE 
The Mayor reminded everyone that the Inauguration ceremony would take 
place at 6.30pm in the Town Hall.  All members should wear their robes, which 

Page 2



 
 
 

 

 
- 3 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 27 June 2011. 
 

should be collected from the Cambray Room before making their way to the 
Town Hall by 6.10pm.  
 
In the meantime, cakes and tea were available in the committee lobby.  
 
 
 
 
 

Barbara Driver 
Chairman 

 

Page 3



Page 4
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
 Page 1  
  
 

Information/Discussion Paper 
Cheltenham Borough Council 

Council – 27 June 2011 
Imperial Gardens Outline Design and Consultation 

This note contains information to keep Members informed of progress on the garden 
redesign and consultation process and the Cheltenham Festival proposals for Imperial 
and Montpellier Gardens. 

1. Background 
1.1 On the 15th March 2011, the Council’s Cabinet resolved that an outline design be 

drawn up for Imperial Gardens to accommodate the increase in size and popularity of 
the Cheltenham Festivals. The marquee footprint (excluding gazebos and covered 
walkways) is to be kept to a maximum area of 2750m2 (currently approx.1950m2). 
Furthermore, both Imperial and Montpellier Gardens will not be subject to more than 
75 days each of special event usage, including setting up and taking down (currently 
107 days in Imperial Gardens). 

1.2 Previously, Imperial Gardens has been the main public park used by the Cheltenham 
Festivals. Starting from 2012, it is proposed that the Jazz Festival will take place in 
Montpellier Gardens in May and the Science Festival in Imperial Gardens in June. 
Starting in October year, the Literature Festival will take place in both Gardens.  

1.3 The Council’s Cabinet has allocated £140,000 to undertake landscape improvements 
to Imperial Gardens and to upgrade it’s infrastructure in order to accommodate the 
increased marquee footprint. This sum also includes modifications to the electricity, 
water and sewer supplies which will be needed in Montpellier Gardens in order to 
accommodate this, and existing special event usage 

2. Imperial Gardens Design and Consultation 
 

2.1 Taking on boards the comments of stakeholders and the needs of the Cheltenham 
Festivals the outline design is focused on the following outcomes: 
• Retaining colourful floral bedding. 
• Improving Skillicorne Gardens 
• Improving the garden bar area. 
• Accommodating sustainable forms of planting. 
• New water, electricity, and drainage supplies to Montpellier Gardens 
• Access improvement to Imperial Gardens 

2.2 Proposals for the redesign were put out for consultation on week commencing 16th 
May 2011 and extensively publicised through the local newspaper and radio. It  will 
remain open until the 23rd June 2011. Venues for the display have included the 

Agenda Item 9
Page 5



 

   
 Page 2  
  
 

Regent Arcade, Beechwood Arcade, libraries, neighbourhood resource centres, the 
Imperial Gardens Garden Bar, and Municipal Offices. Separate meetings have taken 
place with the Cheltenham Civic Society, Cheltenham in Bloom, the Friends of 
Imperial Square and Gardens and the Friends of Montpellier Bandstand and 
Gardens. 

2.3 At the time of writing this report 176 comments cards have been received the results 
of which are summarised in Appendix 1, and general comments listed in Appendix 2. 
Collective responses from The Cheltenham in Bloom Committee are contained in 
Appendix 3. Members will be updated on any further responses received. 

2.4 In summary, the feedback received to date indicates strong support for the scheme, 
but with some reservations about the positioning of marquees over flower beds for 
the duration of the festivals. This may reflect concerns that the subsequent re-
instatement will not be adequate or effective enough. There are also concerns about 
achieving and delivering the scheme within a reasonable timeframe and with the 
funds available. Further comments raise concerns about providing adequate 
resources with which to maintain the gardens upon completion of any improvement 
works. 

3. Montpellier Gardens 
3.1 Discussions on the proposed use of Montpellier Gardens for the Jazz and Literature 

Festival are ongoing, but a maximum area of approximately 4700m2 is currently 
being considered for all structures except temporary gazebos. 

 
4. Next Steps 
4.1 The designs, together with feedback from the consultation, and Council Debate will 
 be reported back to Cabinet for a decision at the end of July. If approved by 
 Cabinet, phase 1 of the works will be worked up in more detail and more accurate 
 costings obtained. Planning and listed building consent will be applied for where 
 required with a view to works being undertaken during this coming Autumn and 
 Winter. 

Report author Contact officer: 
Adam Reynolds – Green Space Development Manager 
adam.reynolds@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 774669 

Appendices Appendix 1 – Summary of comment card returns 
Appendix 2 – General Comments 
Appendix 3 – Written response from Cheltenham in Bloom 

Background information Cabinet Report and Minutes, 15th March 2011 – Imperial and 
Montpellier Gardens Strategy 

 

Page 6



Appendix 1 

 
 

IMPERIAL GARDENS DESIGN  
 

COMMENT CARD SUMMARY 
 

PLEASE LET US KNOW IF YOU SUPPORT THE MAIN DESIGN ELEMENTS 
OUTLINED IN THE ATTACHED DISPLAY.  
 

Total number of ticks received from respondents on each design 
element. Some boxes were left empty by respondents. 

 

Phase 1 Like Don’t like 
   

The enhancement of all existing shrub borders with additional 
perennials, shrubs and roses. 

144 25 

   
The new design of the floral bedding areas to accommodate 
temporary festival marquees (re-instating grass and flower 
beds after both festivals). 

 
130 

 
41 

   
Planting of new trees. 139 44 

   
Creation of attractive paved seating area to front of garden 
bar. 

139 30 

   
Refurbishment of Skillicorne Garden. 140 28 

   
Future Phases   

   
Refurbishment of existing raised garden bar steps, paving and 
planters. 

137 29 

   
Extension of decorative buff coloured bonded gravel surfacing 
to the remaining macadam paths. 

136 33 

   
Reintroduction of the heritage railings (not gates) around the 
perimeter of the gardens.  

123 45 

   
Widening and strengthening of Eastern entrance and grass 
reinforcement to improve vehicle access and reduce setting up 
and taking down time. 

 
133 

 
36 

 

Page 7



Page 8
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 
General Comments from Respondents to Imperial Gardens Redesign 

Consultation 
 
 
• As a compromise these plans could be a lot worse but damage caused by people and 
tents will not be avoidable Cheltenham is losing a valuable tourist attraction and place 
of peace and comfort for its own residents. It would have been better as it used to be. 

 
• Trees - variety to include oak English 
 
• Great - fruit trees could be planted to be sold or given to people 

 
• What about an art festival 

 
• It would be super to be able to afford all the overleaf suggestions but cost is surely 
the deciding factor 

 
• Railings - desirable but very expensive would need some form of sponsorship or 
grant  - widening entrance - Remember Planning Permission  

 
• I think the redesigning of the gardens to accommodate marquees is a complete waste 
of our money. The gardens which should be at their best May & June will be a sea of 
tents. Why cannot the festivals be at the Race Course? They have the room and 
parking space etc. and it is near enough to town for the general public to travel too. 
What is ornamental turf? Artificial. The grass seed won't regenerate for ages and the 
whole gardens will look a mess for most of the summer. Any money should be spent 
on having the present flower beds looking lovely for all of the summer. I would be 
interested in Bob Shackell's view. 

 
• I reluctantly support the compromise that seems to have been achieved by these 
plans to support the festival to grow and to keep the Gardens for the public to enjoy. 
My main concern is when the marquees come down I hope that there will be no 
damage to the new corner half moon floral beds, the marquees look pretty close to 
these flowers. There must be a guarantee that reinstatement of any damage to plants 
and grass is adhered to with immediate effect, otherwise it will look an utter mess for 
us rate payers of the town and visitors! 

 
• Seems a good compromise 

 
• Railings - removable sections for events 

 
• Railings - Definitely agree long overdue! 

 
• I understand their influence on tourism in Cheltenham. Railings will be in keeping with 
Montpellier Gardens (a welcomed long awaited return Thank You. The attraction to 
the Festivals is continuously increasing any improvements horticultural will take a 
year or two to bed in but the hard continuous work do the landscape Services is 
outstanding. I expect an increase in sales at the Gardens Bar with these 
improvements with increased interest. Good luck for the future. 

 
• Planting - really good  - Refurbishment - yes underused - railings - not sure 

 
• This plan if implemented will really enhance the gardens and improve the whole area 
in the vicinity I hope it will go ahead. 

 
• Please bring resurfacing forward of paths as they are disgrace at the moment and a 
hazard 

 
• The new beds for annuals are too narrow to give an attractive display. 
 

Page 9



Appendix 2 
• Not sure about the new design of floral bedding area. It will always be in a state of 
repair after the last festival/event. Also I am sure when people queue for the 
marquees some of the beds will be trampled and used as dustbins. Can't more use 
be made of Montpellier and leave this area alone. The bedding areas in Imperial 
Gardens are famous and do attract visitors to Cheltenham. 

 
• Would like widening of eastern entrance included in phase 1 also inc. minor 
earthwork. 

 
• The beds could be replaceable beds bought in on low loaders and craned into place. 
This would also allow the plants to be planted at the nursery bed bought in flower 
perfect.  

 
• Do not like suggested replacement building for Sillicorne Gardens 

 
• Please be aware of the need for disabled access around the gardens 

 
• Disabled access from west side parking areas replacing steps 
 
• Toilets need to improve lots! 

 
• As long as the beds are re-instated. Trees - will they be nature trees or saplings, how 
quick will they grow? 

 
• Please replant missing trees on the Broad walk 

 
• Bully advertisers to put flowers on the roundabouts 

 
• Open up skillicorne gardens 

 
• As long as the trees are not to big 

 
• More water features 
• Replacing railings would be great 

 
• Marquees raised floor to help grass re growth. Railings great idea. More shrubs not 
flowers beds that cost time & money to upkeep, giving colour & evergreens all year. 
Teenager proof shrubs. 

 
• Trees - selection of type vital (life of tree size) consider planting style appropriate to 
period could be useful (18th/) Vermicular access @ East entrance 

 
• At this point in time - money should be used for street cleaning in autumn (of leaves) 
pavements made safe. 

 
• Perhaps thought can be given to "Astro Turf" instead of reseeding 
 
• What about an Art festival 

 
• A great improvement on the current system of bald patches after festival events. Also 
Garden Bar could be re developed as a more family friendly outlet. 

 
• Clarence Sq & Wellington Sq require up grading 

 
• Personally I do not think that Roses are at all suitable for these gardens unless the 
Rose Rugova is used as a hedging plant. Perennials & shrubs will need to be 
carefully chosen. There are gaps on the Southern bank due to vandalism. If 
replanting and new planting is going to be made then the absence of MAINTENANCE 
will need to be rectified. There is absolutely NO POINT in replanting if the plants are 
then ignored as those that have been ignored - e.g. the plants paid for by the 
Horticultural Society on the Southern bank. 2. Trees should, in my opinion, not have a 
heavy canopy, or should be fastigiated, in form. 

Page 10



Appendix 2 
 
• I strongly disagree with the temporary marquees being erected over the flower beds. I 
can not see how this would work with the number of festivals being held and would 
mean that for a large percentage of time this area would look neglected and drab. 

 
• Re public bar am concerned that vandalism will occur constantly from drunken youths 
as one used to happen with a bar (tented) facing the prom. 

 
• I would like to see more flowerbeds on the grassed areas in the south east corner 
and on the eastern side. If the flowerbeds can be built over for the festivals, this 
should be feasible and would improve the overall colour content as well as being 
spread over all the gardens in a uniformed way.  

 
• I think trees are a big mistake in Imperial Gardens. All is well while they are small but 
when they grow they create shade & people like to take the sun in the gardens. They 
also need maintenance & create work if they shed their leaves. I prefer NO TREES, 
in addition to what is there currently. 3. I hope that the most important factor will be 
that of COLOUR I hope that the tradition of formal flower beds will continue. I do not 
want any extra shrubs roses etc. i.e. perennials in the flower bed areas. 4. I am 
delighted that there will be two new benches facing south. 5. Congratulations and 
thanks on trying to find a solution for all. 

 
• We fully support the move of the Jazz Festival elsewhere, as this will take pressure 
off the flower beds and lawns. This will allow recovery between other festivals 
especially in the spring.  

 
• Please could the plan include additional flowerbeds (covered over if necessary during 
festivals) on the south east side of the gardens? This would add considerably to the 
floral colour in the gardens and restore them to their appearance of a few years ago.  

 
• We welcome the restoration and access to Skillicorne Gardens as part of the bar 
facility, but this should be closed to drinkers after 8.00 pm.  

 
• The extension of decorative buff coloured bonded gravel paths should be part of 
Phase 1 some of the existing paths are a mess & restored with the wrong materials 
(colours etc.)  

 
• The real key to the success of these proposals, is the punctual erection & take down 
of marquees & prompt restoration of flower beds & lawns to a high standard, after 
events  

 
• The existing shrubs border above dry stone wall is too narrow and too dry.  
 
• Grass will regroup for the 1st year or two but then the ground will become compacted 
& hard, sometimes boggy!  

 
• Planting new trees should be very small or will change this from a square into 
woodland. We should be able to see across the square from the side roads - change 
ambience & historical appearance. Gravel agree if existing paths. Skillicorne Gardens 
- good to use this charming little area & to be lock it at night. Festival Tents - Should 
be at east end of square (gardens) nearest to Town Hall. Plus little ones for 
advertising on the wide pavement area below the trees at the side of the Promenade. 
Tented village appearance at EAST PART could have one hard standing, less grass, 
maybe no flowerbeds here. Grass at NW corner - should be re-instated after soil 
drainage work/sand underneath or whatever. Plus some flower beds? To enhance 
appearance of bar area behind & make it look a lovely place to sit. Fountain area 
would look much nicer with this surrounding.  

 
• Would like to see an assessment of wildlife around whole area. To find out how to 
improve habitat and what the impact of maguees has on wild life. Good to know 
marquees will not be on gardens for so long each year. 

 

Page 11



Appendix 2 
• Agree to all only if maintain regularly 
 
• Agree with new trees but dependent type of trees 

 
• I think the introduction of more permanent bedding would enhance the gardens. 
Personally I am not great fan of bedding plants 

 
• Better signage for the toilets 

 
• NB 3rd Para introduction does not make it plain that the £140K is to spend on all the 
work to Imperial and Montpellier Gardens. 

 
• We have no money for this! Spend my money on Libraries not plants 

 
• This is a complete waste of money at a time when budget cuts are being made at the 
expense of current staff. Far too much money has already been wasted on restoring 
the gates at Pittville as well. 

 
• No money 

 
• Where will money come from? 

 
• Don't agree with spending money when we're supposed to be cutting back! If there's 
"spare" money what about helping communities take over the libraries (i.e. Hesters 
Way) as for the marquee things people should fund their own marquees and also 
they should have to pay for any re-instatement of grass etc. 

 
• As the gardens are an integral part of Cheltenham attraction, I see no reason to erect 
temporary buildings to the detriment of said gardens. 

 
• Railings - Not sure 

 
• Why when you are so short of Money! Sheer Madness 
 
• No more expenditure  
 

 
• The Festivals should not take over the Gardens; leave the floral beds as they are. 
Injecting money into these gardens is needed, and agree with your outline plans for 
improvement. 

 
• Why do you allow cars on grassed areas within the gardens when festival is on? 
Security cars/sponsor cars seem to be on grass areas which surely cannot be right, 
this was viewed on Monday 6th June, more damage to grass area could appear, 
adding even more problems other than marquees make! 

 
• It all sounds ‘too good to be true’ can it all be achieved with the money that has been 
set aside for this? What happens if you run out of funds? Continuing maintenance is 
almost more important than the original work and to this end, it is vital that more 
permanent and experienced gardeners are employed by CBC. This is a huge job, but 
the rest of this Cheltenham’s open spaces must not suffer whilst this is being 
developed. I t will be a shame if smaller events are ‘bullied out’ because C.F. have 
taken up the permitted 75 days themselves. It will be a credit to all if it is successful. 

 
• These designs appear to be a compromise which will allow the festivals to expand 
and thrive. It is good that Cheltenham Borough Council supports the Festivals and 
wishes their business to grow. It is great pity that this may be to the detriment of 
these well known and well used public gardens. I have grave reservations that the 
ground/grassed areas which will be covered up for temporary marquees will not be 
reinstated in time for the general public to admire as we have all been accustomed to 
in the past after the festivals have moved off. If the grass has huge yellow and brown 
patches all over the place along with any damage to floral beds and indeed floral 

Page 12



Appendix 2 
beds that have to be planted up, what will this look like for our visitors to the town and 
park users? I fear that Cheltenham Town will not be in a good position to showcase 
this area in any future ‘Bloom Campaign’ as one of our ‘jewel’s in the Crown’ in the 
months of June and July, I appreciate that 2012 will be a challenging time for 
gardeners to reinstate areas where marquees have been placed, I hope that I will be 
able to retract my concerns. When all the bedding plants, shrubs and trees has been 
planted, can CBC guarantee that you will have sufficient workforce to maintain 
Imperial Gardens to the standard that we have all come to expect and enjoy, please 
do not let the standard of our parks and gardens decline through lack of reinstating 
staff that have retired or left for other reasons, we need to employ experienced 
gardeners to maintain the towns floral image for the residents and visitors alike. With 
all the utilities that appear to be needed in Montpellier Gardens to accommodate the 
festivals in the future, this surely will make a large hole in the budget allocated for 
both these gardens makeover, what happens if you run out of funds before you get to 
complete the much needed cosmetics within Imperial gardens?  
YOU HAVE DISPLAYED AND SOLD THESE DESIGNS ON VIEW TO THE 
GENERSL PUBLIC, THEY THINK THAT THIS IS WHAT WILL BE ACHIEVABLE 
WITH THE PRICE TAG THAT HASD BEEN SET IN THIS YEARS BEDGET, WAS IT 
EXPLAINED TO THE PUBLIC WHAT MAY HAPPEN IF AN OVERSPEND HAPPENS 
BEFORE ALL PHASES OF THE PLANS ARE COMPELTED? WOULD IMPERIAL 
GARDENS HAVE TO PUT UP WITH THE DIABOLICIAL PATCHING OF TRAMAC 
IN THE PATHWAYS, SIMILAR AS TO THE WORK UNDETAKEN THIS YEAR? 
Directors and Cabinet please note you should allow emergency work in the footpaths 
to be made to a decent standard, you efforts this year were a disgrace, no officers at 
fault here, only the accountable folk who hold the purse strings. Do you have a written 
guarantee from The Festivals that any damage to grounds, hard surface and grassed 
areas will be fully covered by them? Why not take a ‘Bond@ similar as you have 
done so in the past from Danter’s Fun Fare etc for any damage that the Festivals may 
incur upfront, this rule should apply to all large event users. Enough said.  

 

Page 13



Page 14
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 

Comments of the Cheltenham in Bloom Committee 

 
Cheltenham in Bloom committee would like the following comments to be 
noted by whom it may concern with regard to Imperial Gardens Design 
recently displayed for consultation. 
We support the compromise although several members do have reservations 
To ensure that The Festival Board/Management adheres to the number of days 
it has allocated to it for the use of the Gardens, Montpellier and Imperial and 
do not overrun at the expense of other events, which may exclude them or 
offer less days. 
There should be a guarantee in place from The Festivals that reinstatement is 
in good time for further use of the Gardens, perhaps using an independent 
body or organisation to judge the before and after conditions of the gardens 
other than officers from the council. 
That the promised improvements and redesign of Imperial Gardens are fully 
funded for all phases of this scheme, otherwise it may never be achieved! 
What happens if there is an overspend on the first phase of the project, will 
there be a guarantee that money will be ring fenced/found to complete 
designs that have been displayed to public if approved? 
If all the main design elements outlined in the display are accepted and 
achieved, will there be ongoing resources for the maintenance of these 
gardens.  If these plans come to fruition they would need regular maintenance 
to be an acceptable standard for all to view.   
 

Page 15



Page 16
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 1 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 21 June 2011 
Council – 27 June 2011 

Financial outturn 2010/11 and budget monitoring to May 2011 
Accountable member Councillor John Webster, Cabinet Member for Finance and Community 

Development 
Accountable officer Mark Sheldon, Director Resources 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

All 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary In accordance with the financial rule 21.2, the council must receive a report 

on the council’s financial performance for the previous year which sets out 
the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) revenue and 
capital outturn position for 2010/11. The information contained within this 
report has been used to prepare the council’s Statement of Accounts for 
2010/11. 
The council’s Treasury Management Policy requires the council’s Section 
151 Officer to report to members annually, by the 30th September, on the 
treasury management activities of the council and prudential indicators for 
the previous financial year. This report also seeks to meet this requirement. 

Recommendations We therefore recommend that Cabinet approve the following 
recommendations to Council: 

1. Receive the financial outturn performance position for the 
General Fund, summarised at Appendix 2, and note that 
services have been delivered within the revised budget for 
2010/11 resulting in a budget underspend of £174,086 which has 
been transferred to General Balances pending decisions over 
its use in 2011/12.   

2. Recommend the following use of the underspend: 
• £48,000 to fund carry forward requests requiring Member 

approval at Appendix 7 which includes £15,000 to fund 
the arrangements for keeping the Bath Road toilets open 
(see paragraph 3.4) 

• note the Cabinet’s approval, under financial rules 4G, 
part 8.11, to use the net underspend on new green waste 
schemes to fund the full rollout of plastic bottles 
collection across the borough in 2011/12 (estimated cost 
£17,000) (see paragraph 3.5) 

• £124,300 to fund the one off costs of the establishment 
of a waste company with another partner as set out in 

Agenda Item 10
Page 17



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 2 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

the exempt report to Cabinet on 21st June 2011. 
• transfer the balance of £1,786 to General Balances 

3. Note the treasury management outturn at Appendix 9. 
4. Approve the allocation of the LAA performance award grant as 

set out in section 5. 
5. Approve the allocation of the New Homes Bonus as set out in 

section 6 including the use of £30,000 from the civic pride 
reserve. 

6. The transfer of £50k from the benefits equalisation reserve to 
the benefits bad debt provision as per paragraph 7.3. 

7. Note the capital programme outturn position as detailed in 
Appendix 11 and approve the carry forward of unspent budgets 
into 2011/12 (section 8). 

8. Note the position in respect of section 106 agreements and 
partnership funding agreements at Appendix 12 (section 10). 

9. Note the outturn position in respect of collection rates for 
council tax and non domestic rates for 2010/11 in Appendix 13 
(section 11). 

10. Note the outturn position in respect of collection rates for 
sundry debts for 2010/11 in Appendix 14 (section 12). 

11. Receive the financial outturn performance position for the 
Housing Revenue Account for 2010/11 in Appendices 15 to 17 
(section 13). 

12. Note the outturn prudential indicators Appendix 18 and 
recommend that Council approve the revised prudential 
indicators for 2010/11, marked with an asterisk (section 14). 

13. Note the budget monitoring position to the end of May 2011 
(section 15). 

14. Approve the advance of property grant to support the 
refurbishment of the Everyman theatre roof and the funding 
schedule for the next 6 years as at section 9 and Appendix 19. 

15. Approve the one-off contribution of £170k from the Property 
Repairs & Renewals reserve to the programme maintenance 
budget to fund maintenance works at the Art Gallery & Museum 
in 2011/12 (section 15). 

16. Approve the one-off contribution of £30k from the Property 
Repairs & Renewals reserve to the programme maintenance 
budget to fund toilet refurbishment works at the Town Hall in 
2011/12 (section 15). 

 

Page 18



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 3 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

Financial implications  As detailed throughout this report. 
Contact officer: Paul Jones,  paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk,     
01242 775154 

Legal implications None directly arising from this report. 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis,   Peter.Lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk,     
01684 272695 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None directly arising from this report.    
Contact officer:   Julie McCarthy ,   
 julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264355 

Key risks As outlined in Appendix 1. 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Key elements of the budget are aimed at delivering the corporate 
objectives within the Corporate Business Plan. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None. 

 
1. Background 
1.1 This report draws together the financial outturn position for 2010/11 for the General Fund and 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) revenue and capital budgets, details reserve movements, 
summarises requests for carry forward of budgets approved by the Section 151 Officer under 
delegated powers and those requiring member approval and makes recommendations in respect 
of the use of the underspend.  

1.2 In accordance with financial rule 21.2, the council must receive a report on the council’s financial 
performance for the previous year. 

1.3 A summary of the actual General Fund outturn position by service, including the business change 
and planned maintenance programmes, is contained in Appendix 2.  

1.4 A summary of the outturn position by cost centre within each service is contained in Appendix 3. 
Information is presented both in the format normally used in cabinet and council papers and also 
in Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) format used in the preparation of the final 
accounts which requires under / overspends on support services cost centres to be charged to 
end user cost centres. 

1.5 Details of the transactions in respect of capital charges are contained in Appendix 4. 
2. General Fund Revenue Outturn 2010/11 
2.1 The budget monitoring report to the end of August 2010 projected an overspend for the year of 

£801,700. As a direct result of that projection, the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and cabinet 
instigated an immediate recruitment freeze and a rigorous approach has now been adopted for 
future approval for any recruitment requests. In addition, officers were instructed to reduce spend 
on supplies and services to essentials for the remainder of the financial year. 

Page 19



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 4 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

2.2 These measures enabled the council to address the potential in year budget deficit and deliver a 
revised balanced budget which did not require a contribution from general balances.  

2.3 At a meeting of cabinet on 19th April 2011, members noted the provisional revenue outturn 
position for 2010/11 which highlighted a number of areas of potential budget savings. Projections 
at the time suggested that, after allowing for expected carry forwards, services were likely to be 
delivered within budget, resulting in a potential net budget saving of £74,300 against the revised 
budget for 2010/11. 

2.4 It is pleasing to report that despite an exceptionally difficult and turbulent financial year in which 
income levels for council services and investments have plummeted, the council has delivered 
services within the resources available resulting in a budget saving of £174,086. 

2.5 The council is proposing to set up a joint waste company with another partner which is anticipated 
to deliver significant savings but will require ‘one off funding’ of £124,300, as outlined in the 
separate exempt report to Cabinet on 21st June 2011. The cabinet are recommending that part of 
the under spend be used to fund these one off set up costs. 

2.6 A full explanation of all variances that exceed £10,000 is contained within Appendix 6. 

3. Budget carry forward requests 
3.1 At the year end, a number of budget holders requested ‘carry forward’ of unspent budgets. 

Requests fall into two categories and have been dealt with as follows: 
3.2 Some requests are in respect of goods and services ordered but not received by 31st March 2011 

or relate to items of expenditure not yet incurred but still planned to be spent in line with the 
original intention of the budget resulting mainly from slippage in work programmes. In line with 
previous practice, these have been reviewed by the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and approved 
by the Section 151 Officer, under delegated powers (financial rule 8.10). A list of the approved 
carry forward of budgets, for which expenditure is in line with the original approved purpose, 
totalling £303,200 is contained in Appendix 7. In accordance with the Service Reporting Code of 
Practice (SeRCOP), a transfer was made to a ‘carry forward’ reserve in 2010/11 (Appendix 8) and 
transfers will be made from the ‘carry forward’ reserve in 2011/12 to the appropriate cost centres 
in order that members and officers have a clear indication of the total budget, including carry 
forwards, available for 2011/12.  

3.3 Some requests have been made to carry forward an underspend to be used in a different way to 
that for which the budget was originally intended. Since this falls outside the budget set by council 
in February 2010, their alternative use requires council approval. In line with a previous decision, 
these are subject to member approval. The list contained in Appendix 7, totalling £48,000, has 
been reviewed and supported by the Senior Leadership Team and now requires council approval. 

3.4 The public conveniences budget for 2011/12, approved in February 2011, includes a saving from 
the closure of some public toilets, which included the Bath Road facilities. It is the cabinet’s 
intention to use some of the reported underspends to fund the cost of keeping the toilets open 
with the support of the Bath Road traders plus the associated property costs (including NNDR) 
which amounts to £15,000 in 2010/11. A permanent solution to funding these will be addressed in 
agreeing the budget for 2012/13. 

3.5 The medium term financial strategy provides for the roll-out of plastic bottle collection across the 
borough during 2011/12 and 2012/13. The cabinet has approved, (under Financial Rules 4G, part 
8.11)  that £17,000 from the underspend in the new green waste scheme be used to enable this 
programme to be brought forward, with the roll-out of the full scheme in 2011/12. 

4. Treasury Management 

Page 20



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 5 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

4.1 Treasury Management in Local Government is governed by the CIPFA Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management in the Public Services and this council has adopted the code and complies 
with its requirements, one of which is the receipt by cabinet and council of an Annual Review 
Report after the financial year end. 

4.2 A summary of the financial implications of the transactions in respect of interest and investment 
income are contained in Appendix 5. 

4.3 The detailed treasury report, including the current assessment of the implications of the councils 
exposure to Icelandic banks, as approved by the Treasury Management Panel at its meeting on 
6th June 2011, is attached at Appendix 9.  The key points are highlighted below: 

4.4 Icelandic Banks  
The Council has outstanding loans with the Icelandic owned banks Glitnir, Landsbanki and 
Kaupthing, Singer & Freidlander (KSF). The situation as at February 2011 was reported in the 
previous budget monitoring report. 

4.5 The situation with regards to money outstanding with both Glitnir and Landsbanki has progressed 
further. A decision was made by the Icelandic District Court (the ‘Court) on 1st April 2011 that 
Local Authority wholesale depositors in these banks are to be considered preferential creditors. 

4.6 This Judgement means that UK Local Authorities’ wholesale deposit claims have been 
recognised as deposits with priority status over other creditors’ claims and will be at the front of 
the queue when payments are made.  However, the decision is subject to appeal to the Icelandic 
Supreme Court, with a final decision expected in the Autumn of 2011. 

4.7 In its 2008/09 and 2009/10 accounts the Council wrote down the value of (‘impaired’) its 
investments with Glitnir Bank hf to reflect the likely amounts to be recovered.  Based on the best 
information available at the time and in line with the winding up board’s view, it was assumed that 
local authority deposits with Glitnir did not have preferential creditor status under Icelandic law.  
This indicated a recovery rate of 29% with repayments extending to 2015, resulting in an 
impairment charge to the Income & Expenditure account of £2.6 million.   

4.8 The impairment did not, however, have an impact on the general fund due to the council obtaining 
a capitalisation direction of £4.430 million for the year, allowing it to treat the losses on the 
Icelandic banks as capital expenditure, in effect borrowing the money to spread the cost over 20 
years.   

4.9 The decision by the Court means that the council is required to reassess the recoverable amount 
and impairment charged to the Income & Expenditure account for the Glitnir deposit. A revised 
recovery rate of 100%, with repayment possible by the end of 2011, now results in an impairment 
credit to the Income & Expenditure account of £2.4 million in 2010/11.  

4.10 The court decision does not affect the impairment charge made for the Landsbanki deposits, as 
the authority had in this case already assumed preferential status would be achieved, in line with 
the view taken by that bank’s winding up board.   

4.11 In the November budget monitoring report it was reported that the likely amount to be recovered 
at that time for the KSF loans was 79p in the £ (up from 71p assumed for the 2009/10 accounts).  
This was likely to result in an impairment credit to the Income & Expenditure account of £230,000.   

4.12 The latest information indicates that the authority is now likely to receive 82p in the £ for the KSF 
deposits.  This increases the impairment credit made in the 2010/11 accounts by £96,000 to 
£326,000, resulting in an overall impairment credit (including that for Glitnir) to the Income & 
Expenditure account of £2.7 million. 

4.13 In the November report it was explained that, since the impairment credits are adjustments to 

Page 21



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 6 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

impairments which had been charged to capital and financed from borrowing, they should be used 
to repay such debt.  Hence it was recommended that the £230,000 credit for the KSF loans is 
used to make a voluntary provision for the repayment of debt.  This will reduce annual debt 
repayments for the next 19 years (beginning in 2011/12) by £12,000 per annum.  The reduction 
has been built into the budget 2011/12. 

4.14 Normally repaying debt would be the recommendation for the £2.4 million credit for the Glitnir loan 
and the additional £96,000 for the KSF deposits, however the decision to treat local authority 
deposits as priority claims is not final as it is subject to appeal.  Therefore it is recommended that 
these additional credits be temporarily transferred to an earmarked reserve until the final decision 
is made. 

4.15 Should the final decision confirm that the deposits do have priority status then the reserve will be 
used to repay debt or alternatively, should they ultimately be deemed not to have such status, 
meet the resulting increased impairment charge in this or future years.  In the case of the latter 
scenario the authority would then only have to find the money to cover the increased impairment 
for the Landsbanki loans, for which a further capitalisation direction would be sought.   

4.16 Treasury Management Activity  
There is a predicted surplus of interest of £10,101 to report on Treasury Management for 
2010/11. The General Fund (GF) is £50,863 adverse against the 2010/11 revised budget while 
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is £60,964 favourable against the revised budget. 

4.17 The primary reason for the shortfall in the General Fund is that the calculation for the HRA Item 8 
Debit at revised budget estimated the consolidated rate of interest to be 3.08% on all borrowing 
for the financial year, however due to the council’s weighted average of total borrowing for 
2010/11 being lower than the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), which is a measure of the 
authorities underlying need to borrow for capital purposes, a different formula is required to 
calculate the HRA Item 8 Debit than what has been used previously. This has reduced the 
consolidated rate of interest to 2.80% to recharge HRA borrowing, compared with 3.13%, the 
council’s overall average borrowing rate for the financial year. This has resulted in £51,944 less 
interest being payable by the HRA to the GF for 2010/11. 

4.18 HRA opening revenue balances are expected to be higher than estimated at revised budget time 
due to a slippage in capital expenditure. This has resulted in the HRA receiving £9,020 more in 
interest from the GF. 

4.19 Lending interest is forecast to be favourable by £7,477. As mentioned in paragraph 4.10 the HRA 
revenue balances are higher than expected which resulted in the council having more to invest for 
a longer period by utilising the Bank of Scotland Call Account. 
 

5. LAA performance reward grant 
5.1 Following the successful achievement of 75% of Gloucestershire’s LAA stretch targets, the 

council has been awarded a total performance reward grant allocation of £257,748. In addition to 
this sum, £50,983 remains unallocated from a previous allocation of performance reward grant 
which totals £308,731 that is available for additional investment. 

5.2 In February 2011, cabinet set out its aspirations to fund the following one off investment, funded 
from LAA performance reward grant, subject to it being awarded, and confirmed that these 
aspirations would be brought back to council in the outturn report in June 2011 for approval: 

• £50k towards match funding the £50k contribution from GCC to address youth work issues that 
the County can no longer fund in the way that it traditionally has. 

 

Page 22



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 7 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

• £30k for community pride / big society initiatives to establish another round of Community Pride 
as last year, with the emphasis on enabling ‘Big Society’ initiatives to be taken forward, such as 
promoting volunteering or voluntary initiatives. 

 
• £30k towards supporting Cheltenham Voluntary and Community Action (VCA) at £10k a year for 

the next three years from the LAA Performance Reward Grant  to develop the voluntary and 
community market through capacity building and supporting the Council to achieve its goal of 
being a commissioning organisation. 

 
• A capital contribution of £180k spread equally over the next 3 years (i.e. £60k per annum) 

towards the Warm and Well scheme administered by Severn Wye Energy Agency on the basis 
that private sector renewals grant has been withdrawn from 2011/12. 

 
5.3 It is recommended that the remaining amount of £18,731 is transferred to supplement the 

economic development fund (paragraph 6.4). 
6. New Homes Bonus 
6.1 The New Homes Bonus scheme is designed to address the disincentive within the local 

government finance system for local areas to welcome growth. The scheme is designed to 
provide local authorities with the means to mitigate the strain the increased population causes 
whilst promoting a more positive attitude to growth and creating an environment in which new 
housing is more readily accepted. Whilst funding will not be ring-fenced for a specific purpose, it is 
designed to allow the ‘benefits of growth to be returned to local communities’. 

6.2 The 2011/12 New Homes Bonus allocation for Cheltenham is £290,275 and the cabinet are 
proposing that 2 funds are created for the following uses:  

6.3 An amount of £130,000, supplemented by a transfer of £30,000 from the civic pride reserve to 
provide a total fund of £160,000 for small environmental works. Bids from within council 
departments will be made and decided by the cabinet in the autumn. The aim will be to tackle 
environmental issues in packages costing around £15,000 or so a time. An initial request has 
been made, and supported by Cabinet, for £10,800 to purchase larger waste bins for the council’s 
parks to remove the need to use wheelie bins to cope with the summer peak in activity plus 
replacement bins adjacent to Imperial gardens to complement the re-paving scheme. 

6.4 The residual amount of £160,275, supplemented by £18,731 of unspent LAA performance reward 
grant, giving a total fund of £179,006, for economic development purposes to help tackle the 
recession – and promote the town as a place in which to do business by sponsoring activities and 
events which will attract visitors and trade. It will include cultural activities such as the festivals 
and tourist activity. Criteria for applying and the administration of these funds will be established 
as soon as possible. It is likely to be distributed in 2 phases during the year. A panel including an 
external business presence and the appropriate cabinet portfolio holders for economic 
development, culture and finance will be established to advise the cabinet on its allocation.  

7. Reserves 
7.1 The Section 151 Officer has, under delegated powers (financial rule 11.2), authority to make 

transfers to and from these operational reserves in accordance with the intention of the reserve as 
determined by the council’s reserves policy and protocol. The transfers approved by the Section 
151 Officer for 2010/11 are included within the Use of Reserves and Balances schedule at 
Appendix 8. 

7.2 Appendix 10 details the reserves held by the council, states their purpose and indicates the 
balance at 31st March 2011. In setting the budget for 2011/12 a review of reserves was 
undertaken with a view to assessing whether the levels were appropriate, in line with the policy for 

Page 23



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 8 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

reserves and balances, taking into account the needs and risks of the organisation and the 
prevailing economic conditions. At the year end this process has been repeated.  

7.3 Following a recent audit report and on the advice of the Benefits Manager, there is a 
recommendation to increase the size of the bad debt provision for benefit overpayments as a 
result of the government’s proposed change from the current benefits system to universal credits 
which may mean that any outstanding debts may not be recoverable against future benefit 
payments leaving the council to finance any write off. The bad debt provision as at 31st March 
2011 is £340k and it is proposed that £50k is transferred from the benefits equalisation reserve to 
increase the reserve to £390k. The audit recommendation is that the provision should be at 75% 
of the level of bad debt level by 2017. My advice is that over the next few years the council look to 
increase the provision further through further realignment of the benefit related reserves or from 
any future under spends. The cabinet is therefore recommending that council transfer £50k from 
the benefits equalisation reserve to the benefits bad debt provision. The council remains 
committed to supporting people who are currently in receipt of benefits under the current scheme 
in the transition to universal credits 

7.4 An assessment of the council’s other earmarked reserves has been made in line with the fiduciary 
duty of the Section 151 Officer at the year end. Accepting that there are still some areas of 
uncertainty, the level of reserves appears adequate at this point in time and no other changes are 
currently recommended. 

7.5 The level of maximum individual reserve balances were reviewed in February 2011, as part of the 
budget setting process. At 31st March 2011, most reserves are within these specific maximum 
levels. 

7.6 It is important to understand and consider that there is an opportunity cost in maintaining 
reserves. Members will be aware that reserves exist for specific ‘earmarked’ and valid purposes 
which are regularly reviewed. Over time, it is anticipated that these reserves will be used for the 
purpose for which they were set aside. Hence the opportunity cost of holding these reserves at 
existing or slightly above existing levels is either justified or insignificant.  

7.7 At the year end, the General Fund Balance stands at £2.667m (which includes the underspend of 
£174,086 pending the recommendations above) and therefore remains above the minimum range 
of £1.5m to £2m recommended by the Section 151 Officer. Given the prevailing economic 
conditions and the pressure on the current and future year’s revenue budgets, I would 
recommend that this should not be reduced. 

8. Capital Outturn 2010/11 
8.1 The outturn position in respect of General Fund capital is contained in Appendix 11. Members are 

asked to note the outturn position and, where there is slippage, approve the carry forwards into 
2011/12 requested by officers. Generally, whilst there has been some slippage in the capital 
programme, the profiling and monitoring of capital spend has significantly improved. 

9. Everyman theatre 
9.1 The council, at its meeting in February 2010, agreed a £1m loan facility to support the theatre’s 

refurbishment programme plus a grant of £250k. This was in tandem with a renegotiation of the 
building lease which transferred all maintenance responsibilities to the theatre under a full 
repairing lease with an additional £15,000 property grant to offset these additional liabilities.  

9.2 In preparing for the commencement of the refurbishment programme, it has transpired that it 
would be sensible to address roof repairs now rather than undertake them at a later date. As 
such, there is an upfront cost of around £100k, for which the theatre has requested that the 
council advance a further 3 years instalments (£45k) of the additional £15k property grant to part 

Page 24



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 9 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

fund the roof repairs so that it will have £60k towards the roof costs.  
9.3 The cabinet therefore recommends to council that it varies the funding agreement to advance a 

further £45k of the additional property grant to fund the theatre’s roof repairs. In addition, the 
cabinet is also recommending that council agree the schedule of funding support, which has now 
been agreed with the theatre, for the next 6 years as documented in Appendix 19. 
 

10. Section 106 receipts 
10.1 A position statement in respect of the activity of Section 106 receipts is contained in Appendix 12.  
10.2 The following summarises the activity in respect of Section 106 for 2010/11, compared to 

2009/10. 
31/3/10 £        31/3/11 £ 

Balance of unused Section 106 receipts    632,402                  279,582 
Net additional receipts (transfers to GCC) in year       (83,631)                   55,363 
Receipts used to finance projects in year              (269,189)                 (45,629) 
Balance outstanding at year end      279,582                 289,316 
 

11. Council tax and Business rates collection 
11.1 The monitoring report for the collection of council tax and business rates (NNDR) income is 

shown in Appendix 13. This shows the position at the end of March 2011. 

12. Sundry debt collection 
12.1 The monitoring report for the collection of sundry debt income is shown in Appendix 14. This 

shows the position at the end of March 2011. 

13. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
13.1 HRA income and expenditure  

The revised estimates for the Housing Revenue Account anticipated a surplus of £1,408,200 
which would increase revenue reserves to £2,989,000. The outturn statement, at Appendix 15, 
shows a surplus for the year of £2,092,379, an overall positive variance of £684,179 which has 
increased the revenue reserve to £3,673,179. There is also a balance of £304,121 in the major 
repairs reserve to carry forward to 2011/12.  
 
This positive variance arose primarily from: 
• lower revenue funding of capital expenditure required (£516,731) 
• reduced interest payable due to a reduction in the rate chargeable and additional interest 
received on higher reserve balances (total £60,964) 

• reduction in the need to provide for bad debts (£60,562) 
• additional rent income (£50,763), attributable to a lower void rate 

Page 25



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 10 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

• increased income from commercial lettings (£16,392) 
• savings in management costs (£21,779) 
Partially offset by the additional contributions to the housing repairs account (£34,814) as 
detailed in paragraph 13.2 

13.2 Housing repairs account  
The council keeps a separate housing repairs account (shown at Appendix 16) that assists in 
smoothing out peaks and troughs in the need for responsive repairs. Total costs on this account 
exceeded the budget of £3,735,000 by £34,814 which is not considered significant given the 
demand led nature of the expenditure.  

13.3 HRA Capital Programme 
As shown at Appendix 17, actual expenditure totalled £3.062m, a reduction of £789,000 when 
compared to the revised estimate of £3.851m. This variation was detailed in the February 2011 
monitoring report and arose from delays in two projects namely: 
• The transformational improvement programme at St Paul’s whilst development agreements 
were completed 

• The neighbourhood works programme at Scott and Edward Wilson House due to the financial 
failure of two contractors 

Both projects have since commenced and resources will be carried forward in reserves to fund 
the schemes. 

14. Prudential Indicators 
14.1 At the meeting of the council in February 2010, the council set the prudential indicators for 

2010/11 to comply with the prudential code. A summary of the prudential indicators for the year 
are contained in Appendix 18. 

14.2 The prudential indicators have been monitored regularly and there were no material departures 
from the indicators arising during the year. The outturn indicators are reported to cabinet and 
council as part of the capital and treasury management outturn in accordance with the 
arrangements determined at the February 2010 council meeting.  

14.3 The outturn position for 2010/11 has, in some cases, had an impact on prudential indicators for 
2011/12 where there is slippage and carry forward of spend. As a result some revisions to the 
prudential indicators for 2011/12, approved by council in February 2011, have been made. These 
are marked with an asterisk in Appendix 18 and require member approval. 

15. 2011/12 Revenue and Capital budget monitoring to May 2011  
15.1 Although, due to the pressures of the year end process, a detailed monitoring exercise has not 

been undertaken at this point in the year, the following areas are worth noting at this stage in the 
financial year. 

15.2 Land Charges – the income figures for the first two months of the financial year show the level of 
income to be £4,000 behind the budgeted target. If this trend continued throughout the year the 
annual shortfall would be in the region of £20,000. Given the current economic climate and 
stagnant property market this shortfall may be realised at the end of the full financial year. 

15.3 Planning Fees – the income figures for the first two months of the financial year show a shortfall 
against budget of £18,000. If this trend continued throughout the year the annual shortfall would 
be in the region of £80,000. However, there are large applications with a potential to result in 

Page 26



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 11 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

additional income. The risk of not achieving the annual income target is therefore considered low 
at this point in the year 

15.4 Building Control fees - the income figures for the first two months of the financial year show 
additional income against budget of £7,000. However, given recent shortfalls in income it is too 
early in the financial year to accurately predict the likely outturn for the full year. 

15.5 Off-Street Car Parking – income from off-street parking is composed of two elements – fines and 
fees. In considering fine income we need to include the actual income paid and also the potential 
income that could result from bailiff action to recover unpaid fines. The combined figures from 
both income sources suggest that fine income is anticipated to fall short of the profiled budget by 
£3,000 and fee income £15,000 behind the profiled budget as at the end of May 2011. If this trend 
were to continue throughout the year this could result in a combined income shortfall against 
budget of £85,000 which represents approximately 2% of target budget. This reduction in income 
trend may be partly as a result of the increased availability of On-Street Pay and Display spaces 
which is resulting in increased capacity for non-local users. Due to the heavy seasonal profiling of 
off-street parking income it is difficult to predict the exact trend in the current financial year. Future 
budget monitoring reports will provide updated positions with a greater degree of accuracy. 

 Bridging the Gap Programme 
15.6 Green Waste – The original sales target for the Garden Waste service was based on experience 

and data received from neighbouring Authorities operating similar schemes. Sign up, however, to 
this new service has slowed this financial year. Sales in April were approx. 1,125 and in May 550. 
Total sales for December to March 2010/11 were 8,375 and in 2011/12 to the end of May 2011 
are 1,675 giving an overall sales figure of 10,050 since the inauguration of the scheme. Should 
the May trend repeat until August, the April peak reoccur in the Autumn month of September and 
last years sales renew during the Winter months we will achieve sales in the region of 13,500 in 
the financial year 2011/12 against a target of 20,000. This is 6,500 short of budgeted expectations 
and represents a shortfall in income of £223,200. 

15.7 As a result of this the cabinet has requested that marketing campaigns be planned to increase 
sign-up so that it returns to target, and customer feedback be sought to determine reasons for not 
signing up to the scheme. The work plan for this financial year includes exploration of options to 
make the Garden Waste service accessible for those residents who cannot house a wheeled bin 

15.8 Costs are anticipated to be on budget for 2011/12. 
15.9 Customer Services restructure – The Bridging the Gap programme identified savings of 

£115,000 in 2012/13 from the systems thinking work highlighting opportunities to encompass the 
front-office service provided to Revenues and Benefits by Customer Services.  More efficient 
processes were identified, from providing expertise from the back office directly to customers in 
the front officer.  The restructure has been put in place from 1st April 2011, a year prior to the 
planned saving, on the basis that any 2011/12 saving would be required to fund the 
decommissioning costs.   However, decommissioning costs are forecast to be significantly less 
than anticipated.  As a result it is likely that around £50,000 of savings will be brought forward and 
delivered in 2011/12. 

 
15.10 Delete Frozen Vacancies - The identification of vacancies frozen in 2010/11 for deletion in 

2011/12 to meet a target of £80,000 remains challenging.  Despite ongoing efforts, operational 
issues and vacancies earmarked for restructures already included within the Bridging the Gap 
Programme have meant that the anticipated plan has had to be reviewed.  Options to offset this 
shortfall are currently being considered.. 

 
15.11 Closure of Public Conveniences - the full budgeted savings from the Bridging the Gap program 

in relation to the closure of some Public Conveniences is unlikely to be realised this financial year. 
Additional facilities will remain in operation in Charlton Kings and Bath Road for which a carry 

Page 27



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 12 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

forward request of £15,000 is being sought for approval to fund the arrangements for Bath Road 
toilets using the Bath Road traders. It is anticipated that this cost centre will be overspent by 
£18,600 this financial year as a result. 

 
15.12 HMRC Car Mileage Reimbursement Rates - The initiative to implement HMRC car mileage 

reimbursement rates has been fully implemented.  The saving of £20,000 was calculated based 
on a reduction of 15p per mile, as the rate was dropping from 55p to 40p. However, the 2011 
Budget increased the rate by 5p to 45p per mile, which has resulted in an estimated £6,700 
reduction in saving. 

 
15.13 Review of Essential / Regular Car Allowances - A thorough review of the essential and regular 

car allowances has been completed, however although this has resulted in certain officers having 
their allowances reduced or removed, the review of the policy identified a number of officers that 
were in fact entitled to the allowance.  The policy was also reviewed and allowed for any officers 
having their allowance reduced or removed would be entitled to a transition period – 3 months at 
current allowance, 3 months at half allowance.  This transition period has also impacted on the 
forecast saving, reducing it by around £15,000. 

 
15.14 SLT have agreed that, for the next 3 months, that spending on supplies and services should be 

restricted to essential items until more work has been undertaken to firm up the current year’s 
budget position and until mitigating measures have been identified to rectify any potential budget 
issue. 
 
Art Gallery & Museum building 

 
15.15 Following the announcement in March that the Heritage Lottery Fund grant award to the Art 

Gallery & Museum had been successful the Development Scheme has now progressed to RIBA 
Stage G with tenders for the main building contractor scheduled to be returned on June 20th 2011  
 

15.16 With the Scheme now progressing, it is important to maximise the opportunity that the 
Redevelopment Project presents regarding the carrying out of essential building maintenance 
works that has been identified within the Council’s 20 year maintenance plan whilst the site is 
shut. 
 

15.17 £170k of essential works has been identified to be carried out during the period 2012/13 at the Art 
Gallery & Museum site within the 20 year maintenance programme.  The works are in respect of 
roof, boiler, fire and security system replacements, which have been deferred from being carried 
in previous years due to the uncertainty of whether the Development Scheme would go ahead. In 
order to maximise the economies of scale the Development Scheme presents there is now a 
need to bring forward the financing of these works in order to ensure the opportunity to carry them 
out whilst the site undergoes major building works is not lost. The approval of these works would 
ordinarily form part of the annual budget setting process in February 2012 and 2013, however 
given the opportunity that the Development Scheme presents Cabinet recommends to Council 
that the financing of the works identified is advanced into this year. It must be noted that the 
timetabling of carrying out the works is still uncertain and therefore should they fail to be 
completed during the remainder of this year a carry forward request will be made in respect of any 
under-spend that may arise.  
 

15.18 Cabinet therefore recommends to Council that an additional one-off contribution of £170k be 
made from the Property Repairs and renewals reserve into the programmed maintenance budget 
in 2011/12, to be allocated to these works. 
 
Town Hall Toilets 
 

15.19 The current volume of traffic through the toilets at the Town Hall is in excess of 300,000 people 
per year. The number of customers places a huge demand on the old existing toilet systems and 

Page 28



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 13 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

pipe work and causes excessive wear and tear to the flooring and décor of the facilities. 
 

15.20 During sell out shows when 900 people all wish to use the toilets in a 15 minute interval, the 
systems can not cope with such a high demand and regularly block, flood and leave raw sewage 
on the floor.  This undoubtedly gives the Town Hall a bad reputation for cleanliness, which 
undermines its viability as an entertainment venue.   
 

15.21 The approximate cost per year for maintenance issues with the toilets is in excess of £5,000 and 
the Town Hall may in the future have to reimburse private hirers part of the hire fee for not 
providing adequate facilities.  The cost of reactive rather than proactive maintenance is high.  This 
would be significantly reduced if the current toilet systems were improved.  
 

15.22 In the last year the Town Hall have received complaints about the current condition of the toilet 
facilities.  People’s expectations are higher than ever before.  Contemporary design and a 
beautiful finish can be found in even the most basic of restaurants and town centre bars.  As 
investment has been made into other areas of the Town Hall, it has become more and more 
apparent that the toilet facilities are inadequate and in urgent need of improvement.  As the 
premier entertainment venue in Cheltenham the council has a duty to provide clean, hygienic 
working facilities that are on a par with the rest of the building.   
 

15.23 The Town Hall is working to grow our business for 2011/12 in areas of conference and 
banqueting, meetings & weddings.  In order to achieve the projected business growth, the Town 
Hall needs to be able to compete in the marketplace. 
 

15.24 The cost of carrying out necessary improvement works to the toilets is £30k. The works are 
identified to be carried out in 2012/13 within the 20 year maintenance programme. Cabinet 
recommends to council that the financing of these works is brought forward into the current year 
in order that the refurbishment can be carried out in January 2012.  
 

15.25 Cabinet therefore recommends to Council that an additional one-off contribution of £30k be made 
from the property repairs and renewals reserve into the programmed maintenance budget in 
2011/12, to be allocated to these works. 

 
 
16. Section 151 Officer advice 
16.1 The Government expects councils to make a significant contribution to reducing the level of public 

debt and will the council will be subject to significant public sector funding squeeze over the next 
few years. Future budgets are likely to contain some difficult decisions and may require some 
sources of ‘one off’ finance to enable savings to be delivered through cost / staffing reductions. As 
such, any opportunity to bolster the General Reserve to finance one off costs should be taken.  

16.2 In agreeing the recommendations, members need to be mindful of the prevailing challenging 
financial climate and in view of the budget pressures already potentially facing the council in the 
current year, to ensure that any carry forwards recommended for approval (even those for which 
the Section 151 Officer has the delegation to approve) are the most effective use of scarce 
resources. 

17. Conclusion 
17.1 The outturn position for 2010/11 demonstrates that, despite the extremely challenging year, the 

council managed to turnaround a projected overspend of £800k which demonstrates that it 
continues to maintain a strong and consistent track record of the management of services within 
budgets. There are no significant ‘unexpected’ overspends or under spends in 2010/11 which 
demonstrates that budget monitoring arrangements remain strong. 

Page 29



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 14 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

17.2 If approved, some of the carry forward requests will assist in the delivery of corporate objectives, 
help to complete projects started in 2010/11 and support initiatives which help to bridge the 
medium term funding gap.  

17.3 Members should note that the outturn position will be used to prepare the Statement of Accounts 
for approval by council. 

18. Consultation 
18.1 Appropriate members and officers were consulted in the process of preparing the outturn position 

and associated reports and accounts. 

Report author Contact officer: Paul Jones, Head of Financial Services     
paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 775154 

Appendices 1. Risk assessment 
2. Summary outturn performance position - General Fund 
3. Service level outturn performance position - General Fund 
4. Capital charges 
5. Interest and investment income 
6. Significant variances 
7. Carry forward requests 
8. Use of balances and reserves 
9. Treasury outturn 
10. Movement on earmarked reserves and general balances 
11. Capital programme - General Fund 
12. Section 106 receipts statement 
13. Council tax and NNDR collection 
14. Sundry debt collection 
15. HRA Operating account 
16. HRA Housing repairs account 
17. HRA Capital programme 
18. Prudential indicators 
19. Everyman Theatre funding schedule 

Page 30



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 15 of 17 Last updated 23 June 2011 
 

Background information 1. Section 25 Report – Council 11th February 2011  
2. Final Budget Proposals for 2011/12 – Council 11h February 2011 
3. Joint Working in Waste and Environmental Services ‘The creation 

of a Local Authority Company’ – Cabinet 21st June 2011 
 

Page 31



 

$gqydooh5.doc Page 16 of 17 Last updated 23 June 
2011 

 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1. Unable to take corrective 
action in respect of 
reduced income 
streams. 

Cabinet June 
2010 

3 3 9 Reduce The council turned a 
projected £800k 
overspend into an 
under spend. 
However, in the 
current year 
(2011/12) there is 
further pressure on 
income targets which 
SLT will consider at a 
future meeting. 

Sept 2011 SLT Corporate 
Risk 
Register 

2. If the council continues 
with its zero recruitment 
policy, then capacity 
may be impacted 
adversely, plus morale 
and motivation of 
employees 

Cabinet October 
2010 

3 3 9 Reduce Executive Board will 
monitor the process, 
via quarterly reviews. 
Although the year end 
has now passed and 
the recruitment freeze 
has been lifted, the 
Executive Board still 
continue to review 
recruitment requests. 

March 
2012 

Executive 
Board 

Corporate 
Risk 
Register 

3. Green Waste sales do 
not reach target of 
20,000. 

Director 
Operations 

June 
2011 

4 4 16 Reduce Marketing campaigns 
are planned to 
increase sign-up so 
that it returns to 
target, and customer 
feedback be sought 
to determine reasons 
for not signing up to 
the scheme. 
 
 
 

August 
2011 

Director 
Operations 

Corporate 
Risk 
Register 

P
age 32



 

$gqydooh5.doc Page 17 of 17 Last updated 23 June 
2011 

 

4. In the past the council 
has used in year savings 
to support one off growth 
to fund new initiatives or 
unpredicted expenditure. 
It is unlikely that moving 
forward over the life of 
the MTFS there will be 
such savings and if new 
initiatives or unpredicted 
expenditure arises then 
the dependency on the 
General Reserve will 
intensify. 

Director 
Resources 

December 
2010 

4 3 12 Reduce Future capital 
receipts may be 
needed to galvanise 
the General Reserve. 

December 
2011 

Director 
Resources 
(working 
with SLT) 

 

 

P
age 33



Page 34
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE

ND
IX 

2

GE
NE

RA
L F

UN
D 
RE

VE
NU

E O
UT

TU
RN

 20
10

/11
A

B
C

D
E

F
G

H
20

10
/11

20
10

/11
20

10
/11

ov
ers

pe
nd

 / 
C/
F r

eq
ue

sts
Va

ria
nc

e
C/
F r

eq
ue

sts
Va

ria
nc

e
GR

OU
P

Or
igi

na
l

Re
vis

ed
Ou

ttu
rn

(un
de

rsp
en

d)
Tr
f to

 / (
fro

m)
ap

pr
ov

ed
 by

ne
t o

f S
15

1
to 

be
 ap

pr
ov

ed
 

ne
t o

f a
ll 

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

pe
r L

ed
ge

r
be

for
e a

dju
stm

en
ts

Re
se

rve
s

S1
51

 O
ffic

er
c/f

 ap
pr
ov

als
Me

mb
ers

c/f
 re

qu
es

ts
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
7

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

7
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

Str
ate

gic
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
40

6,0
50

37
4,9

00
23

8,9
35

(13
5,9

65
)

13
6,1

59
19

4
19

4
As

sis
tan

t C
hie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e
3,4

96
,30

0
3,0

92
,80

0
2,9

08
,37

3
(18

4,4
27

)
46

,98
0

47
,80

0
(89

,64
7)

(89
,64

7)
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

31
,20

0
1,4

07
,90

0
1,4

95
,29

2
87

,39
2

(45
,79

5)
5,7

00
47

,29
7

5,0
00

52
,29

7
Co

mm
un

ity
 Se

rvi
ce

s
38

7,3
00

1,2
18

,40
0

1,2
17

,37
1

(1,
02

9)
(1,

02
9)

(1,
02

9)
Fin

an
cia

l S
erv

ice
s

1,3
85

,40
0

1,3
50

,00
0

1,3
25

,82
4

(24
,17

6)
23

,70
0

(47
6)

(47
6)

Cu
sto

me
r A

cc
es

s &
 Se

rvi
ce

 Tr
an

sfo
rm

ati
on

56
2,4

00
34

2,5
00

33
5,2

29
(7,

27
1)

(12
,00

0)
(19

,27
1)

(19
,27

1)
W

ell
be

ing
 an

d C
ult

ure
4,1

08
,00

0
4,9

73
,80

0
4,7

70
,86

7
(20

2,9
33

)
6,4

00
16

,50
0

(18
0,0

33
)

25
,00

0
(15

5,0
33

)
Hu

ma
n R

es
ou

rce
s &

 O
rga

nis
ati

on
al 

De
ve

lop
me

nt
(33

,20
0)

0
(11

,28
0)

(11
,28

0)
10

,10
0

(1,
18

0)
(1,

18
0)

Op
era

tio
ns

7,2
17

,30
0

6,1
42

,60
0

5,7
49

,48
2

(39
3,1

18
)

25
6,5

99
96

,50
0

(40
,01

9)
18

,00
0

(22
,01

9)
Pr

og
ram

me
d M

ain
ten

an
ce

 (R
ev

en
ue

)
81

1,0
00

75
1,6

00
51

0,1
79

(24
1,4

21
)

24
1,4

21
0

0
Bu

sin
es

s C
ha

ng
e

17
,00

0
75

5,4
00

64
7,1

02
(10

8,2
98

)
9,1

00
10

2,9
00

3,7
02

3,7
02

Ta
rge

t s
av

ing
s

(52
0,0

00
)

(50
,00

0)
0

50
,00

0
50

,00
0

50
,00

0
Ba

d d
eb

t p
rov

isio
n

40
,00

0
40

,00
0

45
,62

6
5,6

26
5,6

26
5,6

26
0

0
17

,90
8,7

50
20

,39
9,9

00
19

,23
3,0

00
(1,

16
6,9

00
)

63
8,8

64
30

3,2
00

(22
4,8

36
)

48
,00

0
(17

6,8
36

)

Ca
pit

al 
Ch

arg
es

 - A
pp

en
dix

 4
(75

7,6
00

)
(1,

83
8,7

00
)

(1,
83

8,8
41

)
(14

1)
(14

1)
(14

1)
Int

ere
st 

an
d I

nv
es

tm
en

t In
co

me
 - A

pp
en

dix
 5

29
3,6

00
(72

,70
0)

(2,
47

7,9
32

)
(2,

40
5,2

32
)

50
,86

3
50

,86
3

Us
e o

f b
ala

nc
es

 an
d r

es
erv

es
 - A

pp
en

dix
 8

(68
5,3

53
)

(1,
71

7,3
03

)
1,6

80
,85

5
3,3

98
,15

8
0

Ar
ea

 Ba
se

d G
ran

t
(28

,50
0)

(40
,30

0)
(40

,28
3)

17
17

17
Ne

t u
nd

ers
pe

nd
17

4,0
86

NE
T B

UD
GE

T
16

,73
0,8

97
16

,73
0,8

97
16

,73
0,8

86

De
du

ct:
Re

ve
nu

e S
up

po
rt G

ran
t

(1,
11

8,2
06

)
(1,

11
8,2

06
)

(1,
11

8,2
06

)
0

0
0

Na
tio

na
l N

on
-D

om
es

tic
 R

ate
(7,

70
0,6

53
)

(7,
70

0,6
53

)
(7,

70
0,6

53
)

0
0

0
Co

lle
cti

on
 Fu

nd
 C

on
trib

uti
on

(33
,50

0)
(33

,50
0)

(33
,48

9)
11

11
11

NE
T S

PE
ND

 FU
ND

ED
 B
Y C

OU
NC

IL 
TA

X
(7,

87
8,5

38
)

(7,
87

8,5
38

)
(7,

87
8,5

38
)

0
TO

TA
L I

NC
OM

E
(16

,73
0,8

97
)

(16
,73

0,8
97

)
(16

,73
0,8

86
)

To
tal

 bu
dg

et 
un

de
rsp

en
d

(17
4,0

86
)

(12
6,0

86
)

KE
Y

A -
 O

rig
ina

l b
ud

ge
t fo

r 2
01

0/1
1 a

pp
rov

ed
 by

 C
ou

nc
il -

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
B -

 R
ev

ise
d b

ud
ge

t fo
r 2

01
0/1

1 -
 in

clu
din

g b
ud

ge
t re

vis
ion

s a
pp

rov
ed

 by
 C

ou
nc

il d
uri

ng
 20

10
/11

 an
d a

pp
rov

ed
 ca

rry
 fo

rw
ard

s f
rom

 20
09

/10
C 

- O
utt

urn
 ne

t e
xp

en
dit

ure
 be

for
e y

ea
r e

nd
 ad

jus
tm

en
ts

D 
- O

pe
rat

ion
al 

tra
ns

fer
s t

o /
 (fr

om
) re

se
rve

s a
pp

rov
ed

 by
 th

e C
hie

f F
ina

nc
e O

ffic
er 

un
de

r d
ele

ga
ted

 po
we

rs 
- A

pp
en

dix
 7

E -
 C

arr
y f

orw
ard

 re
qu

es
ts 

ap
pro

ve
d b

y t
he

 C
hie

f F
ina

nc
e O

ffic
er 

un
de

r d
ele

ga
ted

 po
we

rs 
- A

pp
en

dix
 6

F -
 N

et 
va

ria
nc

e a
fte

r a
dju

stm
en

ts 
in 

co
lum

ns
 D

 to
 E

G 
- C

arr
y f

orw
ard

 re
qu

es
ts 

req
uir

ing
 M

em
be

r a
pp

rov
al 

- A
pp

en
dix

 6
H 

- N
et 

va
ria

nc
e o

n c
os

t c
en

tre
s t

ak
ing

 in
to 

ac
co

un
t a

ll c
arr

y f
orw

ard
 re

qu
es

ts 
- s

ee
 de

tai
l a

t A
pp

en
dix

 2

Page 35



Page 36
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE

ND
IX 

3
20

10
/11

20
10

/11
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
Tr

an
sfe

r
Re

qu
es

t fo
r

Ad
jus

ted
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
SO

RP
 /

Ad
jus

ted
RE

VE
NU

E O
UT

TU
RN

 20
10

/11
Or

igi
na

l
Re

vis
ed

20
10

/11
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to/

(fr
om

)
un

de
rsp

en
d

(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

IFR
S 2

01
0

IAS
 19

Se
RC

OP
(U

nd
er)

 /
Bu

dg
et 

(bb
k)

Bu
dg

et
Ac

tua
l

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
e

c/f
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ov

ers
pe

nd
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
MA

NA
GE

ME
NT

 
D1

11
00

CE
X M

an
ag
em

en
t

(95
0)

0
2,0

86
2,0

86
2,0

86
2,0

86
(11

,12
7)

9,0
41

0
D5

11
00

Co
rpo

rat
e S

erv
ice

s M
an
ag
em

en
t

5,5
00

0
88
6

88
6

88
6

88
6

(8,
27
2)

7,3
86

0
E7

41
00

En
vir
on
me

nt 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
& A

dm
in.

62
,10

0
0

(1,
79
8)

(1,
79
8)

(1,
79
8)

(1,
79
8)

(14
,24

1)
16
,03

9
0

D2
12
50

Civ
il E

me
rge

nc
y

25
2,5

00
28
8,2

00
15
1,9

14
(13

6,2
86
)

13
6,1

59
(12

7)
(13

6,2
86
)

(90
0)

(13
7,1

86
)

E2
14
00

Sh
op
mo

bil
ity

86
,90

0
86
,70

0
85
,84

8
(85

2)
(85

2)
(85

2)
(2,

38
7)

(3,
23
9)

TO
TA

L S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T
40

6,0
50

37
4,9

00
23

8,9
35

(13
5,9

65
)

13
6,1

59
19

4
(13

5,9
65

)
(36

,02
6)

31
,56

6
(14

0,4
25

)

AS
SIS

TA
NT

 C
HI

EF
 EX

EC
UT

IVE

AS
SIS

TA
NT

 C
HI

EF
 EX

EC
UT

IVE
D2

12
00

Co
rpo

rat
e M

an
ag
em

en
t

1,2
98
,20

0
1,1

34
,70

0
1,1

37
,11

6
2,4

16
2,4

16
2,4

16
(8,

23
6)

(27
3,8

57
)

(27
9,6

77
)

D2
12
15

CP
A C

os
ts

12
,20

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D2

12
20

Co
rpo

rat
e S

ub
sri
pti
on
s

27
,00

0
27
,00

0
24
,72

6
(2,

27
4)

(2,
27
4)

(2,
27
4)

(2,
27
4)

D3
87
00

LA
21

33
,30

0
23
,10

0
23
,10

0
0

0
0

0
G5

03
37

Ac
cu
mu

lat
ed
 ab

se
nc
es
 ac

co
un
t

0
0

0
8,2

36
8,2

36
1,3

70
,70

0
1,1

84
,80

0
1,1

84
,94

2
14
2

0
0

14
2

14
2

0
0

(27
3,8

57
)

(27
3,7

15
)

PO
LIC

Y &
 EQ

UA
L O

PP
OR

TU
NI

TIE
S

D1
17
00

Po
licy

 & 
Inf
orm

ati
on
 M
an
ag
em

en
t

(23
,70

0)
0

(2,
79
5)

(2,
79

5)
(2,

79
5)

(2,
79
5)

(13
,44

6)
16
,24

1
0

D1
17
15

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d M

an
ag
em

en
t S

erv
ice

s
0

25
,00

0
10
,22

0
(14

,78
0)

14
,80

0
20

(14
,78

0)
(14

,78
0)

D1
17
75

Fa
rm

ers
 M
ark

et
18
,10

0
6,3

50
2,4

98
(3,

85
2)

(3,
85
2)

(3,
85
2)

(3,
85
2)

D2
18
00

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 

Str
ate

gic
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
20
,20

0
29
,20

0
18
,00

9
(11

,19
1)

11
,70

0
50
9

(11
,19

1)
(11

,19
1)

D2
19
00

Eq
ua
l O

pp
ort

un
itie

s
0

0
(80

0)
(80

0)
(80

0)
(80

0)
(80

0)
D2

19
50

Co
mm

un
ity 

Pla
nn
ing

16
4,5

00
13
5,3

00
13
5,3

00
0

0
0

0
D2

19
50

Co
mm

un
ity 

Pla
nn
ing

16
4,5

00
13
5,3

00
13
5,3

00
0

0
0

0
D2

19
70

Co
mm

un
ity 

Pr
ide

40
,00

0
65
,70

0
44
,34

2
(21

,35
8)

21
,30

0
(58

)
(21

,35
8)

(21
,35

8)
D3

91
20

SL
A-
Gl
os
.R
ac
ial
 Eq

ua
lity

20
,70

0
52
,10

0
50
,79

2
(1,

30
8)

(1,
30
8)

(1,
30
8)

(10
0)

(1,
40
8)

D1
14
00

Au
dit
 & 

As
su
ran

ce
1,3

50
0

(5,
34
6)

(5,
34
6)

(5,
34
6)

(5,
34
6)

(4,
44
6)

9,7
92

0
24
1,1

50
31
3,6

50
25
2,2

21
(61

,42
9)

0
47
,80

0
(13

,62
9)

(61
,42

9)
0

(17
,89

2)
25
,93

3
(53

,38
9)

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
LA

ND
 U

SE
B5

11
40

Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
nin

g
23
9,8

00
21
6,1

00
21
0,1

71
(5,

92
9)

(5,
92
9)

(5,
92
9)

(6,
66
4)

(2,
45
0)

(15
,04

3)
B5

11
45

Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y

0
(11

6,5
00
)

(11
7,2

80
)

(78
0)

78
0

(0)
(78

0)
(1,

01
6)

(1,
79
7)

23
9,8

00
99
,60

0
92
,89

0
(6,

71
0)

78
0

0
(5,

92
9)

(6,
71
0)

0
(7,

68
0)

(2,
45

0)
(16

,84
0)

BU
SIN

ES
S &

 EC
ON

OM
IC

 D
EV

EL
OP

ME
NT

D1
19
00

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 M
an
ag
em

en
t

76
,65

0
0

(92
5)

(92
5)

(92
5)

(92
5)

(3,
15
8)

4,0
83

0
D1

22
20

Civ
ic 
& M

em
be
r S

erv
ice

s
60
0

0
61
4

61
4

61
4

61
4

(86
0)

24
6

0
D2

41
00

An
ne
cy

0
0

2,5
85

2,5
85

2,5
85

2,5
85

2,5
85

D2
41
50

Tw
inn

ing
 Ex

pe
ns
es

31
,10

0
43
,70

0
37
,91

6
(5,

78
4)

(5,
78
4)

(5,
78
4)

(5,
78
4)

D2
42
00

Go
ttin

ge
n S

po
rts

 Ex
ch
an
ge

0
0

50
8

50
8

50
8

50
8

50
8

D2
42
20

Go
ttin

ge
n V

isit
/Vi

sit
ors

0
0

1,8
83

1,8
83

1,8
83

1,8
83

1,8
83

D2
42
30

Go
ttin

ge
n B

ig 
Pa

rty
0

0
28
8

28
8

28
8

28
8

28
8

D2
48
30

W
eih

ei
0

0
33
6

33
6

33
6

33
6

33
6

D3
43
00

To
wn

 C
en
tre

 M
an
ag
em

en
t

30
,10

0
32
,10

0
32
,10

0
0

0
0

0
D3

44
00

Bu
sin

es
s &

 Ec
on
om

ic 
De

ve
lop

me
nt

27
4,5

00
24
0,4

00
19

4,8
24

(45
,57

6)
(45

,57
6)

(45
,57

6)
(3,

20
1)

(20
0)

(48
,97

7)
41
2,9

50
31
6,2

00
27
0,1

28
(46

,07
2)

0
0

(46
,07

2)
(46

,07
2)

0
(7,

21
9)

4,1
29

(49
,16

2)

Pa
ge
 1

Page 37



AP
PE

ND
IX 

3
20

10
/11

20
10

/11
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
Tr

an
sfe

r
Re

qu
es

t fo
r

Ad
jus

ted
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
SO

RP
 /

Ad
jus

ted
RE

VE
NU

E O
UT

TU
RN

 20
10

/11
Or

igi
na

l
Re

vis
ed

20
10

/11
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to/

(fr
om

)
un

de
rsp

en
d

(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

IFR
S 2

01
0

IAS
 19

Se
RC

OP
(U

nd
er)

 /
Bu

dg
et 

(bb
k)

Bu
dg

et
Ac

tua
l

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
e

c/f
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ov

ers
pe

nd
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

LE
GA

L S
ER

VIC
ES

D1
22
00

Le
ga
l S

erv
ice

s
(37

,40
0)

0
(10

,13
5)

(10
,13

5)
10
,20

0
65

(10
,13

5)
10
,13

5
0

D1
22
05

CB
C 
v L

air
d C

as
e

0
0

(25
,46

3)
(25

,46
3)

25
,50

0
37

(25
,46

3)
(25

,46
3)

(37
,40

0)
0

(35
,59

8)
(35

,59
8)

35
,70

0
0

10
2

(35
,59

8)
0

0
10
,13

5
(25

,46
3)

EL
EC

TIO
NS

D2
13
00

Dis
tric

t E
lec

tio
ns

18
2,5

00
19
7,3

00
18
7,4

09
(9,

89
1)

(9,
89
1)

(9,
89
1)

(37
9)

(68
0)

(10
,95

0)
D2

13
50

Pa
ris
h E

lec
tio
ns

0
0

59
1

59
1

59
1

59
1

59
1

D2
14
00

Ele
cto

ral
 R
eg
ist
rat

ion
18
1,6

00
18
3,3

00
19
5,5

01
12
,20

1
12
,20

1
12
,20

1
(71

0)
11
,49

1
D2

15
00

Ele
cto

ral
 R
eg
ist
rat

ion
 O
ve
rhe

ad
s

7,8
00

0
4,7

39
4,7

39
4,7

39
4,7

39
(4,

95
9)

22
0

0
D2

15
10

Co
un
ty 
Co

un
cil 

Ele
cti
on
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D2

15
20

Eu
rop

ea
n P

arl
iam

en
t E

lec
tio
ns

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D2

15
40

Pa
rlia

me
ntr

y E
lec

tio
ns

0
0

(18
,12

6)
(18

,12
6)

10
,50

0
(7,

62
6)

(18
,12

6)
(18

,12
6)

D2
15
30

Co
un
ty 
& E

uro
pe
an
 

0
0

(48
)

(48
)

(48
)

(48
)

(48
)

37
1,9

00
38
0,6

00
37
0,0

66
(10

,53
4)

10
,50

0
0

(34
)

(10
,53

4)
0

(5,
33
9)

(1,
17
0)

(17
,04

3)

CI
VIC

D2
21
00

Civ
ic 
Ex

pe
ns
es

51
,30

0
59
,30

0
58
,88

0
(42

0)
(42

0)
(42

0)
(40

)
(46

0)
D2

22
00

Civ
ic 
Ca

r
34
,70

0
32
,60

0
32
,52

0
(80

)
(80

)
(80

)
(80

)
D2

30
10

Ho
sp
ita
lity

2,5
00

1,5
00

55
4

(94
6)

(94
6)

(94
6)

(94
6)

D2
30
20

Ma
yo
ral

 Su
nd
ay

1,0
00

1,1
00

1,3
77

27
7

27
7

27
7

27
7

D2
30
30

Ma
yo
r M

ak
ing

 C
ere

mo
ny

4,2
00

5,3
00

4,3
98

(90
2)

(90
2)

(90
2)

(90
2)

D2
30
60

Re
me

mb
era

nc
e S

un
da
y

4,3
00

3,8
00

1,4
30

(2,
37
0)

(2,
37
0)

(2,
37
0)

(2,
37
0)

D2
30
70

Me
da
l o
f H

on
ou
r A

wa
rds

60
0

20
0

18
5

(15
)

(15
)

(15
)

(15
)

D2
30
90

Ba
ttle

 of
 Br

ita
in 
Da

y
1,4

00
1,4

00
1,8

72
47
2

47
2

47
2

47
2

D2
31
00

Ho
sp
ita
lity

 - C
ivic

 G
ifts

70
0

30
0

18
6

(11
4)

(11
4)

(11
4)

(11
4)

D2
31
00

Ho
sp
ita
lity

 - C
ivic

 G
ifts

70
0

30
0

18
6

(11
4)

(11
4)

(11
4)

(11
4)

D2
32
00

Fe
sti
va
l P

erf
orm

ing
 Ar

ts
24
,40

0
24
,40

0
25
,20

0
80
0

80
0

80
0

80
0

D2
39
00

Ch
ari

ty 
Ev

en
ts

5,0
00

5,1
00

6,2
58

1,1
58

1,1
58

1,1
58

1,1
58

13
0,1

00
13
5,0

00
13
2,8

61
(2,

13
9)

0
0

(2,
13
9)

(2,
13
9)

0
0

(40
)

(2,
17
9)

DE
MO

CR
AT

IC
 SE

RV
IC

ES
D1

22
50

DS
U

3,2
00

0
(8,

37
1)

(8,
37
1)

(8,
37
1)

(8,
37
1)

(7,
00
3)

15
,37

4
0

D2
11
00

De
mo

cra
tic
 Pr

oc
es
s

62
4,3

00
50
9,8

50
49
5,7

78
(14

,07
2)

(14
,07

2)
(14

,07
2)

(21
,50

2)
(35

,57
5)

D2
11
50

Ca
bin

et 
Ex

pe
nd
itu
re

78
,00

0
82
,80

0
82
,80

0
0

0
0

(54
0)

(54
0)

D2
11
90

O 
& S

 C
om

mi
tte
es

61
,60

0
70
,30

0
70
,65

6
35
6

35
6

35
6

(84
0)

(48
4)

76
7,1

00
66
2,9

50
64
0,8

63
(22

,08
7)

0
0

(22
,08

7)
(22

,08
7)

0
(7,

00
3)

(7,
50
8)

(36
,59

9)

TO
TA

L A
SS

IST
AN

T C
HI

EF
 EX

EC
UT

IVE
3,4

96
,30

0
3,0

92
,80

0
2,9

08
,37

3
(18

4,4
27

)
46

,98
0

47
,80

0
(89

,64
7)

(18
4,4

27
)

0
(45

,13
3)

(24
4,8

28
)

(47
4,3

89
)

BU
ILT

 EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT

TR
AN

SP
OR

T
D3

24
00

Eld
erl

y T
ran

sp
ort

1,7
28
,30

0
1,6

74
,20

0
1,6

96
,14

6
21
,94

6
21
,94

6
21
,94

6
(81

0)
21
,13

6
E2

11
00

Ca
r P

ark
s O

ff-S
tre

et
(2,

38
9,0

00
)

(1,
77
1,9

00
)

(1,
69
4,9

59
)

76
,94

1
76
,94

1
76
,94

1
(7,

89
7)

(5,
82
3)

63
,22

1
E2

11
50

Ro
ya
l W

ell
 Bu

s S
tat
ion

9,2
00

(6,
40
0)

(8,
14
9)

(1,
74
9)

(1,
74
9)

(1,
74
9)

(10
8)

(15
0)

(2,
00
7)

E2
13
00

Re
sid

en
ts 
Pa

rki
ng

36
,30

0
0

0
0

0
0

(1,
28
0)

(59
0)

(1,
87
0)

E3
62
00

On
-S
tre

et 
Pa

rki
ng
 - P

 & 
D

71
,10

0
0

0
0

0
0

(2,
69
4)

(2,
48
1)

(5,
17
5)

E3
63
00

On
-S
tre

et 
Pa

rki
ng
 - E

nfo
rce

me
nt

31
8,8

00
0

0
0

0
0

(11
,18

9)
(20

0)
(11

,38
9)

Pa
ge
 2

Page 38



AP
PE

ND
IX 

3
20

10
/11

20
10

/11
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
Tr

an
sfe

r
Re

qu
es

t fo
r

Ad
jus

ted
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
SO

RP
 /

Ad
jus

ted
RE

VE
NU

E O
UT

TU
RN

 20
10

/11
Or

igi
na

l
Re

vis
ed

20
10

/11
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to/

(fr
om

)
un

de
rsp

en
d

(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

IFR
S 2

01
0

IAS
 19

Se
RC

OP
(U

nd
er)

 /
Bu

dg
et 

(bb
k)

Bu
dg

et
Ac

tua
l

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
e

c/f
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ov

ers
pe

nd
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

E7
55
00

Int
eg
rat

ed
 Tr

an
sp
ort

 D
ivis

ion
(69

1,6
00
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

(91
6,9

00
)

(10
4,1

00
)

(6,
96
2)

97
,13

8
0

0
97
,13

8
97
,13

8
0

(23
,16

9)
(10

,05
4)

63
,91

5

BU
ILT

 EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
B5

11
20

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Co

ntr
ol

60
2,3

00
58
9,8

00
62
2,2

47
32
,44

7
32
,44

7
32
,44

7
(49

,11
1)

(16
,66

5)
B5

11
30

Co
ns
erv

ati
on

90
,70

0
10
4,0

00
10
4,0

00
0

0
0

(5,
70
0)

(5,
70
0)

B5
11
50

HP
DG

24
4,3

00
12
9,2

00
13
0,4

81
1,2

81
1,2

81
1,2

81
(6,

89
0)

(5,
60
9)

B5
11
60

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide

26
5,5

00
22
9,6

00
25
2,7

89
23
,18

9
(23

,18
9)

0
23
,18

9
(5,

42
4)

(2,
10

0)
15
,66

5
B5

23
00

Bu
ild
ing

 C
on
tro

l
12
1,8

00
84
,00

0
51
,61

4
(32

,38
6)

(32
,38

6)
(32

,38
6)

(23
,35

5)
(2,

95
0)

(58
,69

1)
D2

16
00

La
nd
 C
ha
rge

s
(91

,60
0)

(68
,20

0)
(76

,30
8)

(8,
10
8)

(8,
10
8)

(8,
10
8)

(4,
80
0)

(12
,90

8)
E2

21
00

Ch
elt
 R
ive

r &
 W

ate
r C

ou
rse

s
13
6,0

00
15
1,6

00
14
5,3

02
(6,

29
8)

5,7
00

(59
8)

(6,
29
8)

(20
0)

(6,
49
8)

E7
25
00

Bu
ilt 
En

vir
on
me

nt 
Div

isio
n

(26
,10

0)
0

(28
,01

6)
(28

,01
6)

(28
,01

6)
(28

,01
6)

(41
,87

5)
69
,89

1
0

D1
25
00

Pr
op
ert

y S
erv

ice
s

(42
,40

0)
0

(21
6)

(21
6)

(21
6)

(21
6)

(18
,08

2)
18
,29

8
0

D1
31
00

Mu
nic

ipa
l O

ffic
es

(26
,40

0)
0

(16
,24

2)
(16

,24
2)

5,0
00

(11
,24

2)
(16

,24
2)

(54
1)

16
,78

2
0

D1
41
00

De
po
t

30
0

0
(4,

51
1)

(4,
51
1)

(4,
51
1)

(4,
51
1)

4,5
11

0
D2

12
90

As
se
t M

an
ag
em

en
t P

lan
0

65
,10

0
65
,10

0
0

0
0

(2,
60
0)

(2,
60
0)

D3
02
00

Mi
sc
ell
an
eo
us
 Pr

op
ert

ies
(41

2,1
00
)

14
0,7

00
17
1,7

07
31

,00
7

(22
,60

5)
8,4

02
31
,00

7
(8,

10
0)

22
,90

7
D3

02
20

Re
ge
ne
rat

ion
 si
tes

79
,40

0
78
,90

0
78
,90

0
0

0
0

(2,
70
0)

(2,
70
0)

D3
03
00

W
ar 

Me
mo

ria
ls

6,4
00

7,3
00

5,4
07

(1,
89
3)

(1,
89
3)

(1,
89
3)

(20
0)

(2,
09
3)

94
8,1

00
1,5

12
,00

0
1,5

02
,25

4
(9,

74
6)

(45
,79

5)
10
,70

0
(44

,84
1)

(9,
74
6)

0
(96

,16
7)

31
,02

1
(74

,89
2)

TO
TA

L B
UI

LT
 EN

VIR
ON

ME
NT

31
,20

0
1,4

07
,90

0
1,4

95
,29

2
87

,39
2

(45
,79

5)
10

,70
0

52
,29

7
87

,39
2

0
(11

9,3
36

)
20

,96
7

(10
,97

7)

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 SE
RV

IC
ES

H2
26
00

Co
mm

un
ity 

Se
rvi
ce
s

(99
0,6

00
)

0
(2,

43
5)

(2,
43
5)

(2,
43
5)

(2,
43

5)
(42

,36
0)

44
,79

6
0

D3
39
50

Re
so
urc

e C
en
tre

 (H
old

ing
 Ac

co
un
t)

2,6
00

1,8
00

3,3
28

1,5
28

1,5
28

1,5
28

1,5
28

D3
39
50

Re
so
urc

e C
en
tre

 (H
old

ing
 Ac

co
un
t)

2,6
00

1,8
00

3,3
28

1,5
28

1,5
28

1,5
28

1,5
28

D3
71
00

He
ste

rs 
W
ay

50
,90

0
43
,60

0
43
,60

0
0

0
0

(20
0)

(20
0)

D3
72
00

W
ha
dd
on

50
,80

0
43
,60

0
43
,60

0
0

0
0

(20
0)

(20
0)

D3
81
00

Co
mm

un
ity 

De
v. 
Str

ate
gy

90
,20

0
91
,20

0
90
,92

0
(28

0)
(28

0)
(28

0)
(3,

90
0)

(4,
18
0)

D3
83
00

Ch
elt
. D

isa
bil
ity 

Ac
tio
n

50
0

50
0

(37
2)

(87
2)

(87
2)

(87
2)

(87
2)

D3
86
00

Pe
ns
ion

ers
 Fo

rum
50
0

50
0

50
0

0
0

0
0

D3
91
00

SL
A-
Cit

ize
ns
 Ad

v. 
Bu

rea
u

16
1,1

00
16
3,7

00
16
3,6

31
(69

)
(69

)
(69

)
(30

0)
(36

9)
D3

91
30

'SL
A-
He

ste
rs 

W
ay
 Pr

oje
ct'

0
3,7

00
3,7

00
0

0
0

0
D3

91
50

SL
A-
CC

AV
A

40
,60

0
38
,30

0
38
,30

0
0

0
0

0
D3

91
60

SL
A-
W
ha
dd
on
, L
yn
wo

rth
 & 

Pr
ior

s
0

3,0
00

3,0
00

0
0

0
(20

0)
(20

0)
D3

92
10

Sm
l G

ran
ts-

Pr
op
ert

y
8,0

00
8,0

00
8,0

00
0

0
0

0
H2

22
25

Ho
us
ing

 St
an
da
rds

36
3,2

00
24
1,2

00
24
0,7

75
(42

5)
(42

5)
(42

5)
(13

,00
0)

(13
,42

5)
H2

22
60

Ho
us
ing

 St
rat

eg
y

28
,20

0
27
,90

0
27
,90

0
0

0
0

(1,
52
0)

(1,
52
0)

H2
22
70

Ho
us
ing

 En
ab
lin
g

12
0,7

00
67
,30

0
17
7,3

00
11
0,0

00
11

0,0
00

11
0,0

00
(11

0,0
00
)

(3,
30
0)

(3,
30
0)

H2
21
25

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d R

eg
en
era

tio
n

0
9,5

00
9,5

00
0

0
0

0
H2

23
00

Ho
us
ing

 G
ran

ts
15
4,6

00
10
0,0

00
97
,79

4
(2,

20
6)

(2,
20
6)

(2,
20
6)

(1,
40
0)

(3,
60
6)

H2
23
50

Su
pp
ort

ing
 Pe

op
le

27
,70

0
18
,50

0
18
,50

0
0

0
0

(70
0)

(70
0)

H2
24
00

Ho
me

les
s P

ers
on
s

31
6,2

00
33
7,2

00
33
7,9

11
71
1

71
1

71
1

(41
1)

(14
,01

1)
(13

,71
1)

H2
25
00

Co
mm

un
ity 

Ala
rm

s
(37

,90
0)

(45
,40

0)
(42

,38
1)

3,0
19

3,0
19

3,0
19

(4,
44
0)

(1,
42
1)

H2
22
30

'PS
DH

 gr
an
ts 
/ lo

an
s'

0
0

(95
,64

9)
(95

,64
9)

(95
,64

9)
(95

,64
9)

95
,64

9
0

H2
25
50

Dis
ab
led

 Fa
cili

tie
s G

ran
ts

0
64
,30

0
23
6,3

00
17
2,0

00
17
2,0

00
17
2,0

00
(17

2,0
00
)

(3,
10
0)

(3,
10
0)

TO
TA

L C
OM

MU
NI

TY
 SE

RV
IC

ES
38

7,3
00

1,2
18

,40
0

1,4
03

,72
2

18
5,3

22
0

0
18

5,3
22

18
5,3

22
(18

6,3
51

)
(42

,77
2)

(1,
47

5)
(45

,27
6)

Pa
ge
 3

Page 39



AP
PE

ND
IX 

3
20

10
/11

20
10

/11
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
Tr

an
sfe

r
Re

qu
es

t fo
r

Ad
jus

ted
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
SO

RP
 /

Ad
jus

ted
RE

VE
NU

E O
UT

TU
RN

 20
10

/11
Or

igi
na

l
Re

vis
ed

20
10

/11
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to/

(fr
om

)
un

de
rsp

en
d

(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

IFR
S 2

01
0

IAS
 19

Se
RC

OP
(U

nd
er)

 /
Bu

dg
et 

(bb
k)

Bu
dg

et
Ac

tua
l

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
e

c/f
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ov

ers
pe

nd
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

BU
SIN

ES
S C

HA
NG

E
Go

7
Go

7 P
roj

ec
t

0
15
,00

0
15
,15

4
15
4

15
4

15
4

15
4

Go
CO

E
Go

 Pr
oje

ct 
-C
en
tre

 of
 Ex

ce
lle
nc
e

0
43
,10

0
42
,86

7
(23

3)
(23

3)
(23

3)
(23

3)
Go

ER
P

Go
 Pr

oje
ct 
-E
RP

 Sy
ste

m
0

17
0,6

00
17
4,3

43
3,7

43
3,7

43
3,7

43
3,7

43
IT0

05
5

Go
ve
rnm

en
t C

on
ne
ct

13
,00

0
46
,50

0
40
,71

8
(5,

78
2)

5,8
00

18
(5,

78
2)

(5,
78
2)

IT0
06
2

W
ork

ing
 Fl

ex
ibl
y

4,0
00

25
,70

0
7,3

19
(18

,38
1)

18
,40

0
19

(18
,38

1)
(18

,38
1)

IT0
07
0

Sh
are

d L
eg
al 
Se

rvi
ce
s s

et-
up
 co

sts
0

16
,30

0
7,2

11
(9,

08
9)

9,1
00

11
(9,

08
9)

(9,
08
9)

IT0
07
1

Re
ve
nu
es
 & 

Be
ne
fits

 So
urc

ing
 St

rat
eg
y

0
16
6,8

00
10
0,1

13
(66

,68
7)

66
,70

0
13

(66
,68

7)
(66

,68
7)

IT0
07
2

Cu
sto

me
r S

erv
ice

s S
ou
rci
ng
 St

rat
eg
y

0
65
,00

0
62
,53

1
(2,

46
9)

2,5
00

31
(2,

46
9)

(2,
46
9)

IT0
07
3

IC
T S

ou
rci
ng
 St

rat
eg
y

0
53
,80

0
44
,24

8
(9,

55
3)

9,5
00

(53
)

(9,
55
3)

(9,
55
3)

TO
TA

L B
US

IN
ES

S C
HA

NG
E

17
,00

0
60

2,8
00

49
4,5

02
(10

8,2
98

)
9,1

00
10

2,9
00

3,7
02

(10
8,2

98
)

0
0

(10
8,2

98
)

FIN
AN

CI
AL

 SE
RV

IC
ES

D1
13
00

Ac
co
un
tan

cy 
Div

isio
n

17
,30

0
0

(21
,92

6)
(21

,92
6)

11
,70

0
(10

,22
6)

(21
,92

6)
(24

,18
1)

46
,10

8
0

D3
26
00

Ins
ura

nc
es

(31
,50

0)
0

(1,
69
5)

(1,
69
5)

(1,
69
5)

(1,
69
5)

1,6
95

0
D3

27
00

Tre
as
ury

 M
an
ag
em

en
t

83
,90

0
12
2,5

00
11
3,9

57
(8,

54
3)

12
,00

0
3,4

57
(8,

54
3)

(8,
54
3)

D3
27
50

Pe
ns
ion

 Fu
nd
 Ba

ck
fun

din
g

1,3
04
,70

0
1,1

89
,00

0
1,1

90
,46

3
1,4

63
1,4

63
1,4

63
(12

,36
6,0

00
)

(12
,36

4,5
37
)

D3
38
00

Un
iso

n S
po
rts

 & 
So

cia
l C

lub
12
,70

0
14
,40

0
14
,40

0
0

0
0

0
D3

51
00

Gl
ou
ce
ste

rsh
ire

 Ai
rpo

rt
(3,

00
0)

24
,10

0
30
,74

3
6,6

43
6,6

43
6,6

43
6,6

43
H2

22
80

Ho
us
ing

 Ad
va
nc
es

1,3
00

0
(11

8)
(11

8)
(11

8)
(11

8)
(11

8)
TO

TA
L F

IN
AN

CI
AL

 SE
RV

IC
ES

1,3
85

,40
0

1,3
50

,00
0

1,3
25

,82
4

(24
,17

6)
0

23
,70

0
(47

6)
(24

,17
6)

0
(12

,39
0,1

81
)

47
,80

2
(12

,36
6,5

55
)

CU
ST

OM
ER

 AC
CE

SS
 &

 SE
RV

IC
E T

RA
NS

FO
RM

AT
IO

N 
(C

AS
T)

CA
ST

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T

D1
24
00

CA
ST

 M
an
ag
em

en
t

(13
,70

0)
0

23
,49

9
23
,49

9
23
,49

9
23
,49

9
(3,

28
1)

(20
,21

9)
0

(13
,70

0)
0

23
,49

9
23
,49

9
0

0
23
,49

9
23
,49

9
0

(3,
28
1)

(20
,21

9)
0

SE
RV

IC
E D

EV
EL

OP
ME

NT
D1

24
85

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt

27
,30

0
0

3,5
86

3,5
86

3,5
86

3,5
86

(3,
63
6)

50
(0)

D1
26
00

Se
rvi
ce
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t

6,2
00

0
(73

)
(73

)
(73

)
(73

)
(38

,79
7)

38
,87

0
0

33
,50

0
0

3,5
13

3,5
13

0
0

3,5
13

3,5
13

0
(42

,43
3)

38
,92

0
(0)

CU
ST

OM
ER

 SE
RV

IC
ES

 &
 C

AS
HI

ER
S

D1
24
50

Ca
sh
 R
ec
eip

tin
g /
 Ba

nk
ing

70
0

0
(2,

44
3)

(2,
44
3)

(2,
44
3)

(2,
44
3)

(4,
70
4)

7,1
47

0
D1

24
55

Ca
r P

ark
 In
co
me

 C
oll
ec
tio
n

3,7
00

0
(52

2)
(52

2)
(52

2)
(52

2)
(4,

18
2)

4,7
04

0
D1

24
95

Cu
sto

me
r S

erv
ice

 Ar
ea
s

24
,50

0
0

(4,
49
8)

(4,
49
8)

(4,
49
8)

(4,
49
8)

(12
,90

6)
17
,40

4
0

D1
31
20

Ce
ntr

al 
Ma

il R
oo
m

5,1
00

0
(1,

10
6)

(1,
10
6)

(1,
10
6)

(1,
10
6)

(2,
71
5)

3,8
21

0
D1

31
60

Cu
sto

dia
ns
 - M

un
icip

al 
Of
fic
es

1,4
00

0
(3,

85
6)

(3,
85
6)

(3,
85
6)

(3,
85
6)

(2,
35
3)

6,2
09

0
35
,40

0
0

(12
,42

4)
(12

,42
4)

0
0

(12
,42

4)
(12

,42
4)

0
(26

,86
0)

39
,28

5
0

BE
NE

FIT
S

D1
24
30

Ho
us
ing

 & 
Co

un
cil 

Ta
x B

en
efi
ts

65
,50

0
50
0

(13
,32

5)
(13

,82
5)

(13
,82

5)
(13

,82
5)

(29
,32

8)
43
,15

3
0

D1
24
35

Ho
us
ing

 Al
low

an
ce
s S

ch
em

e
(13

2,7
00
)

(12
7,7

00
)

(12
7,4

92
)

20
8

20
8

20
8

(20
8)

0
D1

24
70

Ho
us
ing

 Be
ne
fit 
Fra

ud
4,6

00
0

13
13

13
13

(13
)

0

Pa
ge
 4

Page 40



AP
PE

ND
IX 

3
20

10
/11

20
10

/11
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
Tr

an
sfe

r
Re

qu
es

t fo
r

Ad
jus

ted
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
SO

RP
 /

Ad
jus

ted
RE

VE
NU

E O
UT

TU
RN

 20
10

/11
Or

igi
na

l
Re

vis
ed

20
10

/11
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to/

(fr
om

)
un

de
rsp

en
d

(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

IFR
S 2

01
0

IAS
 19

Se
RC

OP
(U

nd
er)

 /
Bu

dg
et 

(bb
k)

Bu
dg

et
Ac

tua
l

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
e

c/f
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ov

ers
pe

nd
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

H2
31
00

Ho
us
ing

 Be
ne
fits

 - R
en
t A

llo
wa

nc
es

(37
,90

0)
(31

,60
0)

40
,59

1
72
,19

1
(50

,00
0)

22
,19

1
72
,19

1
72
,19

1
H2

31
50

Ho
us
ing

 Be
ne
fit 
Ad

mi
nis

tra
tio
n

10
7,9

00
59
,70

0
63
,79

6
4,0

96
4,0

96
4,0

96
(23

,29
8)

(19
,20

2)
H2

32
00

Re
nt 
Re

ba
tes

(97
,70

0)
(11

0,1
00
)

(13
5,5

21
)

(25
,42

1)
(25

,42
1)

(25
,42

1)
(25

,42
1)

(90
,30

0)
(20

9,2
00
)

(17
1,9

39
)

37
,26

1
(50

,00
0)

0
(12

,73
9)

37
,26

1
0

(29
,32

8)
19
,63

5
27
,56

8

RE
VE

NU
ES

D1
24
40

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x O

ve
rhe

ad
s

14
,10

0
(60

0)
(8,

02
8)

(7,
42
8)

1,0
00

(6,
42
8)

(7,
42
8)

(14
,67

4)
22
,10

2
0

D1
24
60

Pr
op
ert

y I
ns
pe
cti
on

(39
,80

0)
0

(4,
00
7)

(4,
00
7)

(4,
00
7)

(4,
00

7)
(4,

17
6)

8,1
82

0
D1

24
80

Bu
sin

es
s R

ev
en
ue
s

(5,
50
0)

10
0

(2,
49
9)

(2,
59
9)

(2,
59
9)

(2,
59
9)

(3,
98
9)

6,5
88

0
D1

24
90

Su
nd
ry 
De

bto
rs

0
0

(55
3)

(55
3)

(55
3)

(55
3)

55
3

0
D3

12
00

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x b

en
efi
ts

66
4,6

00
58
5,2

00
59
8,1

24
12
,92

4
12
,92

4
12
,92

4
(53

,57
8)

(40
,65

5)
D3

13
00

NN
DR

 C
oll
ec
tio
n

(63
,90

0)
(65

,10
0)

(67
,83

0)
(2,

73
0)

(2,
73

0)
(2,

73
0)

(4,
86
2)

(7,
59
2)

D3
94
00

Dis
cre

tio
na
ry 
Ra

te 
Re

lie
f

12
,10

0
32
,10

0
13
,29

9
(18

,80
1)

(18
,80

1)
(18

,80
1)

(18
,80

1)
58
1,6

00
55
1,7

00
52
8,5

06
(23

,19
4)

1,0
00

0
(22

,19
4)

(23
,19

4)
0

(22
,83

9)
(21

,01
5)

(67
,04

7)
IC

T S
ER

VIC
ES

D1
18
00

IC
T D

ivis
ion

9,3
00

0
(2,

44
4)

(2,
44
4)

(2,
44
4)

(2,
44
4)

(41
,24

0)
43
,68

4
0

D1
18
20

IC
T I

nfr
as
tru

ctu
re

70
0

0
(38

,33
6)

(38
,33

6)
37
,00

0
(1,

33
6)

(38
,33

6)
38
,33

6
0

D1
32
50

Co
rpo

rat
e T

ele
co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

5,9
00

0
4,8

55
4,8

55
4,8

55
4,8

55
(4,

85
5)

0
15
,90

0
0

(35
,92

5)
(35

,92
5)

37
,00

0
0

1,0
75

(35
,92

5)
0

(41
,24

0)
77
,16

5
0

TO
TA

L C
AS

T
56

2,4
00

34
2,5

00
33

5,2
29

(7,
27

1)
(12

,00
0)

0
(19

,27
1)

(7,
27

1)
0

(16
5,9

79
)

13
3,7

71
(39

,47
9)

WE
LL

BE
IN

G 
& 

CU
LT

UR
E

MA
NA

GE
ME

NT
MA

NA
GE

ME
NT

L1
72
00

Sp
ort

/Pl
ay
 D
ivis

ion
22
,80

0
0

(56
2)

(56
2)

(56
2)

(56
2)

(7,
73
3)

8,2
96

0
D3

88
50

Yo
uth

 Af
fai
rs

37
,00

0
43
,80

0
37
,29

7
(6,

50
3)

6,5
00

(3)
(6,

50
3)

(20
0)

(6,
70
3)

59
,80

0
43
,80

0
36
,73

5
(7,

06
5)

0
6,5

00
(56

5)
(7,

06
5)

(7,
73
3)

8,0
96

(6,
70
3)

SP
OR

TS
 AN

D 
PL

AY
L1
61
00

Ho
lid
ay
 R
ec
rea

tio
n P

rog
ram

me
98
,00

0
10
9,9

00
10
9,8

82
(18

)
(18

)
(18

)
(1,

53
0)

(1,
00
0)

(2,
54
7)

L1
73
00

Sp
ort

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t

74
,30

0
87
,20

0
86
,74

3
(45

7)
(45

7)
(45

7)
(1,

47
8)

(1,
00
0)

(2,
93
6)

L1
74
00

Su
pp
ort

 to
 Ex

ter
na
l S

po
rts

 O
rga

nis
ati
on
s

4,0
00

4,0
00

4,0
00

0
0

0
(20

0)
(20

0)
L1
75
00

He
alt
hy
 Li
fes

tyle
s

49
,00

0
56
,50

0
55
,64

0
(86

0)
(86

0)
(86

0)
(1,

59
0)

(1,
10
0)

(3,
55
0)

22
5,3

00
25
7,6

00
25
6,2

65
(1,

33
5)

(1,
33
5)

(1,
33
5)

(4,
59
8)

(3,
30
0)

(9,
23
3)

RE
CR

EA
TIO

N
L1
15
00

Le
isu

re@
1,2

79
,60

0
1,7

09
,90

0
1,6

23
,47

2
(86

,42
8)

10
,00

0
(76

,42
8)

(86
,42

8)
(32

,39
5)

(2,
75
6)

(12
1,5

79
)

L1
14
00

Sa
nd
for

d O
utd

oo
r P

oo
l

60
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1,2
80
,20

0
1,7

09
,90

0
1,6

23
,47

2
(86

,42
8)

10
,00

0
(76

,42
8)

(86
,42

8)
0

(32
,39

5)
(2,

75
6)

(12
1,5

79
)

AR
T G

AL
LE

RY
 AN

D 
MU

SE
UM

S &
 TO

UR
ISM

L2
35
00

Ar
ts 
Gr

an
t/E

na
bli
ng
 Fu

nd
s

18
4,4

00
19
1,0

00
18
8,7

34
(2,

26
6)

(2,
26
6)

(2,
26
6)

(2,
26
6)

L4
11
00

Ar
t G

all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

77
6,2

00
84
0,6

00
82
0,1

24
(20

,47
6)

20
,00

0
(47

6)
(20

,47
6)

(22
,70

9)
(1,

74
0)

(44
,92

5)
L3
11
00

To
uri

st 
Inf
orm

ati
on
 C
en
tre

31
0,7

00
36
1,1

00
35
6,3

16
(4,

78
4)

(4,
78
4)

(4,
78
4)

(25
,94

7)
(3,

35
0)

(34
,08

1)
L8
11
00

Ev
ery

ma
n T

he
atr

e
14
9,2

00
15
9,2

00
16
0,3

73
1,1

73
1,1

73
1,1

73
(20

0)
97
3

L8
12
00

Pla
yh
ou
se
 Th

ea
tre

7,7
00

19
,10

0
12
,70

3
(6,

39
7)

6,4
00

3
(6,

39
7)

(6,
39
7)

1,4
28
,20

0
1,5

71
,00

0
1,5

38
,25

1
(32

,74
9)

6,4
00

20
,00

0
(6,

34
9)

(32
,74

9)
0

(48
,65

6)
(5,

29
0)

(86
,69

5)

Pa
ge
 5

Page 41



AP
PE

ND
IX 

3
20

10
/11

20
10

/11
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
Tr

an
sfe

r
Re

qu
es

t fo
r

Ad
jus

ted
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
SO

RP
 /

Ad
jus

ted
RE

VE
NU

E O
UT

TU
RN

 20
10

/11
Or

igi
na

l
Re

vis
ed

20
10

/11
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to/

(fr
om

)
un

de
rsp

en
d

(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

IFR
S 2

01
0

IAS
 19

Se
RC

OP
(U

nd
er)

 /
Bu

dg
et 

(bb
k)

Bu
dg

et
Ac

tua
l

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
e

c/f
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ov

ers
pe

nd
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

EN
TE

RT
AIN

ME
NT

S
L2
11
00

To
wn

 H
all

52
9,7

00
64
6,6

00
61
6,0

53
(30

,54
7)

5,0
00

(25
,54

7)
(30

,54
7)

(53
,79

7)
(1,

14
0)

(85
,48

5)
L2
12
00

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pu

mp
 R
oo
m

95
,80

0
24
5,4

00
24
4,2

38
(1,

16
2)

(1,
16
2)

(1,
16
2)

(79
0)

(1,
95
2)

L2
14
00

Sta
nto

n R
oo
m

6,3
00

8,0
00

4,2
00

(3,
80
0)

(3,
80
0)

(3,
80
0)

(3,
80
0)

L2
45
00

Bo
x O

ffic
e

14
4,6

00
18
9,5

00
14
9,0

78
(40

,42
2)

(40
,42

2)
(40

,42
2)

(6,
42
9)

(46
,85

1)
L3
22
00

Ch
ris
tm

as
 in
 C
he
lte
nh
am

36
,90

0
44
,00

0
44
,57

6
57
6

57
6

57
6

(53
0)

46
L2
32
00

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 

Ar
ts 
Fe

sti
va
ls 
Ltd

30
1,2

00
25
8,0

00
25
8,0

00
0

0
0

(30
0)

(30
0)

1,1
14
,50

0
1,3

91
,50

0
1,3

16
,14

4
(75

,35
6)

0
5,0

00
(70

,35
6)

(75
,35

6)
0

(60
,22

6)
(2,

76
0)

(13
8,3

42
)

TO
TA

L W
EL

LB
EIN

G 
& 

CU
LT

UR
E

4,1
08

,00
0

4,9
73

,80
0

4,7
70

,86
7

(20
2,9

33
)

6,4
00

41
,50

0
(15

5,0
33

)
(20

2,9
33

)
0

(15
3,6

09
)

(6,
01

0)
(36

2,5
53

)

HU
MA

N 
RE

SO
UR

CE
S

D1
23
00

Pe
rso

nn
el 
& P

ay
rol

l
(97

,40
0)

0
(9,

42
9)

(9,
42
9)

9,5
00

71
(9,

42
9)

(18
,38

7)
27
,81

6
0

D2
12
60

He
alt
h &

 Sa
fet
y

77
,00

0
0

(1,
72
5)

(1,
72
5)

60
0

(1,
12
5)

(1,
72
5)

(4,
02
7)

5,7
52

0
D1

23
10

Co
rpo

rat
e T

rai
nin

g
(12

,80
0)

0
(12

6)
(12

6)
(12

6)
(12

6)
12
6

0
TO

TA
L H

UM
AN

 R
ES

OU
RC

ES
 &

 O
RG

. D
EV

EL
PM

T
(33

,20
0)

0
(11

,28
0)

(11
,28

0)
0

10
,10

0
(1,

18
0)

(11
,28

0)
0

(22
,41

4)
33

,69
4

0

OP
ER

AT
IO

NS

EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 M
AIN

TE
NA

NC
E

EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 M
AIN

TE
NA

NC
E

C2
31
00

Re
fus

e C
oll
ec
tio
n

1,2
25
,90

0
1,2

77
,40

0
1,2

45
,89

4
(31

,50
6)

40
,68

8
9,1

82
(31

,50
6)

(28
,97

1)
(9,

35
0)

(69
,82

7)
C2

31
10

Str
ee
t C

lea
ns
ing

92
9,1

00
82
4,8

00
84
2,8

34
18
,03

4
3,0

00
21
,03

4
18
,03

4
(21

,25
2)

(7,
60
0)

(10
,81

8)
C2

31
20

Re
cyc

lin
g C

en
tre

/C
A s

ite
28
0,1

00
28
6,0

00
25
5,5

56
(30

,44
4)

20
,00

0
10
,00

0
(44

4)
(30

,44
4)

(6,
44
2)

(2,
74
6)

(39
,63

1)
C2

31
25

Re
cyc

lin
g: 
Br
ing

 Sc
he
me

s
61
,40

0
55
,00

0
55
,02

0
20

20
20

(1,
42
5)

(2,
16
0)

(3,
56
5)

C2
31
30

Bu
ild
ing

 C
lea

nin
g

(10
,50

0)
8,5

00
9,1

34
63
4

63
4

63
4

(2,
00
5)

(1,
10
0)

(2,
47
1)

C2
31
40

Pu
bli
c C

on
ve
nie

nc
es

23
2,8

00
23
7,0

00
22
0,8

47
(16

,15
3)

15
,00

0
(1,

15
3)

(16
,15

3)
(3,

07
2)

(2,
80
0)

(22
,02

5)
C2

31
60

En
vir
on
me

nta
l M

ain
ten

an
ce
 D
ivis

ion
(10

,30
0)

0
(11

,87
8)

(11
,87

8)
10
,00

0
(1,

87
8)

(11
,87

8)
(18

,36
3)

30
,24

2
0

C2
31
80

Re
cyc

lin
g: 
Co

lle
cti
on
 Sc

he
me

s
32
8,8

00
45
9,5

00
33
3,9

88
(12

5,5
12
)

15
3,3

23
17
,00

0
44
,81

1
(12

5,5
12
)

(14
,32

2)
(6,

25
0)

(14
6,0

84
)

C2
31
90

Dr
y R

ec
ycl

ing
 (G

ard
en
 W

as
te)

40
2,2

00
29
3,3

00
14
0,8

73
(15

2,4
27
)

29
,70

0
45
,00

0
(77

,72
7)

(15
2,4

27
)

(8,
69
8)

(4,
40
0)

(16
5,5

26
)

C2
41
00

Fle
et 
Ma

int
en
an
ce

2,1
00

4,4
00

(5,
48
2)

(9,
88
2)

(9,
88
2)

(9,
88
2)

(8,
21
7)

(4,
94
4)

(23
,04

2)
C2

41
50

Fle
et 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt
(8,

60
0)

0
0

0
0

0
(3,

52
4)

3,5
24

0
E2

21
50

CB
C 
Hig

hw
ay
 W

ork
s

76
,50

0
86
,20

0
86
,54

4
34
4

34
4

34
4

(2,
15
0)

(1,
07
5)

(18
0)

(3,
06
1)

E3
35
00

W
int
er 

Ma
int
en
an
ce

3,8
00

0
0

0
0

0
(80

)
(80

)
3,5

13
,30

0
3,5

32
,10

0
3,1

73
,33

0
(35

8,7
70
)

24
6,7

11
97
,00

0
(15

,05
9)

(35
8,7

70
)

(2,
15
0)

(11
7,3

66
)

(7,
84
4)

(48
6,1

31
)

GR
EE

N 
EN

VIR
ON

ME
NT

B5
11
25

Pr
iva

te 
Tre

es
15
,80

0
50
,30

0
50
,30

0
0

0
0

(3,
10
0)

(3,
10
0)

C2
21
00

Gr
ee
n E

nv
iro

nm
en
t D

ivis
ion

(24
,50

0)
0

(36
,45

6)
(36

,45
6)

(36
,45

6)
(36

,45
6)

(26
,65

2)
63
,10

8
0

C2
21
05

Ho
us
ing

 Fo
rec

ou
rts

38
,30

0
(1,

00
0)

(94
0)

60
60

60
(5,

19
5)

(4,
10
0)

(9,
23
5)

C2
21
10

Pa
rks

 & 
Ga

rde
ns

1,0
35
,60

0
83
7,4

00
75
6,0

90
(81

,31
0)

5,0
00

(76
,31

0)
(81

,31
0)

83
,88

2
(10

,05
3)

(19
,28

8)
(26

,76
8)

C2
21
15

Gr
as
s V

erg
es

(8,
20
0)

0
0

0
0

0
(3,

06
2)

(3,
00
0)

(6,
06
2)

C2
21
20

Sp
ort

s &
 O
pe
n S

pa
ce
s

98
4,7

00
1,1

74
,60

0
1,1

65
,16

1
(9,

43
9)

5,0
00

14
,50

0
10
,06

1
(9,

43
9)

(11
,37

7)
(25

,22
2)

(46
,03

8)
C2

21
40

Nu
rse

ry
(9,

40
0)

(31
,60

0)
(28

,34
4)

3,2
56

3,2
56

3,2
56

(1,
77
8)

(2,
80
0)

(1,
32
1)

Pa
ge
 6

Page 42



AP
PE

ND
IX 

3
20

10
/11

20
10

/11
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
Tr

an
sfe

r
Re

qu
es

t fo
r

Ad
jus

ted
(U

nd
er)

/O
ve

rsp
en

d
SO

RP
 /

Ad
jus

ted
RE

VE
NU

E O
UT

TU
RN

 20
10

/11
Or

igi
na

l
Re

vis
ed

20
10

/11
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to/

(fr
om

)
un

de
rsp

en
d

(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

IFR
S 2

01
0

IAS
 19

Se
RC

OP
(U

nd
er)

 /
Bu

dg
et 

(bb
k)

Bu
dg

et
Ac

tua
l

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
e

c/f
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ov

ers
pe

nd
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

C2
21
41

L/S
erv

 M
isc

ell
an
eo
us
 W

ork
s

0
54
,50

0
56
,30

2
1,8

02
1,8

02
1,8

02
1,8

02
C2

21
90

All
otm

en
ts

93
,30

0
75
,80

0
82
,15

0
6,3

50
(6,

39
3)

(43
)

6,3
50

(5,
70
0)

65
0

C2
24
40

GC
C 
Sc

ho
ols

(31
,10

0)
(7,

00
0)

(32
,61

2)
(25

,61
2)

5,0
00

(20
,61

2)
(25

,61
2)

(4,
49
2)

(4,
90
0)

(35
,00

4)
E3

42
00

NP
R 
En

vir
on
me

nta
l M

ain
ten

an
ce

17
3,6

00
11
4,9

00
12
8,9

04
14
,00

4
14
,00

4
14
,00

4
14
,00

4
E6

31
00

Ce
me

ter
y &

 C
rem

ato
riu

m
(57

1,1
00
)

(65
0,2

00
)

(60
7,1

94
)

43
,00

6
(37

4)
42
,63

2
43
,00

6
(14

,31
6)

(2,
09
0)

26
,60

0
1,6

97
,00

0
1,6

17
,70

0
1,5

33
,36

3
(84

,33
7)

8,2
32

14
,50

0
(61

,60
5)

(84
,33

7)
83
,88

2
(76

,92
4)

(7,
09
2)

(84
,47

1)

PU
BL

IC
 PR

OT
EC

TIO
N

E7
11
50

Pu
bli
c P

rot
ec
tio
n D

ivis
ion

1,0
06
,60

0
0

(4,
27
4)

(4,
27

4)
(4,

27
4)

(4,
27
4)

(52
,25

9)
56
,53

2
0

A2
15
00

Lic
en
sin

g
13
,10

0
12
,10

0
11
,89

8
(20

2)
(20

2)
(20

2)
(16

,33
0)

(16
,53

2)
C2

42
00

Ab
an
do
ne
d C

ars
54
,40

0
21
,80

0
22
,86

5
1,0

65
1,0

65
1,0

65
(1,

20
0)

(13
5)

D3
45
10

Cr
im
e a

nd
 D
iso

rde
r

41
,70

0
27
7,3

00
27
8,5

65
1,2

65
1,6

55
2,9

20
1,2

65
(12

,43
3)

(11
,16

8)
E6

11
00

Fo
od
 Sa

fet
y

20
3,3

00
11
6,3

00
11
6,2

96
(4)

(4)
(4)

(5,
70
0)

(5,
70
4)

E6
12
00

He
alt
h &

 Sa
fet
y a

t W
ork

 Ac
t

18
9,7

00
79
,80

0
79
,80

0
0

0
0

(3,
90
0)

(3,
90
0)

E6
12
50

Po
llu
tio
n C

on
tro

l
14
3,5

00
13
9,5

00
13
6,3

22
(3,

17
9)

(3,
17
9)

(3,
17
9)

(6,
70
0)

(9,
87
9)

E6
13
00

An
im
al 
W
elf
are

56
,20

0
58
,00

0
48
,86

2
(9,

13
8)

(9,
13
8)

(9,
13
8)

(1,
91
0)

(11
,04

8)
E6

13
50

Pe
sts

 C
on
tro

l
85
,60

0
86
,70

0
76
,08

8
(10

,61
2)

(10
,61

2)
(10

,61
2)

(5,
31
0)

(15
,92

2)
E6

14
50

W
ate

r S
am

pli
ng

50
0

50
0

(10
4)

(60
4)

(60
4)

(60
4)

(60
4)

E6
15
00

CC
TV

/To
wn

 C
en
tre

 Sa
fet
y

12
7,1

00
13
1,5

00
13
4,5

97
3,0

97
3,0

97
3,0

97
(60

0)
2,4

97
E6

16
00

Co
nta

mi
na
ted

 La
nd

48
,00

0
29
,90

0
23
,90

7
(5,

99
3)

(5,
99
3)

(5,
99
3)

(1,
30
0)

(7,
29
3)

E6
16
50

Air
 Q
ua
lity

37
,30

0
39
,40

0
36
,23

5
(3,

16
5)

3,0
00

(16
5)

(3,
16
5)

(1,
70
0)

(4,
86
5)

2,0
07
,00

0
99
2,8

00
96
1,0

58
(31

,74
2)

1,6
55

3,0
00

(27
,08

7)
(31

,74
2)

0
(52

,25
9)

(55
1)

(84
,55

2)

TO
TA

L O
PE

RA
TIO

NS
7,2

17
,30

0
6,1

42
,60

0
5,6

67
,75

0
(47

4,8
50

)
25

6,5
99

11
4,5

00
(10

3,7
51

)
(47

4,8
50

)
81

,73
2

(24
6,5

50
)

(15
,48

7)
(65

5,1
54

)

PR
OG

RA
MM

E M
AIN

TE
NA

NC
E

81
1,0

00
75
1,6

00
51
0,1

79
(24

1,4
21
)

24
1,4

21
0

(24
1,4

21
)

(24
1,4

21
)

PR
OG

RA
MM

E M
AIN

TE
NA

NC
E

81
1,0

00
75
1,6

00
51
0,1

79
(24

1,4
21
)

24
1,4

21
0

(24
1,4

21
)

(24
1,4

21
)

SA
VIN

GS
 FR

OM
 PR

OC
UR

EM
EN

T
(12

0,0
00
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

SA
VIN

GS
 FR

OM
 VA

CA
NC

IES
(40

0,0
00
)

(50
,00

0)
0

50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0

BA
D 
DE

BT
S P

RO
VIS

IO
N

40
,00

0
40
,00

0
45
,62

6
5,6

26
5,6

26
5,6

26
5,6

26
 

TO
TA

L A
LL

 SE
RV

IC
ES

17
,90

8,7
50

20
,24

7,3
00

19
,18

5,0
19

(1,
06

2,2
81

)
63

8,8
64

35
1,2

00
(72

,21
7)

(1,
06

2,2
81

)
(10

4,6
20

)(
13

,22
2,0

00
)

(0)
(14

,38
8,9

00
)

Pa
ge
 7

Page 43



Page 44
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE

ND
IX 

3

PL
AN

NE
D 

M
AI

NT
EN

AN
CE

 P
RO

G
RA

M
M

E 
20

10
/1

1

Co
de

Sc
he

me
 

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Bu

dg
et

Re
vis

ed
Ou

ttu
rn

Un
de

r/(
Ov

er)
Co

mm
en

ts
Bo

ok
Bu

dg
et

 
sp

en
d o

n
 

 
20

10
/11

20
10

/11
20

10
/11

Pr
oje

cts
 

RE
VE

NU
E

PM
00

00
All

 pr
op

ert
ies

 (H
&S

)
5,0

00
0

0
0

PM
00

10
Ar
t G

alle
ry 

& M
us

eu
m

Pr
ov

isio
n o

f a
dd

itio
na

l w
alk

wa
ys,

 re
de

co
rat

ion
 of

 tim
be

r w
ind

ow
s/d

oo
rs,

 
red

ec
ora

tio
ns

 to
 ex

ter
na

l re
nd

er,
 re

pla
ce

me
nt 

of 
he

ati
ng

 co
nv

ec
tor

s/p
ipe

wo
rk

0
2,7

00
46

6
2,2

34

PM
00

20
To

wn
 H
all

Ex
ter

na
l re

de
co

rat
ion

s t
o w

ind
ow

s a
nd

 do
ors

, p
rov

ide
 pa

lisa
de

 fe
nc

ing
 to

 bi
n 

sto
re,

 re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

ligh
tin

g, 
rep

lac
em

en
t o

f v
en

tila
tio

n ,
 pr

ov
ide

 
de

mo
un

tab
le 

pa
rtit

ion
, re

de
co

rat
ion

 of
 wa

lls/
ce

ilin
g l

inin
gs

/m
ou

ldin
g, 

ref
urb

ish
me

nt 
of 

tim
be

r fl
oo

r, r
ep

lac
em

en
t o

f fl
oo

r fi
nis

he
s &

 ca
rpe

ts,
 

rep
lac

em
en

t o
f k

itch
en

 eq
uip

me
nt,

 re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

so
un

d e
qu

ipm
en

t.

83
,50

0
83

,50
0

80
,31

7
3,1

83

PM
00

30
Pit

tvi
lle 

Pu
mp

 R
oo

m
Ro

of 
rep

air
s, 

ge
ne

ral
 re

pa
irs

 to
 st

on
ew

ork
, u

pg
rad

e o
f c

on
su

me
r d

istr
ibu

tio
n 

bo
ard

s, 
an

nu
al 

ma
int

en
an

ce
 of

 "S
pa

r w
ate

r" p
um

ps
, c

on
se

qu
en

tia
l re

pa
irs

, 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

of 
cle

an
ing

 ch
an

de
lier

s, 
sa

nd
ing

 & 
re-

se
alin

g o
f B

allr
oo

m 
flo

ors
, 

sa
nd

ing
 & 

re-
se

alin
g o

f S
pa

r R
oo

m 
tim

be
r fl

oo
r, r

efu
rbi

sh
me

nt 
of 

dis
ab

led
 

toi
let

 fa
cili

tie
s, 

ref
urb

ish
me

nt 
of 

ca
ter

ing
 eq

uip
me

nt,
 re

fur
bis

hm
en

t o
f p

ort
ab

le 
sta

gin
g.

88
,70

0
11

5,7
00

98
,22

6
17

,47
4£

12
,50

0 r
eq

uir
ed

 in
 20

11
/12

 fo
r c

ha
ir s

tor
e a

lte
rat

ion
s, 

CC
TV

 up
gra

de
s a

nd
 

ch
an

de
lier

 re
pa

irs
.

PM
00

40
Re

cre
ati

on
 C
en

tre
Bir

d c
on

tro
l m

ea
su

res
, ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t c
he

ck
s, 

vo
lta

ge
 op

tim
ise

r, 
rep

lac
em

en
t o

f p
oo

l fil
ter

s, 
rep

lac
em

en
t o

f lig
hti

ng
/la

mp
s t

o m
ain

 po
ol,

 de
ep

 
cle

an
 of

 di
vin

g b
oa

rd 
tow

er,
 de

ep
 cle

an
 of

 du
ctin

g &
 wa

ll ti
ling

.

17
,00

0
37

,70
0

36
,31

0
1,3

90

PM
00

41
Pr
inc

e o
f W

ale
s S

tad
ium

An
nu

al 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 of
 tra

ck
 lig

hti
ng

, re
me

dia
l re

pa
irs

 to
 ru

nn
ing

 tra
ck
 

su
rfa

ce
, re

pla
ce

me
nt 

of 
bir

d g
ua

rds
.

29
,30

0
29

,30
0

32
,95

7
(3,

65
7)

PM
00

42
Pa

vili
on

s
Bu

rro
ws

 Pa
vili

on
 - R

ep
lac

em
en

t o
f "A

nd
rew

s" 
ga

s f
ire

d w
ate

r h
ea

ter
s P

rio
rs 

Fa
rm

 Pa
vili

on
 - E

me
rge

nc
y r

ep
air

 wo
rks

 & 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

    
 Be

ec
he

s P
av

ilio
n -

 
Ge

ne
ral

 re
fur

bis
hm

en
t.

15
8,0

00
47

,00
0

26
,75

6
20

,24
4£

11
,50

0 r
eq

uir
ed

 in
 20

11
/12

 ex
ter

na
l w

ork
s &

 bo
ath

ou
se

 re
pa

irs
. U

nd
ers

pe
nd

 
as

 a 
res

ult
 of

 jo
int

 pr
oje

ct 
wit

h c
om

mu
nit

y g
rou

p n
ot 

go
ing

 ah
ea

d d
ue

 to
 

wit
hd

raw
al 

of 
fun

din
g. 

PM
00

44
Pit

tvi
lle 

Cr
ick

et 
Ha

ll
Re

pla
ce

me
nt 

Sp
ort

s H
all 

co
ve

rin
g

0
12

,20
0

6,3
03

5,8
97

PM
00

60
De

po
t

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

win
do

w/d
oo

rs,
 re

pla
ce

me
nt 

of 
wir

ing
 & 

fitt
ing

s, 
up

gra
de

 to
 

ex
ter

na
l se

cu
rity

 al
arm

 sy
ste

m,
 re

pla
ce

me
nt 

ce
ntr

al 
fue

l lin
e

30
,00

0
33

,00
0

34
,96

5
(1,

96
5)

PM
00

70
Mu

nic
ipa

l O
ffic

e
Ge

ne
ral

 re
pa

irs
 to

 an
y e

lem
en

t.
20

,00
0

10
,00

0
7,1

80
2,8

20

PM
00

80
Ce

me
ter

y
Ge

ne
ral

 re
pa

irs
 & 

red
ec

ora
tio

ns
, in

sta
llat

ion
 of

 ne
w C

CT
V s

yst
em

, g
en

era
l 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 ac
ce

ss
.

29
,50

0
29

,50
0

14
,79

5
14

,70
5U

nd
ers

pe
nd

 du
e t

o r
e-p

rio
riti

sa
tio

n o
f w

ork
s.

PM
00

81
Cr

em
ato

riu
m

Ma
jor

 re
pa

irs
 to

 cr
em

ato
rs,

 pr
ec

on
tra

ct 
wo

rks
 fo

r fu
rna

ce
 eq

uip
me

nt 
rep

lac
em

en
t.

50
,00

0
50

,00
0

30
,93

8
19

,06
2U

nd
ers

pe
nd

 du
e t

o c
rem

ato
r w

ork
s d

ela
ye

d a
s a

 re
su

lt o
f p

roc
ure

me
nt 

co
mp

lex
itie

s.
PM

00
90

Mi
sc
ella

ne
ou

s P
rop

ert
ies

Mo
ntp

elli
er 

Ga
rde

ns
 Sh

elt
er 

- re
pa

irs
 to

 pi
tch

ed
 ro

of 
    

    
    

    
    

   S
an

dfo
rd 

Pa
rk 

Of
fice

s -
 re

pla
ce

me
nt 

of 
fla

t ro
of 

co
ve

rin
gs

, re
de

co
rat

ion
s t

o f
ram

es
 & 

sill
s  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

 Be
rke

ley
 M

ew
s -

 El
ec

tric
al 

tes
tin

g &
 co

ns
eq

ue
nti

al 
rep

air
s, 

co
mm

un
al 

are
as

 re
de

co
rat

ion
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
 

55
 Ba

th 
Ro

ad
 - r

ed
ec

ora
tio

ns
 to

 fra
me

s &
 sil

ls, 
red

ec
ora

tio
ns

 of
 do

ors
, 

red
ec

ora
tio

ns
 to

 re
nd

er 
& c

oa
tin

gs

90
,80

0
90

,80
0

58
,22

5
32

,57
5B

ala
nc

e r
eq

uir
ed

 in
 20

11
/12

 fo
r p

os
tpo

ne
d w

ork
s a

t B
erk

ele
y M

ew
s.

PM
00

91
Ev

ery
ma

n T
he

atr
e

Ge
ne

ral
 m

ain
ten

an
ce

 & 
rep

air
s.

35
,00

0
35

,00
0

8,6
40

26
,36

0£
26

,00
0 r

eq
uir

ed
 in

 20
11

/12
 fo

r jo
int

 ro
of 

rep
air

s.
PM

00
92

Ce
ntr

al 
Nu

rse
ry

Re
pa

irs
 an

d r
ep

oin
tin

g t
o f

ree
 st

an
din

g s
tru

ctu
res

.
46

,70
0

46
,70

0
15

,84
2

30
,85

8£
24

,00
0 r

eq
uir

ed
 in

 20
11

/12
 fo

r e
lec

tric
al 

rew
ire

. U
nd

ers
pe

nd
 du

e t
o w

ork
s p

ut 
on

 ho
ld 

en
din

g o
utc

om
e o

f s
tra

teg
ic a

ss
et 

rev
iew

. 
PM

00
99

Sta
tue

s &
 M

em
ori

als
Pr
ec

on
tra

ct 
wo

rks
 fo

r m
em

ori
al 

res
tor

ati
on

s.
0

1,0
00

2,7
33

(1,
73

3)
PM

01
20

Ge
ne

ral
 C
ar 

Pa
rks

Ro
dn

ey
 R
oa

d C
P -

  p
atc

h r
ep

air
s t

o m
ac

ad
am

 su
rfa

ce
.

8,0
00

8,0
00

5,2
50

2,7
50

PM
01

31
Re

ge
nt 

Ar
ca

de
 C
ar 

Pa
rk

Re
de

co
rat

ion
 an

d r
ep

air
s t

o a
rnc

o b
arr

ier
s/r

aili
ng

s/b
olla

rds
.

6,5
00

6,5
00

5,4
17

1,0
83

PM
01

50
Br
idg

es
Br
ick

 re
pla

ce
me

nt 
an

d r
ep

air
 to

 H
on

ey
bo

urn
e L

ine
.

98
,00

0
98

,00
0

37
,74

1
60

,25
9U

nd
ers

pe
nd

 du
e t

o o
rig

ina
l b

ud
ge

t b
ein

g s
et 

fro
m 

es
tim

ate
s o

f c
os

ts 
by

 br
idg

e 
co

ns
ult

an
ts.

 Su
bs

eq
ue

nt 
co

mp
eti

tiv
e t

en
de

rin
g p

roc
ed

ure
s r

es
ult

ed
 in

 
su

bs
tan

tia
l co

st 
sa

vin
gs

.

Pa
ge

 8

Page 45



AP
PE

ND
IX 

3

PL
AN

NE
D 

M
AI

NT
EN

AN
CE

 P
RO

G
RA

M
M

E 
20

10
/1

1

Co
de

Sc
he

me
 

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Bu

dg
et

Re
vis

ed
Ou

ttu
rn

Un
de

r/(
Ov

er)
Co

mm
en

ts
Bo

ok
Bu

dg
et

 
sp

en
d o

n
 

 
20

10
/11

20
10

/11
20

10
/11

Pr
oje

cts
 

PM
01

60
Pu

blic
 To

ilet
s

Ge
ne

ral
 re

pa
irs

 an
d r

ed
ec

ora
tio

ns
, c

ycl
ica

l w
irin

g a
nd

 re
pa

ir w
ork

.
12

,50
0

15
,00

0
7,1

18
7,8

82
Se

ve
ral

 sit
es

 clo
se

d r
es

ult
ing

 in
 sa

vin
gs

.
TO

TA
L R

EV
EN

UE
 PR

OG
RA

MM
ED

 
MA

IN
TE

NA
NC

E
81

1,0
00

75
1,6

00
51

0,1
79

24
1,4

21

CA
PI

TA
L

PM
00

81
Cr

em
ato

riu
m

75
0,0

00
20

0,0
00

0
20

0,0
00

Pr
oje

ct 
de

lay
ed

 un
til 2

01
1/1

2. 
 Fu

ll b
ud

ge
t w

ill b
e r

eq
uir

ed
 in

 fo
rth

co
mi

ng
 ye

ar 
as

 ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
pla

nn
ed

 an
d p

roc
ure

me
nt 

pro
ce

ss
 co

mp
let

e.
TO

TA
L C

AP
ITA

L P
RO

GR
AM

ME
D 

MA
IN

TE
NA

NC
E

75
0,0

00
20

0,0
00

0
20

0,0
00

TO
TA

L P
RO

GR
AM

ME
D 

MA
IN

TE
NA

NC
E

1,5
61

,00
0

95
1,6

00
51

0,1
79

44
1,4

21

* T
he

 va
ria

nc
e, 

aft
er 

ca
rry

 fo
rw

ard
 re

qu
es

ts,
 wi

ll b
e r

eta
ine

d i
n t

he
 Pr

og
ram

me
 M

ain
ten

an
ce

 R
es

erv
e a

nd
 al

loc
ate

d t
o f

utu
re 

ye
ars

 pr
og

ram
me

s.

Pa
ge

 9

Page 46



AP
PE

ND
IX 

4

Ca
pit

al 
Ch

arg
es

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

OR
IG
IN
AL

RE
VIS

ED
AC

TU
AL

VA
RI
AN

CE
NO

TE
£

£
£

£
Mi
nim

um
 R
ev
en
ue
 Pr

ov
isio

n (
MR

P)
49
8,6

00
87
5,1

00
87
5,1

12
12

1
De

bt 
Re

de
mp

tio
n P

rem
ium

s
22
0,7

00
14
5,7

00
14
5,5

94
(10

6)
2

De
pre

cia
tio
n

(1,
85
5,3

00
)

(2,
75
3,7

00
)(

2,7
53
,67

2)
28

3
Am

ort
isa

tio
n

(65
,80

0)
(10

5,8
00
)

(10
5,8

75
)

(75
)

4
Go

ve
rnm

en
t G

ran
ts 
/ C

ap
ita
l C

on
trib

uti
on
s D

efe
rre

d
44
4,2

00
0

0
0

5
Ca

pit
al 
Ch

arg
es

(75
7,6

00
)

(1,
83
8,7

00
)(

1,8
38
,84

1)
(14

1)

NO
TE

1P
res

cri
be
d %

 re
qu
ire
d t
o b

e s
et 
as
ide

 to
 re

pa
y d

eb
t a
s s

et 
in 
the

 M
RP

 Po
licy

2A
mo

rtis
ed
 co

st 
of 

de
bt 
re-

sc
he
du
lin
g

3D
ep
rec

iat
ion

 - d
ep
rec

ati
on
 ch

arg
ed
 on

 th
e C

ou
nc
il's

 ta
ng
ibl
e f

ixe
d a

ss
ets

4A
mo

rtis
ati
on
 - a

mo
rtis

ati
on
 ch

arg
ed
 on

 th
e C

ou
nc
il's

 in
tan

gib
le 
fix
ed
 as

se
ts

5C
ap
ita
l G

ran
ts 
an
d C

on
trib

uti
on
s D

efe
rre

d -
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o o

ffs
et 
de
pre

cia
tio
n a

nd
 am

ort
isa

tio
n c

ha
rge

s
on
 th
os
e a

ss
ets

 fin
an
ce
d f

rom
 G
ov
ern

me
nt 
Gr

an
ts 
an
d e

xte
rna

l c
on
trib

uti
on
s

As
 a 
res

ult
 of

 IF
RS

 (In
ter

na
tio
na
l F
ina

nc
ial
 R
ep
ort

ing
 St

an
da
rds

) th
is 
is 
no
 lo
ng
er 

req
uir
ed
 fro

m 
1s
t A

pri
l 2
01
0

Page 47



Page 48
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE
ND

IX 
5

Int
ere

st 
an

d I
nv

es
tm

en
t In

co
me

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

OR
IG
IN
AL

RE
VIS

ED
AC

TU
AL

VA
RI
AN

CE
NO

TE
£

£
£

£
Ex
ter
na
l In
ter
es
t P
ay
ab
le

1,2
34
,30
0

1,2
12
,60
0

1,2
09
,97
6

(2,
62
4)

1
HR

A I
tem

 8 
Cr
ed
it

54
,70
0

74
,20
0

83
,22
0

9,0
20

2
Ex
ter
na
l In
ter
es
t re
ce
ive
d

(24
3,2
00
)

(22
1,1
00
)

(22
8,5
77
)

(7,
47
7)

3
Int
ere
st 
du
e f
rom

 Ic
ela
nd
ic 
ba
nk
s

0
(33
1,5
00
)

(30
3,2
67
)

28
,23
3

4
Ice
lan
dic
 Ba

nk
s i
mp
air
me
nt

0
(23
0,0
00
)

(2,
71
4,3
28
)

(2,
48
4,3
28
)

5
HR

A I
tem

 8 
De
bit

(75
2,2
00
)

(57
6,9
00
)

(52
4,9
56
)

51
,94
4

6
Int

ere
st 

an
d I

nv
es
tm

en
t In

co
me

29
3,6

00
(72

,70
0)

(2,
47
7,9

32
)

(2,
40
5,2

32
)

NO
TE

1E
xte
rna
l in
ter
es
t p
ay
ab
le 
- in
ter
es
t p
aid
 on
 th
e C

ou
nc
il's
 tre
as
ury
 m
an
ag
em
en
t / 
ca
sh
flo
w 
ac
tiv
ity

2I
tem

 8 
cre
dit
 - c
on
trib
uti
on
 to
 th
e H

ou
sin
g R

ev
en
ue
 Ac

co
un
t (H

RA
) in
 re
sp
ec
t o
f d
isc
ou
nt 
rec
eiv
ed
 fro

m 
de
bt 
re-
sc
he
du
lin
g a
nd
 in
ter
es
t re
ce
iva
ble

on
 ca
sh
 ba
lan
ce
s h
eld
 by
 th
e H

RA
3I
nte
res
t e
arn
ed
 on
 C
ou
nc
il's
 fu
nd
s a
nd
 tre
as
ury
 m
an
ag
em
en
t / 
ca
sh
flo
w 
ac
tiv
ity

4I
nte
res
t d
ue
 in
 ye
ar 
fro
m 
Ice
lan
dic
 ba
nk
s

5I
mp
air
me
nt 
of 
Ice
lan
dic
 ba
nk
s d
ep
os
its
 cr
ed
it

6I
tem

 8 
de
bit
 - c
on
trib
uti
on
 fro

m 
the
 H
ou
sin
g R

ev
en
ue
 Ac

co
un
t in
 re
sp
ec
t o
f p
rem

ium
 in
cu
rre
d f
rom

 de
bt 
re-
sc
he
du
lin
g a
nd
 de
bt 
ch
arg
es

Page 49



Page 50
This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 6  

1 

 
 
      SIGNIFICANT VARIANCES IN REVENUE OUTTURN FOR 2010/11 
                                     (OVER £10,000) BY SERVICE 
 
 
Community Services 
 
There is an overspend within the Community Services’ service of £185,300 made up 
as follows:- 
 
Disabled facilities grants 
In accordance with the requirements of the 2010 Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) revenue expenditure funded from 
capital under statute has been charged direct to the Income and Expenditure 
Account for the year. These total £186,300 in 2010/11 which are reflected in the 
management accounts as an overspend. The accounting treatment is such that these 
entries are funded from capital reserves and capital receipts and are reversed in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. There is therefore no effect on the overall council 
position or the council tax payer for the year.       
 
There are therefore no significant variances in the Community Services operational 
budgets for 2010/11.   
 
 
Wellbeing & Culture 
 
There is a net underspend within the Wellbeing & Culture service of £202,900 
including the following significant variances:- 
 
leisure@ cheltenham 
There is a net underspend in leisure@ budgets of £86,400, including the following 
main variances- 
 
There is a net underspend in employee costs of £17,600 due to the management of 
vacant posts and staff restructuring in the second half of the financial year.  A request 
has been made for £5,000 of this underspend to be carried forward, to cover the 
backfilling costs associated with planned systems thinking work within leisure @ in 
2011/12. 
 
There is a net underspend of £26,300 in premises budgets, including £16,200 in the 
NNDR budget due to an unexpected refund relating to 2008, an underspend in the 
utility budgets of £18,000 and an overspend in response maintenance budgets of 
£6,400 for the year.  
 
There is an underspend of £23,500 in supplies and services budgets, including 
£25,000 contingency budget which has not been drawn upon, and has been deleted 
as part of the 2011/12 approved budget. There is also an underspend of £9,200 in 
the hire of outside services budget, including £5,000 set aside to fund a feasibility 
study on options for the future provision of new leisure facilities. This feasibility study 
is expected to be undertaken in 2011/12 and a request has been made to carry the 
£5,000 budget forward for this purpose. 
 
Leisure@ income has continued to grow and it is pleasing to report that there is an 
over-achievement of income of £16,400 at the year end.  It should be noted that this 

Page 51



APPENDIX 6  

2 

is in addition to the £30,000 additional income that was incorporated into the revised 
budget 2010/11 and original budget 2011/12 due to increased activity at that time. 
 
Art Gallery & Museum 
There is a net underspend of £20,500 in the Art Gallery & Museum including a saving 
of £17,400 in employee costs due to the management of long term sick leave and 
staff vacancies arising during the latter part of the year.  
 
Town Hall 
There is an under spend of £30,500 to report for the Town Hall in 2010/11. Employee 
costs generated a saving of £16,100 through the management of casual staff at 
supporting events.  
Income generated a surplus of £14,100 against revised income targets for 2010/11. 
This was mainly due to the success of attracting big star names and having sell out 
audiences and surplus programme advertising income. A carry forward of £5,000 for 
a committed promotion brochure in 2011/12 has been agreed by the S151 Officer.   
 
Box Office 
There is an under spend of £40,400 to report on the Box Office for 2010/11. 
Employee costs have generated a saving of £18,600 due to the freeze on vacant 
posts put into place in the latter part of the financial year. A small saving of £3,100 
was achieved on some supplies and services expenditure. 
Income from ticket commission and telephone calls helped achieve a surplus of 
£18,700 against target as many of the Town Hall events whether held by CBC or by 
outside agents had surpassed ticket sale expectations. 
 
 
Assistant Chief Executive  
There is a net underspend within the Assistant Chief Executive service of £179,400 
including the following significant variances:- 
 
Neighbourhood Management Services 
There is an under spend of £14,800 for 2010/11 as some of the grant payments to 
support community coordination of neighbourhood management meetings will be 
paid over in instalments during 2011/12. A carry forward request for the full amount 
has been agreed by the S151 Officer under delegated powers. 
 
Cheltenham Strategy Partnership 
There is an under spend of £11,200 to report for 2010/11. £7,200 has been carried 
forward after agreement by the S151 Officer for commitments in 2011/12 for the 
children and young people’s partnership, to support the Inspiring Families project. A 
further carry forward of £4,500 for the installation of external LED security lighting at 
the depot has been approved by the S151 Officer. This project was delayed due to 
difficulties with initial suppliers, which has resulted in the need to re-source the lamps 
to another supplier. 
 
Community Pride 
There is an under spend of £21,400 which is to be carried forward to 2011/12 for 
projects which were approved in July 2010. The grant applicants have twelve months 
to spend their allocation of grant. 
Business & Economic Development 
There is an under spend of £45,600 which is made up of £35,500 under spend of 

Page 52



APPENDIX 6  

3 

LABGI funding for projects which were cancelled or did not go ahead, such as 
signage at Kingsditch Trading Estate, and £10,100 savings on staff turnover and 
general supplies and services. 
 
Legal Services 
This service, which now operates under a shared service arrangement with 
Tewkesbury BC, has under spent compared to the revised budget by £10,200 and 
has been appropriated to an earmarked reserve to cover the restructuring costs in 
2011.    
 
Former employee dispute 
There is a net credit balance of £25,500 in respect of the dispute with the former 
managing director. A legal claims provision was made as part of the 2009/10 
accounts to cover the estimated settlement of costs awarded in the 2009 court case.  
This settlement has now been reached and the unused provision of £28,400 has 
been transferred back to revenue.  The net amount of £25,500 has been transferred 
back to the general reserve, originally used to fund the dispute expenditure. 
 
Elections 
There is a net under spend of £10,500 for 2010/11 due to savings in the cost of 
elections and electoral registration for the year. The under spend has been 
transferred back into the elections reserve, which will be drawn upon to fund any 
non-reimbursable costs of the AV Referendum and any unexpected future elections. 
 
Democratic and Civic Services 
There is a net under spend of £24,200 in democratic and civic service budgets for the 
year, made up of £14,100 under spend in members allowances, training and 
conference fees, an under spend of £8,000 within the DSU with savings made within 
supplies and services expenditure and £2,100 under spend in various civic expenses 
and events due to a reduction in expenditure. 
 

 
Human Resources (HR) 
 
There is an under spend within HR of £11,300 including the following significant 
variances:- 
 
Human Resources 
There is an under spend on Human Resources of £9,400 mainly from back funding 
income received under the gifting arrangements of the GO Programme.  All of this is 
requested to be carried forward to 2011/12; it will be used to support the service 
resilience of the payroll function, which has been highlighted on the Corporate Risk 
Register as an area of concern. 
Health & Safety 
An underspend on training and equipment within Health & Safety has left £1,700 in 
2010/11.  A carry forward request for £600 will be requested to fund defibrillator 
training for officers, to ensure the council meets its Health & Safety requirements. 
 

 Customer Access & Service Transformation (CAST) 
 

There is a net under spend within Customer Access and Service Transformation 
(CAST) of £7,200, including the following significant variances: 
Housing and council tax benefits  

Page 53



APPENDIX 6  

4 

The cost of rent allowances, rent rebates and council tax benefits paid out is wholly 
funded by government subsidy.  In addition, subsidy is also paid on overpayments 
made due to changes in claimant’s circumstances (i.e. not due to local authority 
error).  The unpredictability of this demand-led service, particularly in the level of 
overpayments, makes the net cost of this service difficult to estimate.   
The final outturn shows a net over spend of £72,200 on rent allowances and £4,500 
on Council tax benefits, however rent rebates are under spent by £25,400.  Overall 
the net cost for all three types of benefit was -£157,513, compared to a revised 
budget of -£208,800, an ‘over spend’ of £51,300.  However, almost all of this over 
spend results from an additional £50,000 transferred to the bad debts provision to 
cover potential uncollectible overpayments.   
A review was undertaken during the year of the bad debts provision for 
overpayments, which are recovered either from ongoing benefit or (if the claimant is 
no longer on benefit), by debtors invoice.  Given the increasing level of overpayments 
and write offs and the uncertainty over how much may be able to be recovered in 
future from ongoing benefit, it was felt prudent to increase the provision to cover 
uncollectible debts.  The additional contributions increase the provision as a 
proportion of debt outstanding by 12% (from 30% to 42%).  Further increased 
contributions will need to be sought in future years to increase the provision to a 
prudent level of 50% or more.  
The Benefits administration cost centre was under spent by £9,700, mainly arising 
from staff turnover since the revised budget was prepared in November 2010. 
Council Tax and Business Rates Collection – employee costs 
There is a net under spend of £8,700 on these budgets, again made up mainly from 
savings arising from staff turnover since the revised budget was prepared in 
November 2010. 
 
Business Rates – Discretionary Rate Relief 
This £37,100 budget, made up of £12,100 ongoing base budget plus £25,000 one-off 
for hardship relief carried forward from 2009/10 (from LABGI funds), is under spent 
by £18,800.  Since the spending of the one-off budget is dependant on applicants 
submitting claims and on these claims meeting the approved criteria, it is not known if 
and when the remaining budget will be spent.  It is recommended therefore that the 
under spend is not carried forward at this stage but that the cost of any successful 
claims be funded from the revised budget if and when required. 
CAST Management 
Redundancy costs have resulted in an over spend against this budget.  This has 
been offset by an under spend on supplies and services of £4,100 netting the over 
spend position to £23,500. 
Procurement  
This budget is over spent by £3,600 due to additional salary payments, which have 
been incurred due to additional work commitments and reduced resource capacity in 
the team arising from maternity and sickness absence.   
ICT Infrastructure and Corporate Telecommunications 
There is an under spend in the ICT and ICT infrastructure budgets of £40,800, due 
mainly to fewer hardware and software purchases, delayed due to resources being 
diverted to other projects and in ensuring all purchases meet government connect 
compliance.  The under spend is offset by an over spend on the corporate 

Page 54



APPENDIX 6  

5 

telecommunications budget of £4,800, due partly to the need for additional telecom 
lines for business continuity purposes.  The under spend on ICT Hardware of 
£37,000 has been transferred to the ICT renewals and replacement reserve, to fund 
the hardware and software purchases delayed to 2011/12.  The reserve exists to 
‘smooth out’ the cost of hardware and software renewals, so that they do not fall 
unevenly over financial years. 
Customer & Support Services 
There is an under spend of £12,400 in customer services budgets, made up as 
follows:- 
 
There is an under spend of £3,000 across supplies and services budgets, including a 
saving of £1,000 from reducing the courier service from 5 to 3 collections per week 
since December 2010.   
 
There is an under spend in employees budgets of £9,400 from savings in Customer 
& Support Services from staff turnover and maternity leave, including £3,600 in Car 
Park Income Collection and Custodians overtime and temporary staff budgets. 

  
 Financial Services 

 
There is a net underspend within Financial Services of £24,200, made up of the 
following significant variances: 
 
Financial services division 
There is a net under spend of £21,900 on this cost centre, partly from supplies and 
services but mainly from income received under the ‘gifting arrangements’ for the GO 
Partnership with the balance relating to prudent control of supplies and services.  A 
carry forward request of £11,700 will be made to continue back-filling members of 
staff that have been seconded to the GO Programme in lieu of the income received 
from other members of the GO Partnership. 
 
Treasury Management  
There is an under spend of £8,500 on Treasury Management, mainly from a net 
effect of an over spend on the cost of e-payments totalling £6,700 and an under 
spend of £12,000 on consultancy and legal fees relating to recovery of the Icelandic 
bank investments.  Further expenditure on the legal costs in respect of Icelandic 
banks is anticipated in 2011/12, and so a carry forward request will be requested for 
the £12,000 under spend.  The Cabinet approved £50,000 to cover the legal and 
consultancy costs, of which £12,000 remains unspent. 
 
Gloucestershire Airport 
This cost centre is over spent by a net £6,600 as a result of additional legal costs 
incurred during 2010/11 due to the delays and complexities of the Runway Safety 
Project. 
 

  
 Business Change 
 

The Business Change budgets are under spent by a net £108,300 made up of the 
following significant variances: 

 
Government Connect 
The budget for this in 2010/11 was £49,500, comprising an annual £13,000 (base 

Page 55



APPENDIX 6  

6 

budget) plus £36,500 carried forward from 2008/09 and 2009/10.  Although work has 
been continuing on Government Connect, this budget is under spent by £5,800, due 
to the need to ensure all equipment purchases comply with the new standard.  Given 
the need to continue with this essential work, a carry forward request for £5,800 will 
be put forward. 
Working Flexibly 
This budget is under spent by £18,400. It is the intention of the Working Flexibly 
project to procure a replacement access gateway in 2011/12. The gateway acts as 
the secure 'door' which customers face before access is given to the Citrix remote 
access infrastructure.   A request will therefore be made to carry forward the full 
amount of the under spend to support the business change initiative and ensure 
project delivery. 
 
Revenues & Benefits Sourcing Strategy 
The approved operational budget for this initiative is £100,000 of which £33,300 has 
been spent in the current year.  Further work on a potential shared service with one 
of the GO partners is ongoing with a business case being worked upon, much of 
which is dependent on the progress of the GO Programme.  A request will be made 
to carry forward the balance of the budget £66,700 to support the work required in 
developing a future shared service, subject to formal approval from the Senior 
Leadership Team (SLT). 
 
Customer Services Sourcing Strategy 
Systems Thinking work within Customer Services continues, with the balance of 
£2,500 being requested for use in 2011/12 to complete the works outstanding. 
 
ICT Sourcing Strategy 
A budget of £10,000 was allocated for Systems Thinking work within ICT.  £500 was 
spent in delivering this during 2010/11, and the balance of £9,500 will be requested 
to be carry forward to 2011/12 to continue work in changing business processes in 
light of the GO Programme. 
 
Built Environment 
There is a net overspend within the Built Environment service of £87,400, including 
the following significant variances:- 
 
Elderly Transport 
There is an overspend of £21,900 on this cost centre as a result of additional 
payments to Other Operators (excluding Stagecoach) resulting from increased 
passenger journeys and additional average fares charged during 2010/11. 
 
Car Parking – Off Street 
This cost centre is overspent by £76,900. This is represented by savings of £20,000 
on NNDR payments, £20,000 on Equipment purchase and maintenance. Additional 
costs of £30,000 on security payments at Regent Arcade and £20,000 on public 
related insurance costs. Net expenditure is therefore overspent by £10,000. Income 
is under recovered by £66,900 reflecting the continued decline in ticket sales and 
severe winter weather of 2010/11. 
 
Development Control 
The cost centre is overspent by £32,400. This is represented by savings of £21,700 
on legal costs and advertising with an under recovery in income of £54,100. Pre-
planning applications have exceeded budget by £13,000, however, planning fee 
income is under recovered by £67,100. 

Page 56



APPENDIX 6  

7 

 
Civic Pride 
There has been additional expenditure incurred of £23,200 on this cost centre due to 
increased expenditure on consultants associated with development schemes within 
the Civic Pride program. This has been financed by an additional contribution of 
£23,200 from the Civic Pride reserve. 
 
Building Control 
This cost centre is under spent by £32,400 represented by a £17,000 under spend on 
supplies and services of which £8,500 is attributable to Tewkesbury BC. Cheltenham 
BC have a £15,400 over recovery of fee income. 
 
Built Environment Overhead A/c 
This cost centre is under spent by £28,000 which is represented by a saving of 
£20,000 on employee costs, a £10,000 saving on supplies and services on ICT costs 
and a £2,000 under recovery of income. 
 
Municipal Offices 
This cost centre is under spent by £16,200 represented by savings on operational 
maintenance budgets. £5,000 of this under spend is requested to be carried forward 
to fund the removal of Christmas Lights control boxes from lamp columns in the 
Promenade. 
 
Miscellaneous Properties 
There is an overspend of £31,000 on this cost centre. This is represented by a saving 
of £13,000 on operational maintenance costs. Supplies and Services include £23,000 
of capital expenditure reclassified as revenue which has been funded from the capital 
reserve, £44,000 of additional insurance costs relating to claims against CBC 
properties and a saving of £4,000 on other costs. Income is over recovered by 
£19,000 due to additional rental leases. 
 
Operations 
There is a net underspend within the Operations service of £474,850, including the 
following significant variances:- 
 
Public Protection - Pest Control  
There is a net underspend of £10,600 in pest control budgets, made up of £3,000 
saving in transport budgets, £2,700 in the seagull protection budget, £3,000 in other 
supplies and services budgets and £1,700 surplus income on the fees for services 
budget.  
 
Refuse Collection 
This cost centre is under spent by £31,500. This is due to additional expenditure on 
agency labour of £18,000, a saving of £8,000 on transport, a £40,000 saving on 
residual bins which has been appropriated back to reserves to fund this expenditure 
in 2011/12 and an £8,000 saving on other supplies costs. Income is under recovered 
by £6,500. 
 
Street Cleaning 
There is an overspend on this cost centre of £18,000. Additional expenditure of 
£32,000 is represented by overtime payments to employees and agency labour 
costs. Transport expenditure is under spent by £8,000 following slippage in the 
vehicle replacement program of which £3,000 has been appropriated to reserves to 
fund vehicle acquisitions in 2011/12. Income is over recovered by £6,000 due to 
additional receipts from winter snow clearing activities in 2010/11. 

Page 57



APPENDIX 6  

8 

 
Recycling Centre/CA Site 
This cost centre is under spent by £30,400. £20,000 of this is due to slippage in the 
annual vehicle replacement program and this underspend has been appropriated to 
reserves to meet the future costs of vehicle replacements. £10,000 of the under 
spend is due to slippage in the improvement program to the CA Site infrastructure 
and this is requested to be carried forward to fund the improvements works to be 
undertaken in 2011/12. 
 
Public Conveniences 
There is an under spend on this cost centre of £16,200. This is due to savings on 
operational maintenance. £15,000 of this under spend is requested to be carried 
forward to fund the continued operation of the Bath Road toilet facility in 2011/12. 
 
Environmental Maintenance overhead A/c 
This cost centre is under spent by £11,900. This is represented by a saving of £4,900 
on supplies and services on ICT expenditure. Additional income of £7,000 has been 
generated due to increased rebate payments for Agency Labour. £10,000 of the cost 
centre underspend is requested to be carried forward into 2011/12 to fund Admin 
support to support the customer services team based at Swindon Road to deal with 
customer enquiries relating to the introduction of the new recycling schemes 
 
Recycling Collection Schemes 
There is an under spend on this cost centre of £125,500. This is represented by a 
£55,000 overspend on employee costs following the introduction of the new recycling 
initiatives and a saving of £155,000 on transport costs due to a change in policy 
regarding the financing on fleet vehicle acquisitions moving from leasing to prudential 
borrowing. Supplies and services are under spent by £38,000 due to a £6,000 saving 
on equipment purchases, equipment leases of £10,000, advertising of £6,000 and 
other £16,000. Income is under recovered by £12,500. Contributions to reserves to 
fund fleet vehicle and equipment acquisitions in 2011/12 amount to £142,800. 
£17,000 is requested to be carried forward into 2011/12 to fund bringing forward the 
full roll-out of the plastic bottle collection scheme across the Borough 
 
Garden Waste Recycling Scheme 
The under spend on this cost centre is £152,400 in 2010/11. There is an overspend 
of £24,000 on employee costs and £22,000 on transport costs reflecting the 
additional costs incurred on rolling out the new garden waste service. Supplies and 
Services are under spent due to a saving of £20,000 identified in the revised budget 
for the acquisition of composters, £10,000 for equipment leases and £42,000 for the 
hire of outside services. The £20,000 underspend is transferred to reserves to fund 
the purchase of composters in 2011/12 and £45,000 is requested to be carried 
forward to fund the ongoing delivery of bins and hire of vehicles to support the new 
Garden Waste recycling scheme. Garden Waste sales are over recovered by 
£126,400. 
 
Parks and Gardens 
This cost centre is under spent by £81,300 which is almost wholly attributable to the 
impairment loss associated with the Montpellier Park Restoration scheme. Further 
adjustments mean this does not impact on the cost of service delivery.  In 2009/10 a 
revaluation exercise on the council's assets was undertaken which resulted in a 
significant number of impairments; this included the Montpellier Park Restoration 
Scheme.  However the asset's current depreciated value prior to revaluation was too 
high resulting in the impairment being overstated in 2009/10.  An adjustment has 
been required in 2010/11 to correct this and ensure the council's balance sheet is 

Page 58



APPENDIX 6  

9 

carrying the correct net book value.  
 
GCC Schools 
There is an underspend on this cost centre of £25,600 due entirely to additional 
income received following the successful acquisition of further maintenance contracts 
for additional school sites in 2010/11. 
 
NPR Environmental Maintenance 
There is an overspend on this cost centre of £14,000 due to a reduction in income 
following a reduction in extra works orders received. 
 
Cemetery and Crematorium 
There is an overspend on this cost centre of £43,000. This is attributable to a 
reduction in income levels for cremations and burials with a marked impact in the 
month of February 2011. 
 
 
 

Page 59



Page 60
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE

ND
IX 
7

20
10

/1
1 

CA
RR

Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A

B
Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
Co
de

Co
st 
Ce
ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr
y f
orw

ard
Am

ou
nts

 ag
ree

d
Am

ou
nts

  
(N
et 
of 
VA

T)
by
 S1

51
 O
ffic
er

for
 m
em

be
r

un
de
r d
ele

ga
ted

ap
pro

va
l

po
we
rs

1
    
 

5,0
00

    
    
    

L1
15
00
-01

01
 Le

isu
re@

 
Un
de
rsp

en
d s

et 
as
ide

 to
 co

ve
r s
taf
f b
ac
kfi
llin
g c

os
ts 
as
so
cia
ted

 w
ith
 th
e p

lan
ne
d '
sy
ste

ms
 

thi
nk
ing

' w
ork

 on
go
ing

 in
 20

11
/12

.
5,0

00

2
    
 

5,0
00

    
    
    

L1
15
00
-35

01
 Le

isu
re@

 
Un
de
rsp

en
d s

et 
as
ide

 to
 fu
nd
 a 
fea

sib
ility

 st
ud
y o

n o
pti
on
s f
or 
the

 fu
tur
e p

rov
isio

n o
f n
ew
 

lei
su
re 
fac

iliti
es
 in
 20

11
/12

, a
s p

art
 of
 th
e L

eis
ure

 an
d C

ult
ure

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re
vie
w.
 

5,0
00

3
    
 

5,0
00

    
    
    

L2
11
00

 To
wn
 H
all
 

Re
qu
es
t fo

r c
arr
y f
orw

ard
 of
 co

mm
itte

d p
rom

oti
on
 an

d m
ark

eti
ng
 bu

dg
et 
- C

orp
ora

te 
oc
ca
sio
n b

roc
hu
res

5,0
00

4
    
 

6,5
00

    
    
    

D3
88
50
-38

01
 Yo

uth
 Af
fai
rs 

On
e o

ff y
ou
th 
aff
air
s g

ran
t, c

om
mi
tte
d t
o s

up
po
rt t
he
 St
 Pa

ul'
s c
hil
d p

ov
ert
y i
nit
iat
ive
 in
 

20
11
/12

6,5
00

    
    
    
    

5
    
 

20
,00

0
    
    
  

L4
11
00

 Ar
t G

all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

 

To
 su

pp
ort
 th
e o

ff-s
ite
 to
uri
ng
 ev

en
ts 
an
d e

xh
ibi
tio
ns
 pr
og
ram

me
, O

ff t
he
 W
all
, o
n t
he
 

mo
ve
, d
uri
ng
 20

11
/12

. T
he
 to
uri
ng
 pr
og
ram

me
 is
 in
 re
sp
on
se
 to
 th
e c

los
ure

 of
 th
e  
Ar
t 

Ga
lle
ry 
& M

us
eu
m 
for
 re
de
ve
lop

me
nt,
 w
hic
h w

as
 de

lay
ed
 fro

m 
Ja
nu
ary

 to
 Ap

ril 
20
11
 

pe
nd
ing

 th
e o

utc
om

e o
f th

e l
ott
ery

 bi
d t
o t
he
 H
eri
tag

e L
ott
ery

 fu
nd
. T
he
 to
uri
ng
 

pro
gra

mm
e h

as
 no

w 
be
en
 la
un
ch
ed
 fro

m 
Ap
ril 
20
11
 an

d t
he
 fu
nd
s w

ill b
e u

se
d t
o f
un
d 4

 
ke
y p

roj
ec
ts,
 w
hic
h a

re 
ma

tch
 fu
nd
ed
 by

 th
e A

rts
 C
ou
nc
il a
nd
 sp

on
so
rs.

20
,00

0
41
,50

0
 To

tal
 W

ell
be

ing
 &
 C
ult

ur
e 

16
,50

0
25
,00

0

6
    
 

4,5
00

    
    
    

D2
18
00
-31

85
 C
he
lt S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 

Ins
tal
lat
ion

 of
 ex
ter
na
l L
ED

 se
cu
rity

 lig
hti
ng
 at
 th
e D

ep
ot.
De
lay
ed
 du

e t
o d

iffi
cu
ltie
s w

ith
 

ini
tia
l s
up
pli
ers

, w
hic
h h

as
 re
su
lte
d i
n t
he
 ne

ed
 to
 re
-so

urc
e t
he
 la
mp

s t
o a

no
the

r s
up
pli
er.

4,5
00

    
    
    
    

7
    
 

21
,30

0
    
    
  

D2
19
70
-36

77
 C
om

mu
nit
y P

rid
e 

Fu
nd
ing

 ha
s b

ee
n a

llo
ca
ted

 to
 pr
oje
cts
 by

 w
ay
 of
 gr
an
ts 
wh
ich
 or
ga
nis
ati
on
s h

av
e u

nti
l 

the
 en

d o
f J
uly
 20

11
 to
 sp

en
d

21
,30

0
    
    
    
   

8
    
 

7,2
00

    
    
    

D2
18
00
-35

01
 C
he
lt S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 

Fu
nd
ing

 aw
ard

ed
 by

 C
he
lte
nh
am

 St
rat
eg
y P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
(C
SP

) to
 th
e c

hil
dre

n a
nd
 yo

un
g 

pe
op
le'
s p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
to 
su
pp
ort
 th
e I
ns
pir
ing

 Fa
mi
lie
s p

roj
ec
t

7,2
00

    
    
    
    

9
    
 

14
,80

0
    
    
  

D1
17
15
-35

01
 N
eig

hb
ou
rho

od
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Fu
nd
ing

 co
mm

itte
d t
o s

up
po
rt c

om
mu

nit
y c
oo
rdi
na
tio
n o

f th
e n

eig
hb
ou
rho

od
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

me
eti
ng
s i
n 2

01
1/1

2. 
Pa
ym

en
ts 
are

 by
 w
ay
 of
 in
sta

llm
en
ts 
ba
se
d o

n t
he
ir p

rog
res

s
14
,80

0
    
    
    
   

47
,80

0
 To

tal
 A
ss
ist

an
t C

hie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
es

  
47
,80

0
0

Pa
ge
 1

Page 61



AP
PE

ND
IX 
7

20
10

/1
1 

CA
RR

Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A

B
Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
Co
de

Co
st 
Ce
ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr
y f
orw

ard
Am

ou
nts

 ag
ree

d
Am

ou
nts

  
(N
et 
of 
VA

T)
by
 S1

51
 O
ffic
er

for
 m
em

be
r

un
de
r d
ele

ga
ted

ap
pro

va
l

po
we
rs

10   
5,7

00
    
    
    

E2
21
00
-11

29
 C
he
lt R

ive
rs 
an
d 

W
ate

rco
urs

es
 

To
 fu
nd
 co

mp
let
ion

 of
 flo

od
 al
lie
via
tio
n w

ork
s d

ela
ye
d d

ue
 to
 pr
oje
ct 
slip

pa
ge
 in
 20

10
/11

5,7
00

    
    
    
    

11   
5,0

00
    
    
    

D1
31
00
-18

01
 M
un
icip

al 
Of
fic
es
 - 

Re
pa
irs
 an

d M
ain

ten
an
ce
 To

 fu
nd
 th
e r
em

ov
al 
of 
Ch
ris
tm
as
 Li
gh
ts 
co
ntr
ol 
bo
xe
s f
rom

 la
mp

 co
lum

ns
 in
 th
e 

Pr
om

en
ad
e

5,0
00

    
    
    
    

10
,70

0
 To

tal
 B
uil

t E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

5,7
00

5,0
00

12   
3,0

00
    
    
    

E6
16
50
-31

03
 Pu

bli
c p

rot
ec
tio
n -
 Ai
r 

Qu
ali
ty 

Re
qu
es
t fo

r c
arr
y f
orw

ard
 to
 fu
nd
 ex
ten

de
d a

ir q
ua
lity
 m
on
ito
rin
g i
n 2

01
1/1

2, 
inc
lud

ing
 

roa
ds
ide

 un
its
 fo
r a
nn
ua
l ro

ad
sid
e m

on
ito
rin
g, 
lea

din
g t
o t
he
 de

cla
rat
ion

 of
 an

 Ai
r Q

ua
lity
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Ar
ea
 (A
QM

A)
 la
ter
 in
 th
e y

ea
r.

3,0
00

    
    
    
    

13   
7,5

00
    
    
    

 C
22
12
0-1

30
4 

£5
,00

0
C2
21
20
-38

74
 

£2
,50

0 
 Sp

ort
s a

nd
 O
pe
n S

pa
ce
s 
Bo
th 
the

se
 su

ms
 re
pre

se
nt 
the

 re
ten

tio
n o

uts
tan

din
g a

t th
e e

nd
 of
 th
e d

efe
cts
 lia
bil
ity
 

pe
rio
d o

f th
e L

ec
kh
am

pto
n H

ill D
ry 
So
ne
 W
all
ing

 pr
oje
ct

7,5
00

    
    
    
    

14   
7,0

00
    
    
    

C2
21
20
-13

01
 Sp

ort
s a

nd
 O
pe
n S

pa
ce
s 
To
 fu
nd
 th
e p

ile
 w
ork

s f
or 
Pit
tvi
lle
 Br
idg

e d
ela

ye
d t
o a

vo
id 
the

 co
mp

let
ion

 of
 th
es
e w

ork
s 

int
era

cti
ng
 w
ith
 th
e E

as
ter
 H
oli
da
ys
 20

11
7,0

00
    
    
    
    

15   
10
,00

0
    
    
  

C2
31
20
-35

01
 R
ec
yc
lin
g C

en
tre
 / C

A 
Sit
e 

Fo
r im

pro
ve
me

nt 
wo
rks

 to
 th
e r
ec
yc
lin
g c

en
tre
 w
hic
h w

ere
 no

t a
ch
iev
ed
 as

 in
ten

de
d i
n 

20
10
/11

 du
e t
o p

rio
rity

 be
ing

 gi
ve
n t
o t
he
 sc
he
me

 ch
an
ge
 pr
oje
ct.

10
,00

0
    
    
    
   

16   
15
,00

0
    
    
  

C2
31
40
+*

 Pu
bli
c C

on
ve
nie

nc
es
 

To
 fu
nd
 th
e c

on
tin
ue
d o

pe
rat
ion

 of
 th
e B

ath
 R
oa
d t
oil
et 
fac

ility
15
,00

0
    
    
    
   

Pa
ge
 2

Page 62



AP
PE

ND
IX 
7

20
10

/1
1 

CA
RR

Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A

B
Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
Co
de

Co
st 
Ce
ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr
y f
orw

ard
Am

ou
nts

 ag
ree

d
Am

ou
nts

  
(N
et 
of 
VA

T)
by
 S1

51
 O
ffic
er

for
 m
em

be
r

un
de
r d
ele

ga
ted

ap
pro

va
l

po
we
rs

17   
10
,00

0
    
    
  

C2
31
60
-01

15
 En

v M
ain

t O
/he

ad
s 

Re
qu
es
ted

 fo
r A
dm

in 
su
pp
ort
 to
 su

pp
ort
 th
e c

us
tom

er 
se
rvi
ce
s t
ea
m 
ba
se
d a

t S
win

do
n 

Ro
ad
 to
 de

al 
wit
h c

us
tom

er 
en
qu
irie

s r
ela

tin
g t
o t
he
 in
tro
du
cti
on
 of
 th
e n

ew
 re
cy
clin

g 
sc
he
me

s
10
,00

0
    
    
    
   

18   
17
,00

0
    
    
  

C2
31
80
-35

01
 Pl
as
tic
 R
ec
yc
lin
g 

Co
lle
cti
on
 sc
he
me

 
To
 br
ing

 fo
rw
ard

 th
e f
ull
 ro
ll-o

ut 
of 
the

 pl
as
tic
 bo

ttle
 co

lle
cti
on
 sc
he
me

 ac
ros

s t
he
 Bo

rou
gh

17
,00

0
    
    
    
   

19   
45
,00

0
    
    
  

C2
31
90
-35

01
 R
ec
yc
lin
g: 
Ga

rde
n 

W
as
te 
Sc
he
me

s 
Fo
r o
ng
oin

g d
eli
ve
ry 
of 
bin

s a
nd
 hi
re 
of 
ve
hic
les
 to
 su

pp
ort
 th
e n

ew
 G
ard

en
 W
as
te 

rec
yc
lin
g s

ch
em

e 
45
,00

0
    
    
    
   

11
4,5

00
 To

tal
 O
pe

rat
ion

s 
96
,50

0
18
,00

0

20   
11
,70

0
    
    
  

D1
13
00

 Fi
na
nc
ial
 Se

rvi
ce
s 

Fu
nd
ing

 re
ce
ive
d v

ia 
the

 gi
ftin

g a
rra
ng
em

en
ts 
in 
lie
u o

f b
ac
k f
illin

g u
nd
er 
the

 G
O 

Pr
og
ram

me
 w
hic
h w

ill b
e u

se
d d

uri
ng
 20

11
/12

.
11
,70

0
    
    
    
   

21   
12
,00

0
    
    
  

D3
27
00
-35

01
 D
eb
t M

an
ag
em

en
t 

Ba
lan

ce
 of
 th
e £

50
,00

0 f
un
din

g a
llo
ca
ted

 by
 C
ab
ine

t o
n 2

7th
 Ap

ril 
20
10
 to
 fu
nd
 th
e 

po
ten

tia
l c
os
ts 
of 
leg

al 
ac
tio
n i
n t
he
 gr
ou
p c

lai
ms

 fo
r th

e r
ec
ov
ery

 of
 th
e c

ou
nc
il's
 

Ice
lan

dic
 de

po
sit
s t
hro

ug
h t
he
 Ic
ela

nd
ic 
co
urt
s.

12
,00

0
    
    
    
   

23
,70

0
 To

tal
 Fi

na
nc

ial
 Se

rvi
ce
s 

23
,70

0
0

22   
60
0

    
    
    
   

D2
12
60
-02

05
 H
ea
lth
 & 
Sa
fet
y 

To
 fu
nd
 tra

ini
ng
 on

 de
fib
rila

tor
s t
o m

ee
t th

e c
ou
nc
il's
 he

alt
h &

 sa
fet
y r
eq
uir
em

en
ts.

60
0

    
    
    
    
   

23   
9,5

00
    
    
    

D1
23
00

 H
um

an
 R
es
ou
rce

s 

Fu
nd
ing

 re
ce
ive
d v

ia 
the

 gi
ftin

g a
rra
ng
em

en
ts 
in 
lie
u o

f b
ac
k f
illin

g u
nd
er 
the

 G
O 

Pr
og
ram

me
, w
hic
h w

ill b
e u

se
d d

uri
ng
 20

11
/12

 to
 su

pp
ort
 se

rvi
ce
 re
sili
en
ce
, in

 pa
rtic

ula
r 

in 
res

pe
ct 
of 
Pa
yro

ll w
hic
h h

as
 be

en
 id
en
tifi
ed
 on

 th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Ris

k R
eg
ist
er 
as
 an

 ar
ea
 

of 
co
nc
ern

.
9,5

00
    
    
    
    

Pa
ge
 3

Page 63



AP
PE

ND
IX 
7

20
10

/1
1 

CA
RR

Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A

B
Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
Co
de

Co
st 
Ce
ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr
y f
orw

ard
Am

ou
nts

 ag
ree

d
Am

ou
nts

  
(N
et 
of 
VA

T)
by
 S1

51
 O
ffic
er

for
 m
em

be
r

un
de
r d
ele

ga
ted

ap
pro

va
l

po
we
rs

10
,10

0
 To

tal
 H
um

an
 R
es
ou

rce
s a

nd
 O
rg
an

isa
tio

na
l d

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
10
,10

0
0

24
5,8

00
IT0

05
5

Go
ve
rnm

en
t C
on
ne
ct

 To
 co

nti
nu
e e

ss
en
tia
l w
ork

 de
lay
ed
 du

e t
o n

ee
d t
o e

ns
ure

 al
l e
qu
ipm

en
t p
urc

ha
se
s 

co
mp

ly 
wit
h t
he
 ne

w 
sta

nd
ard

. 
5,8

00

25   
18
,40

0
    
    
  

IT0
06
2

 W
ork

ing
 Fl
ex
ibl
y 

 To
 su

pp
ort
 th
e b

us
ine

ss
 ch

an
ge
 in
tia
tiv
e t
hro

ug
h t
he
 pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
of 
a r
ep
lac
em

en
t 

ac
ce
ss
 ga

tew
ay
 in
 20

11
/12

. T
he
 ga

tew
ay
 ac

ts 
as
 th
e s

ec
ure

 'd
oo
r' w

hic
h c

us
tom

ers
 fa
ce
 

be
for
e a

cc
es
s i
s g

ive
n t
o t
he
 C
itri
x r
em

ote
 ac

ce
ss
 in
fra
str
uc
tur
e. 

18
,40

0
    
    
    
   

26   
66
,70

0
    
    
  

IT0
07
1

 R
ev
en
ue
s &

 Be
ne
fits
 

So
urc

ing
 St
rat
eg
y 

 To
 su

pp
ort
 w
ork

 to
wa
rds

 de
ve
lop

ing
 a 
fut
ure

 sh
are

d s
erv

ice
, in

clu
din

g t
he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a b

us
ine

ss
 ca

se
 su

bje
ct 
to 
SL
T a

pp
rov

al.
 

66
,70

0
    
    
    
   

27   
2,5

00
    
    
    

IT0
07
2

 C
us
tom

er 
Se
rvi
ce
s 

So
urc

ing
 St
rat
eg
y 

 To
 co

mp
let
e S

ys
tem

s T
hin

kin
g w

ork
 w
ith
in 
Cu
sto

me
r S
erv

ice
s. 

2,5
00

    
    
    
    

28   
9,5

00
    
    
    

IT0
07
3

 IC
T S

ou
rci
ng
 St
rat
eg
y 

 To
 su

pp
ort
 co

nti
nu
ing

 w
ork

 in
 ch

an
gin

g b
us
ine

ss
 pr
oc
es
se
s i
n l
igh

t o
f th

e G
O 

Pr
og
am

me
. 

9,5
00

    
    
    
    

10
2,9

00
 To

tal
 B
us

ine
ss
 C
ha

ng
e 

10
2,9

00
0

35
1,2

00
 To

tal
 C
arr

y F
or
wa

rd
 R
eq

ue
sts

 
30
3,2

00
48
,00

0

Pa
ge
 4

Page 64



AP
PE

ND
IX 

8

Us
e 

of
 B

al
an

ce
s 

an
d 

Re
se

rv
es

DE
TA

ILE
D 
RE

SE
RV

E M
OV

EM
EN

TS
RS

VE
BU

DG
ET

BO
OK

RE
VIS

ED
AC

TU
AL

VA
RI
AN

CE
RE

F:
20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

NO
TE

£
£

£
£

US
E O

F B
AL

AN
CE

S &
 R
ES

ER
VE

S -
 SU

MM
AR

Y

73
01

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 to
 re

se
rve

s -
 se

e d
eta

il b
elo

w*
1,7

12
,94

7
4,3

07
,79

3
7,5

83
,77

4
3,2

75
,98

0
82
40

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 fro

m 
res

erv
es
 - s

ee
 de

tai
l b
elo

w 
**

(1,
58
7,3

00
)

(5,
27
3,4

96
)

(5,
36
3,7

40
)

(90
,24

3)

82
48

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 fro

m 
res

erv
es
 to
 fu
nd
 on

e o
ff r

ev
en
ue
 - 

se
e d

eta
il b

elo
w*
**

(81
1,0

00
)

(75
1,6

00
)

(53
9,1

78
)

21
2,4

22
(68

5,3
53
)

(1,
71
7,3

03
)

1,6
80
,85

5
3,3

98
,15

8

*  C
ON

TR
IB
UT

IO
NS

 TO
 R
ES

ER
VE

S
BR

02
Pe

ns
ion

 R
es
erv

e
15
0,0

00
15
0,0

00
15
0,0

00
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 pe

ns
ion

 re
se
rve

 to
 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e p
en
sio

n a
nd
 au

gm
en
tat
ion

 co
sts

 
BR

05
IBS

 Li
ce
ns
e R

es
erv

e
26
,70

0
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 co

st 
of 
IBS

 lic
en
ce
 pa

id 
up
 fro

nt
BR

09
Cu

ltu
ral
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
6,4

00
6,4

00
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d P

lay
ho
us
e T

he
atr

e d
ev
elo

pm
en
t

BR
12

Ho
us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
7,5

00
7,5

00
7,5

00
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
wa

rds
 su

rve
y e

ve
ry 
3 y

ea
rs

BR
12

Ho
us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
57
,59

0
57
,59

0
0R

es
erv

e r
ea
lig
nm

en
t fr

om
 H
ou
sin

g N
ee
ds
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
Re

se
rve

BR
14

Flo
od
 Al

lev
iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
14
8,9

00
14
8,9

00
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d C

ivil
 Em

erg
en
cie

s -
 flo

od
 al
lie
via

tio
n w

ork
s 

BR
14

Flo
od
 Al

lev
iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
3,9

39
3,9

39
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d C

ivil
 Em

erg
en
cie

s -
 EU

 flo
od
 al
lev

iat
ion

 re
sto

rat
ion

 w
ork

s 
BR

42
Ve

hic
le 
Le
as
ing

 Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n R

es
erv

e
40
,68

8
40
,68

8C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 W

he
ely

 Bi
ns
 fo
r re

sid
ua
l w

as
te

BR
42

Ve
hic

le 
Le
as
ing

 Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n R

es
erv

e
6,9

23
6,9

23
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d C

ad
dy
 Li
ne
rs 
re 

foo
d w

as
te

BR
42

Ve
hic

le 
Le
as
ing

 Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n R

es
erv

e
20
,00

0
20
,00

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 C
om

po
sto

rs 
BR

42
Ve

hic
le 
Le
as
ing

 Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n R

es
erv

e
38
,00

0
38
,00

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 th
e s

lip
pa
ge
 in
 th
e 2

01
0/1

1 V
eh
icle

 R
ep
lac

em
en
t P

rog
ram

BR
45

Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y R

es
erv

e
12
3,8

00
12
3,8

00
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 th
e J

oin
t C

ore
 St

rat
eg
y w

ith
 Te

wk
es
bu
ry 
an
d G

lou
ce
ste

r
BR

45
Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y R

es
erv

e
78
0

78
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 th
e J

oin
t C

ore
 St

rat
eg
y w

ith
 Te

wk
es
bu
ry 
an
d G

lou
ce
ste

r
BR

54
Le
ga
l s
ha
red

 se
rvi
ce
 re

se
rve

9,1
00

9,1
00

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d t
he
 O
ne
-Le

ga
l s
ha
red

 se
rvi
ce
 w
ith
 Te

wk
es
bu
ry

BR
54

Le
ga
l s
ha
red

 se
rvi
ce
 re

se
rve

10
,20

0
10
,20

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 th
e O

ne
-Le

ga
l s
ha
red

 se
rvi
ce
 w
ith
 Te

wk
es
bu
ry

BR
58

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide

 R
es
erv

e
1,0

00
,00

0
1,0

00
,00

0
0R

es
erv

e r
ea
lig
nm

en
t fr

om
 H
ou
sin

g C
ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e
BR

63
Re

nt 
All

ow
an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
13
1,4

00
13
1,4

00
13
1,4

00
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e c
os
ts 
Iin
 lie

u o
f a
dd
itio

na
l a
dm

ini
str
ati
on
 gr

an
t

BR
65

Lic
en
sin

g F
ee
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
1,6

55
1,6

55
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d f
utu

re 
tax

i m
ars

ha
ll c

os
ts

BR
67

Int
ere

st 
Eq

ua
lisa

tio
n R

es
erv

e
33
1,5

00
30
3,2

67
(28

,23
3)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o c

ov
er 

an
y a

dd
itio

na
l lo

ss
es
 ar

isin
g i
n t
he
 va

lue
 of
 Ic
ela

nd
ic 
de
po
sit
s a

nd
/or

 
to 
red

uc
e t
he
 bo

rro
win

g a
ris
ing

 fro
m 

the
 ca

pit
ali
sa
tio
n o

f th
e l
os
se
s

BR
67

Int
ere

st 
Eq

ua
lisa

tio
n R

es
erv

e
2,4

84
,32

8
2,4

84
,32

8C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 co

ve
r im

pa
irm

en
t a
dju

stm
en
t re

 Ic
ela

nd
ic 
ba
nk
s 

BR
76

Ele
cti
on
s R

es
erv

e
10
,50

0
10
,50

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 El

ec
tio
ns
 to
 co

ve
r A

V R
efe

ren
du
m 

co
sts

 & 
fut
ure

 el
ec
tio
ns

BR
88

IT 
Re

pa
irs
 & 

Re
ne
wa

ls 
Re

se
rve

77
,50

0
12
7,5

00
12
7,5

00
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 IT

 re
pla

ce
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

e
BR

88
IT 

Re
pa
irs
 & 

Re
ne
wa

ls 
Re

se
rve

37
,00

0
37
,00

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 IT

 re
pla

ce
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

e
BR

89
Pr
op
ert

y R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
69
3,0

00
69
3,0

00
69
3,0

00
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Pl

an
ne
d M

ain
ten

an
ce
 pr

og
ram

me

BR
91

Ca
rry

 fo
rw
ard

 re
qu
es
ts 
ap
pro

ve
d b

y C
FO

 un
de
r 

de
leg

ate
d p

ow
ers

30
3,2

00
30
3,2

00
Ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

 of
 bu

dg
ets

 to
 fu
nd
 ex

pe
nd
itu
re 

in 
lin
e w

ith
 or

igi
na
l b
ud
ge
t - 

Ap
pe
nd
ix 
7

BR
92

Re
ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

62
5,0

00
62
5,0

00
62
5,0

00
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 ca

pit
al 
res

erv
e (

su
bje

ct 
to 
fut
ure

 re
vie

w 
of 
ca
pit
al 
fin
an
cin

g s
tra

teg
y)

BR
92

Re
ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

29
,50

0
29
,50

0
0R

es
erv

e r
ea
lig
nm

en
t fr

om
 LA

BG
I R

es
erv

e
BR

92
Re

ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

30
0,0

00
30
0,0

00
0R

es
erv

e r
ea
lig
nm

en
t fr

om
 H
ou
sin

g C
ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e

BR
92

Re
ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

1,0
00

1,0
00

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o c

ap
ita
l re

se
rve

 to
 fu
nd
 ad

dit
ion

al 
co
st 
of 
IBS

 so
ftw

are
-sa

vin
g i
n R

ev
en
ue
s

BR
92

Re
ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

13
6,8

00
13
6,8

00
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d t
he
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f R

ec
ycl

ing
 Ve

hic
les

 fo
r th

e F
oo
d W

as
te 
rec

ycl
ing

 
sc
he
me

BR
92

Re
ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

9,6
00

9,6
00

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d t
he
 ac

qu
ist
ion

 of
 Fo

od
 C
ad
die

s

Pa
ge
 1

Page 65



AP
PE

ND
IX 

8

DE
TA

ILE
D 
RE

SE
RV

E M
OV

EM
EN

TS
RS

VE
BU

DG
ET

BO
OK

RE
VIS

ED
AC

TU
AL

VA
RI
AN

CE
RE

F:
20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

NO
TE

£
£

£
£

BR
92

Re
ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

9,7
00

9,7
00

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d t
he
 ac

qu
ist
ion

 of
 24

0L
 G
ard

en
 W

as
te 
bin

s
BS

01
Ge

ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
71
7,3

73
71
7,3

73
0R

es
erv

e r
ea
lig
nm

en
t fr

om
 PD

G 
Re

se
rve

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
13
,58

4
13
,58

4
0R

es
erv

e r
ea
lig
nm

en
t fr

om
 H
igh

wa
ys 

Ins
ura

nc
e R

es
erv

e
BS

01
Ge

ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
25
,50

0
25
,50

0U
nu
se
d L

eg
al 
pro

vis
ion

 tra
ns
fer

red
 ba

ck
 to
 ge

ne
ral
 re

se
rve

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
1,8

47
47

47
0T

ran
sfe

r to
 G
en
era

l B
ala

nc
es

1,7
12
,94

7
    
    
    
    
 

4,3
07
,79

3
    
   

7,5
83
,77

4
    
    
 

3,2
75
,98

0

** 
CO

NT
RI
BU

TIO
NS

 FR
OM

 R
ES

ER
VE

S
BR

01
Sin

gle
 St

atu
s R

es
erv

e
(94

,00
0)

(94
,00

0)
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 tra

ns
itio

na
l c
os
ts 
of 
sin

gle
 st
atu

s
BR

01
Sin

gle
 St

atu
s R

es
erv

e
(23

,80
0)

(23
,80

0)
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 20

10
/11

 ba
ck
-pa

y
BR

01
Sin

gle
 St

atu
s R

es
erv

e
(20

1,7
00
)

(20
0,9

00
)

(20
0,9

00
)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 pa

y p
rot

ec
tio
n

BR
02

Pe
ns
ion

 R
es
erv

e
(15

0,0
00
)

(15
0,0

00
)

(15
0,0

00
)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 in
cre

as
ed
 pe

ns
ion

 co
sts

 as
 a 
res

ult
 of
 th
e 2

00
4 t
rie
nn
ial
 re

va
lua

tio
n

BR
02

Pe
ns
ion

 R
es
erv

e
(65

,50
0)

(65
,50

0)
(65

,50
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 in
cre

as
ed
 pe

ns
ion

 co
sts

 as
 a 
res

ult
 of
 th
e 2

00
7 t
rie
nn
ial
 re

va
lua

tio
n

BR
05

IBS
 Li
ce
ns
e R

es
erv

e
(1,

80
0)

(1,
80
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 co

st 
of 
IBS

 lic
en
ce

BR
05

IBS
 Li
ce
ns
e R

es
erv

e
(5,

00
0)

(5,
00
0)

(5,
00
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 m

ain
ten

an
ce
 on

 up
gra

de
s t
o C

ou
nc
il T

ax
 / B

en
efi
ts 
sys

tem
BR

08
Gr
av
e M

ain
ten

an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
(3,

30
0)

(3,
30
0)

(3,
30
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 he

alt
h &

 sa
fet
y r
eq
uir
em

en
ts

(37
4)

(37
4)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o g

rav
e m

ain
ten

an
ce
 re

se
rve

BR
09

Cu
ltu
ral
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
(54

,20
0)

(54
,20

0)
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Ar

t G
all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

 de
ve
lop

me
nt

BR
09

Cu
ltu
ral
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
(10

,00
0)

(10
,00

0)
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Pl

ay
ho
us
e T

he
atr

e d
ev
elo

pm
en
t

BR
10

Bu
sin

es
s G

row
th 
Inc

en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA

BG
I) R

es
erv

e
(13

5,0
00
)

(13
5,0

00
)

(13
5,0

00
)

0Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d e

co
no
mi
c a

nd
 cu

ltu
ral
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il in

 pr
ev
iou

s 
fin
an
cia

l ye
ara

s
BR

10
Bu

sin
es
s G

row
th 
Inc

en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA

BG
I) R

es
erv

e
(25

,00
0)

(10
,00

0)
(10

,00
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 ec

on
om

ic 
an
d c

ult
ura

l d
ev
elo

pm
en
t a
s a

gre
ed
 by

 C
ou
nc
il 2

9/6
/09

BR
10

Bu
sin

es
s G

row
th 
Inc

en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA

BG
I) R

es
erv

e
(50

,50
0)

(50
,50

0)
(50

,50
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 su

pp
ort

ed
 on

e-o
ff g

row
th 
ite
ms

 as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il 1

2/2
/10

BR
10

Bu
sin

es
s G

row
th 
Inc

en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA

BG
I) R

es
erv

e
(29

,50
0)

(29
,50

0)
0R

es
erv

e r
ea
lig
nm

en
t to

 C
ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e
BR

11
Ho

us
ing

 N
ee
ds
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
Re

se
rve

(57
,59

0)
(57

,59
0)

0R
es
erv

e r
ea
lig
nm

en
t to

 H
ou
se
 Su

rve
y R

es
erv

e
BR

12
Ho

us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 ho

us
ing

 st
oc
k c

on
dit
ion

s s
urv

ey
 co

sts
BR

14
Flo

od
 Al

lev
iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
(10

0,0
00
)

(15
0,0

00
)

(15
0,0

00
)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 flo

od
 al
lev

iat
ion

 w
ork

s
BR

14
Flo

od
 Al

lev
iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
(30

,00
0)

(52
,00

0)
(52

,00
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 lo
ca
l fl
oo
d a

lle
via

tio
n w

ork
s f
or 

3 y
ea
rs 
(fro

m 
EU

 G
ran

t)
BR

14
Flo

od
 Al

lev
iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
(63

,00
0)

(10
,00

0)
(10

,00
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Se

ve
rn 

Tre
nt 
W
ate

r c
om

mu
nit
y f
un
d s

ch
em

es
BR

14
Flo

od
 Al

lev
iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
(16

,68
0)

(16
,68

0)
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
dC

ivil
 Em

erg
en
cie

s -
 SW

T C
om

mu
nit
y F

un
de
d S

ch
em

es
BR

42
Ve

hic
le 
Le
as
ing

 Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n R

es
erv

e
(10

1,2
00
)

(10
1,2

00
)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 ne

w 
wa

ste
 re

cyc
lin
g s

erv
ice

BR
52

Co
mm

ute
d M

ain
ten

an
ce
 

(66
,00

0)
(66

,00
0)

(66
,00

0)
0U

se
 of
 de

ve
lop

ers
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 to
 fu
nd
 m

ain
ten

an
ce
 co

sts
BR

54
Le
ga
l S

taf
fin
g R

es
erv

e
(16

,30
0)

(16
,30

0)
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 se

t u
p c

os
ts 
of 
On

e L
eg
al

BR
58

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide

 R
es
erv

e
(10

4,6
00
)

(10
7,4

00
)

(10
7,4

00
)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Pr

oje
ct 
Ma

na
ge
r

BR
58

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide

 R
es
erv

e
(54

,90
0)

(39
,80

0)
(39

,80
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 pr

oje
ct 
co
sts

BR
58

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide

 R
es
erv

e
(23

,18
9)

(23
,18

9)
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d p

rog
ram

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 
wo

rks
BR

61
PD

G 
Re

se
rve

(24
5,9

00
)

(13
0,8

00
)

(13
0,8

00
)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e P
DG

 co
sts

BR
61

PD
G 
Re

se
rve

(71
7,3

73
)

(71
7,3

73
)

0R
es
erv

e r
ea
lig
nm

en
t to

 G
en
era

l B
ala

nc
es

BR
63

Re
nt 
All

ow
an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
(65

,30
0)

(72
,10

0)
(12

2,1
00
)

(50
,00

0)
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d i
nc
rea

se
d n

et 
co
st 
co
mp

are
d t
o b

ud
ge
t

BR
65

Lic
en
sin

g F
ee
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
(17

,00
0)

(17
,00

0)
(17

,00
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Ta

xi 
Ma

rsh
all
s i
n 2

00
9/1

0
BR

72
Lo
ca
l P

lan
 R
es
erv

e
(60

,00
0)

(60
,00

0)
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 th
e J

oin
t C

ore
 St

rat
eg
y w

ith
 Te

wk
es
bu
ry 
an
d G

lou
ce
ste

r
BR

72
Lo
ca
l P

lan
 R
es
erv

e
(20

,00
0)

(20
,00

0)
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 co

mp
en
sa
tio
n

BR
76

Ele
cti
on
s R

es
erv

e
(65

,20
0)

(65
,20

0)
(65

,20
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 lo
ca
l e
lec

tio
n c

os
ts 
in 
20
10
/11

BR
77

Ca
pit
al 
Re

se
rve

 - H
IP

(1,
30
0,0

00
)

(1,
30
0,0

00
)

0R
es
erv

e r
ea
lig
nm

en
t to

 C
ivic

 Pr
ide

 an
d R

CC
O 
Re

se
rve

s
BR

78
Hig

hw
ay
s I
ns
ura

nc
e R

es
erv

e 
(13

,58
4)

(13
,58

4)
0R

es
erv

e r
ea
lig
nm

en
t to

 G
en
era

l B
ala

nc
es

BR
88

IT 
Re

pa
irs
 & 

Re
ne
wa

ls 
Re

se
rve

(13
4,9

00
)

(10
9,9

00
)

(10
9,9

00
)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 IT

 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e

Pa
ge
 2

Page 66



AP
PE

ND
IX 

8

DE
TA

ILE
D 
RE

SE
RV

E M
OV

EM
EN

TS
RS

VE
BU

DG
ET

BO
OK

RE
VIS

ED
AC

TU
AL

VA
RI
AN

CE
RE

F:
20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

NO
TE

£
£

£
£

BR
89

Pr
op
ert

y R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
(53

,80
0)

(53
,80

0)
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 re

va
lua

tio
n a

nd
 bu

sin
es
s r
ate

 re
vie

ws
BR

89
Pr
op
ert

y R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Ev

ery
ma

n T
he
atr

e g
ran

t
BR

89
Pr
op
ert

y R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
(16

6,8
00
)

(16
6,8

00
)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 R
eg
en
t A

rca
de
 im

pro
ve
me

nts

BR
91

Ol
d Y

ea
r C

red
ito
r R

sv
e -

 R
R

(4,
50
0)

(4,
50
0)

(4,
50
0)

0Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d t
he
 on

e-o
ff s

taf
fin
g c

os
ts 
as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th
e 2

00
8/0

9 b
ud
ge
t p
rop

os
als

 
as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il 8

/2/
08

BR
92

Re
ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

(35
0,0

00
)

(35
0,0

00
)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 R
eg
en
t A

rca
de
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
BR

92
Re

ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

(8,
00
0)

(8,
00
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Br

ize
n Y

ou
ng
 Pe

op
le's

 C
en
tre

 se
t-u

p c
os
ts

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
(44

,15
0)

(44
,15

0)
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 ad

dit
ion

al 
MR

P i
n 2

01
0/1

1 a
s a

gre
ed
 by

 C
ou
nc
il 1

2/2
/10

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
(37

,10
0)

(37
,10

0)
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Eu

no
mi
a j
oin

t w
as
te 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
pro

jec
t

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
(11

4,0
00
)

(11
4,0

00
)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 So

urc
ing

 St
rat

eg
y in

ve
stm

en
t

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
(3,

30
0)

(3,
30
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 G
O 
Pr
og
ram

me
BS

01
Ge

ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
(50

,00
0)

(50
,00

0)
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Ic
ela

nd
ic 
ba
nk
s c

ou
rt c

as
e

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
(24

8,6
00
)

(24
8,6

00
)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 th
e o

ne
 of
f s
taf
fin
g c

os
ts 
as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th
e 2

01
0/1

1 b
ud
ge
t p
rop

os
als

20
09
/10

 ca
rry

 fo
rw

ard
 re

se
rve

s c
rea

ted
 at

 31
.3.
10

BR
91

Ch
ief
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
s

(11
0,6

00
)

(11
0,6

00
)

0A
pp
rov

ed
 ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

s a
t 2
8/6

/10
BR

91
CA

ST
(20

,00
0)

(20
,00

0)
0A

pp
rov

ed
 ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

s a
t 2
8/6

/10
BR

91
He

alt
h &

 C
ult
ure

(83
,90

0)
(83

,90
0)

0A
pp
rov

ed
 ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

s a
t 2
8/6

/10
BR

91
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on
me

nt
(14

,90
0)

(14
,90

0)
0A

pp
rov

ed
 ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

s a
t 2
8/6

/10
BR

91
Int
eg
rat

ed
 Tr

an
sp
ort

(1,
70
0)

(1,
70
0)

0A
pp
rov

ed
 ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

s a
t 2
8/6

/10
BR

91
Op

era
tio
ns

(12
,60

0)
(12

,60
0)

0A
pp
rov

ed
 ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

s a
t 2
8/6

/10
BR

91
Bu

sin
es
s C

ha
ng
e

(9,
80
0)

(9,
80
0)

Ap
pro

ve
d c

arr
y f
orw

ard
s a

t 2
8/6

/10
(1,

58
7,3

00
)

(5,
27
3,4

96
)

(5,
36
3,7

40
)

(90
,24

3)

***
 C
ON

TR
IB
UT

IO
NS

 FR
OM

 R
ES

ER
VE

S T
O 
FU

ND
 O
NE

 O
FF

 R
EV

EN
UE

BR
89

Pr
op
ert

y R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
(81

1,0
00
)

(75
1,6

00
)

(51
0,1

79
)

24
1,4

21
To

 fu
nd
 Pr

og
ram

me
d M

ain
ten

an
ce

BR
92

Ca
pit
al 
Re

se
rve

(22
,60

5)
(22

,60
5)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d L

an
d &

 Pr
es
ale

 co
sts

 ca
pit
al 
pro

gra
mm

e r
ec
las

sif
ied

 as
 re

ve
nu
e

BR
92

Ca
pit
al 
Re

se
rve

(6,
39
3)

(6,
39
3)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d A

llo
tm

en
ts 
ca
pit
al 
pro

gra
mm

e r
ec
las

sif
ied

 as
 re

ve
nu
e

(81
1,0

00
)

(75
1,6

00
)

(53
9,1

78
)

21
2,4

22

Pa
ge
 3

Page 67



Page 68
This page is intentionally left blank



   

Cabinet 21st June 2011  Financial outturn 2010/11  
 Page 1 of 6  
  

       Appendix 9 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Treasury Management Panel – 6th June 2011  

Treasury Outturn 2010/11 
Report of the Director, Resources   

1. Introduction 
1.1   Treasury Management in Local Government is governed by the CIPFA Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services and this Council has adopted 
the Code and complies with its requirements, one of which is the receipt by Treasury 
Council of an Annual Review Report after the financial year end. 

2.     Economic Outlook for 2010/11 
2.1   At the time of determining the Treasury Strategy Statement for 2010/11 in February 

2010, interest rates were expected to remain low in response to the fragile state of the 
UK economy, but were forecast to rise through the second part of the financial year. 
Spending cuts and tax increases seemed inevitable post the General Election if the 
government had a clear majority. The money markets at the time viewed a hung 
parliament as potentially disruptive particularly if combined with a failure to voice a 
credible plan to bring down government borrowing. The outlook for growth was 
uncertain due to consumers and businesses trimming their spending and financial 
institutions exercising restraint in new lending. 

2.2  The economy’s two headline indicators moved in opposite directions - growth was 
uninspiring whilst inflation spiked sharply higher. The economy grew by just 1.3% in 
2010 and the forecast rate for 2011 was revised down to 1.7% by the Office of Budget 
Responsibility in March 2011 from 2%. Consumer Price Inflation during the year hit a 
high of 4.4% in February 2011 but then unexpectedly dropped back to 4% in March 
2011, led by falling food and non-alcoholic beverages. The decrease eased pressure 
on the Bank of England to raise the Bank Rate from 0.50%, which had remained at that 
rate throughout 2010/11.  

2.3  Consumer confidence and spending continues to be affected by modest wage 
increases, weak house price growth and a shortage of cheap credit. Unemployment is 
just over 2.5 million and will increase as the public sector shrinks but private sector 
employment grows at only a modest pace. 

2.4   The credit crisis migrated from banks to European sovereigns in 2010/11. The ratings 
of Ireland, Spain, Portugal, and Greece were all downgraded. The results from the EU 
Bank Stress Tests, co-ordinated by the Committee of European banking Supervisors, 
highlighted that only 7 out of 91 institutions failed the ‘adverse scenario’ tests. The 
tests were a helpful step forward, but doubts remained if they went far enough. The 
main UK banks (Barclays, HSBC, Lloyds Banking Group and RBS) all passed the test. 

 
 

Page 69



   

Cabinet 21st June 2011  Financial outturn 2010/11  
 Page 2 of 6  
  

        3.      Portfolio position 1/4/10-31/3/11 
                    Movements in the Council’s borrowing during 2010/11 can be seen in the table below.  

Long term loans are deemed to be those repayable over a period of more than one 
year. 

               Source of 
Loan 
 

Temporary 
Borrowing 

Balance at 
1 April 2010 

                   
                      £ 

Raised 
during 
the year 

                      £ 

Repaid  
during 
the year 

                      £ 

Balance at 
31 March  
2011 
£ 

 
  - Building Societies 
 
  - Banks 
  
  - Local Authorities 
 
Temporary            
Investment 

 
1,200,000 

 
0 

15,800,000 
 
 

614,303 

 
5,000,000 

 
0 
 

102,840,000 
 
 

2,705,513 

 
1,200,000 

0 
 

110,640,000 
 
 

2,980,026 

 
   5,000,000            

 
 0 

   
8,000,000 

 
 

339,790 
Total Short Term 
Borrowing 

 
17,614,303 

 
110,545,513 

 
114,820,026 

 
13,339,790 

 
Long Term 
Borrowing 

                
    

 
  - Public  
Works Loan 
 Board 
 
  - Market    Loans 

11,000,0000 

15,900,0000 
 

 
 

0 
 
 

0 

 
 

0 
 
 

0 

 
 

11,000,000 
 
 

15,900,000 

Long Term 
Borrowing 26,900,000 

 
0 

 
0 

 
26,900,000 

Total External 
Borrowing 44,514,303 

 
110,545,513 

 
114,820,026 

 
40,239,790 

 
 

3.1   In 2010/11 the Council’s actual debt management costs (borrowing) were £1,209,976 
compared to a revised budget of £1,212,600, a saving of £2,624. The weighted average 
rate on all loans for 2010/11 was 3.13% (2009/10 2.81%) against a revised estimated 
rate of 3.08%. 

       The interest repaid from the HRA for the use of debt balances amounted to £524,956 
against a revised budget of £576,900. The primary reason for this shortfall is that the 
calculation for the HRA Item 8 Debit at revised budget estimated the consolidated rate 
of interest to be 3.08% on all borrowing, however due to the Council’s weighted average 
of total borrowing for 2010/11 being lower than the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR), a different formula was used to calculate the HRA Item 8 Debit. This resulted in 
the HRA being charged 2.80% compared with 3.13% and a shortfall of £51,944 interest 
payable to the General Fund occurred. Furthermore due to slippage in capital 
expenditure and savings made on revenue expenditure the HRA revenue balances 
were higher than estimated at revised budget time. Interest paid to the HRA for revenue 
balances amounted to £83,220 compared with the revised budget of £74,200. 

Page 70



   

Cabinet 21st June 2011  Financial outturn 2010/11  
 Page 3 of 6  
  

3.2  No debt rescheduling was undertaken in 2010/11. One of the reasons for this was due 
to a change in the rates of PWLB loans. Following the Comprehensive Spending 
Review in October 2010, on instruction from HM Treasury, the PWLB increased the 
margin for new borrowing to average 1% above the yield in the corresponding UK 
Government Gilt. Premature repayment rates did not benefit from this increase, which 
potentially makes future rescheduling of PWLB loans more challenging.  

        4.     Investments 
                   4.1   The CLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments in England was revised during 

2009/10 and came into effect on 1st April 2010, reiterating security and liquidity as the 
primary objectives of a prudent investment policy. In the revised Guidance, Specified 
Investments are those made with a body or scheme of “high credit quality”. Both the 
Guidance and the revised Treasury Management Code emphasise that counterparty 
credit criteria should not rely on credit ratings alone but should include a wider range of 
indicators. The revised Code nonetheless requires that ratings assigned by all three 
agencies – Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s be taken into account and the lowest 
rating be used. 

                            Security of capital remained the Council’s main investment objective. This was 
maintained by following the Council’s counterparty policy as set out in its Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement for 2010/11. Investments made during the year were 
kept to Call Accounts and deposits with UK banks which met the credit criteria and are 
all systemically important to the UK’s banking system.                    

4.2  Investments - Movements in the Council’s investment portfolio during 2010/11 can be   
seen in the table below. 

Source of Loan 
 

Temporary 
Lending 

Balance at 
1 April 
2010 
£ 

Raised  
during 
the year 

                  £ 

Repaid  
during 
the year 
£ 

           Balance at 
31 March  
2011 
£ 

 
 
  - Building 
Societies 
 
 
  - Banks 
 
 
Bank of 
Scotland Call 
A/C 
 
 
 

 
 
 

0 
 
 

2,000,000 
 
 
 

0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 
 
 

7,800,000 
 
 
 

60,460,000 
            
                        
    

 
 
 

0 
 
 

4,800,000 
 
 
 

59,560,000 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 

0 
 
 

5,000,000 
 
 
 

                   900,000 
                                   

              

Total Short  
Term Lending 

2,000,000 68,260,000 64,360,000 5,900,000 

Page 71



   

Cabinet 21st June 2011  Financial outturn 2010/11  
 Page 4 of 6  
  

 
 
 
 
Long Term 
Lending 
 

 
 
 
 

Balance at 
1 April 
2010 
£ 

 
 
 
 

Raised  
during 
the year 

                  £ 

 
 
 
 

Repaid  
during 
the year 
£ 

    
 
 
 
        Balance at 

31 March  
2011 
£ 

- Building 
Societies 

 
-     Banks 

 
0 
 

13,950,000 

 
0 
 

0 

 
0 
 

2,540,000 

 
0 
 

11,410,000 
 

Total Long 
Term Lending 

13,950,000 0 2,540,000 11,410,000 

Total External 
Investments 

15,950,000 68,260,000 66,900,000 17,310,000 

 
 

4.3    The Council had £9.56 million deposited in the collapsed Icelandic banks as at 31st 
March 2011. The Council has received £540,000 from the administrators of Kaupthing 
Singer & Friedlander (KSF) in 2010/11, which equates to 18p in the pound and a total 
of 53p in the pound overall. Of the original £3m deposited with KSF, £1.41m principle 
is still due. Recent information provided by the administrators have indicated a 
recovery rate of 78p to 86p in the £ (up from 65p to 78p reported in the 2009/10 outturn 
report).  

4.4   The deposits with Glitnir Bank (£3m) and Landbanki Bank ( £5m) have been through 
the process of legal proceedings. Both cases were heard by the Icelandic District Court 
in early 2011, which decided that UK Local Authorities’ deposits should be classified as 
priority claims. The decision of the Icelandic District Court is being appealed to the 
Icelandic Supreme Court by the other parties and a final judgement is anticipated in the 
autumn of 2011. If the Supreme Court confirms the deposit claims of UK Local 
Authorities are priority claims, the Council could receive all outstanding monies with 
Glitnir towards the end of 2011. If the Supreme Court decides the claims are not 
priority claims, the recovery will be the same as that of other general unsecured 
creditors, which is expected to be 29% and will be paid over a longer period. Similarly 
with Landsbanki, if depositor priority is upheld creditors will recover 95% over a 
number of years. If depositor priority is not upheld, then the recovery for all general 
unsecured creditors is expected to be 38%. 

4.6      The Council’s investment income for 2010/11 was £228,577 compared to a revised 
estimate of £221,100, a surplus of £7,477. As mentioned in paragraph 3.1 the HRA 
revenue balances are higher than forecast as less capital expenditure was required 
which resulted in the General Fund having more to invest for a longer period. 

4.7    At the year end, the overall treasury management position (external borrowing less 
external investments) was such that the Council was a net borrower to the sum of 
£22.9m (2009/10 £28.4m). The overall interest receivable and payable for 2010/11 was 
an underspend against revised budget of £10,101 on the General Fund while the 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is £60,964 favourable against revised budget, 
meaning a shortfall in interest of £50,863 to report for the financial year. 

 

Page 72



   

Cabinet 21st June 2011  Financial outturn 2010/11  
 Page 5 of 6  
  

                 5.        Credit Risk  
                            As stated in the Annual Investment Strategy 2010/10 the Council will monitor and 

update the credit standing of the institutions on a regular basis. Information was not 
just based on credit ratings but was also assessed and monitored with reference to:- 

• Statement of Government Support 
• Credit default Swaps 
• Corporate developments 
• Share price 

Counterparty credit quality has been maintained as demonstrated by the Credit Score 
Analysis table summarised below on all deposits for the Council held during the 
2010/11 financial year which has been provided by Arlingclose Ltd.                

Date Total 
Investments 
(Excluding 
Icelandic 
Banks) 

Average  
rate of 
Investments 

Time 
Weighted 
Average 
Credit 
Rating  

Time 
Weighted 
Average 
Credit 
Risk 
Score 

Value 
Weighted 
Average 
Credit 
Risk 
Score 

Average 
Life 
(days) 

31/03/2010 £6m 4.57% A+ 5.10 4.89 452 
30/06/2010 £7.4m 3.85% A 5.56 4.78 194 
30/09/2010 £6.5m 2.84% A+ 5.12 4.74 249 
31/12/2010 £9.9m 2.17% A+ 5.05 4.67 144 
31/03/2011 £7.9m 2.67% A+ 4.77 4.67 195 

 
                         Appendix 9a gives a brief description of the credit scores and headings included in the  

table above.  
                           

7.     Treasury Limits and Prudential indicators 
7.1    During the financial year the Council operated within the treasury limits and Prudential 

Indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury Policy Statement and Annual Treasury 
Strategy Statement. In 2010/11 the Council set an authorised limit of £76m and an 
operational limit for borrowing of £69m, which was not breached during the financial 
year. 

8.      Treasury Management Advisors 
8.1    Arlingclose Ltd were first appointed as the Council’s treasury management advisors in       

April 2007 and the contract was extended for a further year from 1st April 2011. 

Page 73



   

Cabinet 21st June 2011  Financial outturn 2010/11  
 Page 6 of 6  
  

           During 2010/11 Arlingclose as part of their service have delivered:- 
• Over 55 Counterparty Credit updates 
• 26 Technical updates 
• 28 Economic updates/Interest rate forecasts 
• Held 9 workshops to attend to learn new legislation/changes in treasury 

management         
• Quarterly reviews on the Councils Debt and Investment portfolio    
• Attended 2 Treasury Management Panel meetings in 2010/11 
• Provide templates for  treasury reports – x 3  
• Email 2 weekly bulletins – Preview and a review of the week. 

8.2      The Council is clear as to the services it expects and is provided under the contract. 
The Council is also clear that overall responsibility for treasury management remains 
with the Council.                                                                                                                

9.        Conclusions 
9.1 Members are asked to note the outturn for 2010/11.   
 

         
 
 

 

Page 74



                                                                                                                    Appendix 9a 

Treasury Outturn Report 2010/11 
 

Table 1: Credit Score Analysis 
 
Scoring:  

Long-Term 
Credit Rating Score 

AAA 1 
AA+ 2 
AA 3 
AA- 4 
A+ 5 
A 6 
A- 7 

BBB+ 8 
BBB 9 
BBB- 10 

Not rated 11 
BB 12 

CCC 13 
C 14 
D 15 

 
 
• Value Weighted Average Credit Risk - The value weighted average reflects to the credit quality of 

investments to the size of the deposit.  
• Time Weighted Average Credit Risk – This reflects the credit quality of investments according to 

the maturity of the deposits. An ideal scenario  would have a lower time weighted average credit 
score than for Value weighted credit score, this would then indicate that where a long term 
investment decision were taken a higher credit quality counterparty had been selected. The Council 
aims to achieve a score of 5 or lower, to reflect the Council’s overriding priority of security of 
monies invested 

• Average number of days to maturity – As a general rule Council would aim to, over time, convert a 
greater average length of portfolio duration into a greater than average return.  
 

• Value Weighted Average V’s Average number of days to maturity – Council should strive to take 
less credit risk when extending their investments for a greater duration.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 75



Page 76
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE

ND
IX 

10

RE
SE

RV
ES

 AT
 31

ST
 M
AR

CH
 20

11
20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

Re
se
rve

Pu
rp
os
e o

f R
es
erv

e
31
/3/
10

Mo
ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
Tr
an
sfe

r o
f

Re
-al
ign

me
nt

31
/3/
11

Re
ve
nu
e

Ca
pit
al

Un
de
rsp

en
d

EA
RM

AR
KE

D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
£

£
£

£
£

£

Ot
he
r

BR
01

Sin
gle

 St
atu

s R
es

erv
e

To
 fu

nd
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f S

ing
le 

Sta
tus

(33
2,9

47
.00

)
31

8,7
00

.00
(14

,24
7.0

0)
BR

02
Pe

ns
ion

 R
es

erv
e

To
 fu

nd
 fu

tur
e p

en
sio

n l
iab

ilit
y

(93
,87

3.3
8)

65
,50

0.0
0

(28
,37

3.3
8)

BR
03

CP
A R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 fu
tur

e C
PA

 co
sts

0.0
0

0.0
0

BR
04

Ec
on

om
ic 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Re

se
rve

To
 fu

nd
 fu

tur
e e

co
no

mi
c s

tud
ies

(14
,20

0.0
0)

(14
,20

0.0
0)

BR
05

IBS
 Li

ce
ns

e R
es

erv
e

To
 fu

nd
 co

st 
of 

IBS
 lic

en
se

 pa
id 

up
 fro

nt
(15

5,5
00

.00
)

6,8
00

.00
(14

8,7
00

.00
)

BR
06

Ke
ep

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 Ti

dy
 R

es
erv

e
Ke

ep
 C

he
lte

nh
am

 Ti
dy

 ca
mp

aig
n -

 sc
he

me
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

(62
6.2

7)
(62

6.2
7)

BR
08

Gr
av

e M
ain

ten
an

ce
 R

es
erv

e
Lo

ng
-te

rm
 gr

av
e m

ain
ten

an
ce

(3,
67

4.3
3)

3,6
74

.33
0.0

0
BR

09
Cu

ltu
ral

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 fu
tur

e a
rts

 fa
cil

itie
s/a

cti
vit

y
(80

,16
1.0

0)
57

,80
0.0

0
(22

,36
1.0

0)
BR

10
LA

BG
I R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 fu
tur

e e
co

no
mi

c /
 cu

ltu
ral

 de
ve

lop
me

nt
(30

1,0
52

.86
)

22
5,0

00
.00

(76
,05

2.8
6)

BR
11

Ho
us

ing
 N

ee
ds

 As
se

ss
me

nt 
Re

se
rve

To
 fu

nd
 cy

cli
ca

l h
ou

sin
g n

ee
ds

 su
rve

ys
(57

,58
9.8

3)
57

,58
9.8

3
0.0

0
BR

12
Ho

us
e S

urv
ey

 R
es

erv
e

To
 fu

nd
 cy

cli
ca

l h
ou

sin
g s

toc
k c

on
dit

ion
 su

rve
ys

(39
,93

5.0
0)

(7,
50

0.0
0)

(57
,58

9.8
3)

(10
5,0

24
.83

)
BR

13
Tw

inn
ing

 R
es

erv
e

Tw
inn

ing
 to

wn
s c

ivi
c v

isi
ts 

to 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m

(17
,40

0.0
0)

(17
,40

0.0
0)

BR
14

Flo
od

 Al
lev

iat
ion

 R
es

erv
e

To
 fu

nd
 fu

tur
e f

loo
d r

es
ilie

nc
e w

ork
, d

ele
ga

ted
 to

 th
e F

loo
d 

wo
rki

ng
 gr

ou
p f

or 
all

oc
ati

on
(42

3,9
34

.70
)

75
,84

1.1
8

(34
8,0

93
.52

)
BR

15
Ar

t G
all

ery
 & 

Mu
se

um
 D

ev
elo

pm
en

t R
es

erv
e

(2,
00

0,0
00

.00
)

(2,
00

0,0
00

.00
)

BR
25

Pu
mp

 R
oo

m 
Ins

ura
nc

e R
es

erv
e

Ins
ura

nc
e r

es
erv

e f
or 

sto
len

 je
we

lle
ry

(28
,06

6.1
1)

(28
,06

6.1
1)

BR
26

Mu
se

um
 Sh

op
 R

es
erv

e
Ac

cu
mu

lat
ed

 pr
ofi

ts 
he

ld 
for

 M
us

eu
m 

sh
op

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
0.0

0
0.0

0
BR

27
TIC

 Sh
op

 R
es

erv
e

Ac
cu

mu
lat

ed
 pr

ofi
ts 

he
ld 

for
 TI

C 
sh

op
 im

pro
ve

me
nts

(11
,72

9.1
8)

(11
,72

9.1
8)

BR
30

GF
 In

su
ran

ce
 R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 ris
k m

an
ag

em
en

t in
itia

tiv
es

 / e
xc

es
s /

 pr
em

ium
 

inc
rea

se
s

(15
9,9

71
.44

)
(15

9,9
71

.44
)

BR
42

Ve
hic

le 
Le

as
ing

 Eq
ua

lis
ati

on
 R

es
erv

e
Pu

rch
as

e o
f v

eh
icl

es
 an

d e
qu

ipm
en

t
(11

1,6
74

.04
)

(4,
41

1.2
0)

(11
6,0

85
.24

)
BR

45
Jo

int
 C

ore
 St

rat
eg

y R
es

erv
e

To
 fu

nd
 Jo

int
 C

ore
 St

rat
eg

y
(11

0,0
00

.00
)

(12
4,5

80
.36

)
(23

4,5
80

.36
)

BR
54

Le
ga

l S
taf

f R
es

erv
e

To
 fu

nd
 se

t-u
p c

os
ts 

of 
On

e L
eg

al
(16

,35
0.0

0)
(3,

00
0.0

0)
(19

,35
0.0

0)
BR

54
Le

ga
l S

taf
f R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 se
t-u

p c
os

ts 
of 

On
e L

eg
al

(16
,35

0.0
0)

(3,
00

0.0
0)

(19
,35

0.0
0)

BR
58

Civ
ic 

Pr
ide

To
 pu

mp
 pr

im
e c

ivi
c p

rid
e i

nit
iat

ive
 / m

atc
h f

un
din

g
(25

3,5
86

.76
)

17
0,3

89
.16

(1,
00

0,0
00

.00
)

(1,
08

3,1
97

.60
)

(4,
21
2,2

71
.90

)
(4,
42
8,0

58
.79

)
Re

pa
irs
 &
 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

es
BR

52
Co

mm
ute

d M
ain

ten
an

ce
 R

es
erv

e
De

ve
lop

er 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

 to
 fu

nd
 m

ain
ten

an
ce

(32
9,6

29
.37

)
66

,00
0.0

0
(26

3,6
29

.37
)

BR
78

Hig
hw

ay
s I

ns
ura

nc
e R

es
erv

e
Co

un
ty 

hig
hw

ay
s -

 in
su

ran
ce

 ex
ce

ss
es

(28
,58

3.9
1)

13
,58

3.9
1

(15
,00

0.0
0)

BR
83

Co
un

cil
 Ta

x/B
en

efi
ts 

IT 
Re

se
rve

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
fun

d t
o c

ov
er 

so
ftw

are
 re

lea
se

s
(30

,00
0.0

0)
(30

,00
0.0

0)
BR

88
I.T

. R
ep

air
s &

 R
en

ew
als

 R
es

erv
e

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
fun

d
(78

,46
4.7

0)
(54

,60
0.0

0)
(13

3,0
64

.70
)

BR
89

Pla
nn

ed
 M

ain
ten

an
ce

 R
es

erv
e

20
 ye

ar 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 fu
nd

(1,
06

3,7
08

.61
)

37
,77

9.4
9

(1,
02

5,9
29

.12
)

(1,
53
0,3

86
.59

)
(1,
46
7,6

23
.19

)

Pa
ge

 1

Page 77



AP
PE

ND
IX 

10

RE
SE

RV
ES

 AT
 31

ST
 M
AR

CH
 20

11
20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

Re
se
rve

Pu
rp
os
e o

f R
es
erv

e
31
/3/
10

Mo
ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
Tr
an
sfe

r o
f

Re
-al
ign

me
nt

31
/3/
11

Re
ve
nu
e

Ca
pit
al

Un
de
rsp

en
d

EA
RM

AR
KE

D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
£

£
£

£
£

£

Eq
ua
lis
ati
on
 R
es
erv

es
BR

61
Pla

nn
ing

 D
eli

ve
ry 

Gr
an

t E
qu

ali
sa

tio
n

Cu
sh

ion
 im

pa
ct 

of 
flu

ctu
ati

ng
 ac

tiv
ity

 le
ve

ls
(84

8,1
72

.67
)

13
0,8

00
.00

71
7,3

72
.67

0.0
0

BR
63

Re
nt 

All
ow

an
ce

s E
qu

ali
sa

tio
n

Cu
sh

ion
 im

pa
ct 

of 
flu

ctu
ati

ng
 ac

tiv
ity

 le
ve

ls
(11

0,3
55

.60
)

(9,
30

0.0
0)

(11
9,6

55
.60

)

BR
64

Pla
nn

ing
 Ap

pe
als

 Eq
ua

lis
ati

on
Fu

nd
ing

 fo
r o

ne
 of

f a
pe

als
 co

st 
in 

ex
ce

ss
 of

 re
ve

nu
e b

ud
ge

t
(38

,95
5.0

9)
(38

,95
5.0

9)

BR
65

Lic
en

sin
g F

ee
s E

qu
ali

sa
tio

n
Pa

st 
inc

om
e s

urp
lus

es
 to

 cu
sh

ion
 im

pa
ct 

of 
rev

ise
d l

eg
isl

ati
on

(43
,70

0.0
0)

15
,34

5.0
0

(28
,35

5.0
0)

BR
66

Int
ere

st 
Eq

ua
lis

ati
on

To
 co

ve
r a

ny
 ad

dit
ion

al 
los

se
s a

ris
ing

 in
 th

e v
alu

e o
f Ic

ela
nd

ic 
de

po
sit

s a
nd

/or
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e b
orr

ow
ing

 ar
isi

ng
 fro

m 
the

 
ca

pit
ali

sa
tio

n o
f th

e l
os

se
s

0.0
0

(2,
78

7,5
94

.76
)

(2,
78

7,5
94

.76
)

BR
72

Lo
ca

l P
lan

 Eq
ua

lis
ati

on
Fu

nd
 cy

cli
ca

l c
os

t o
f lo

ca
l p

lan
 in

qu
iry

(13
5,0

30
.00

)
80

,00
0.0

0
(55

,03
0.0

0)
BR

76
Ele

cti
on

s/E
lec

tor
al 

Re
g. 

Eq
ua

lis
ati

on
Fu

nd
 cy

cli
ca

l c
os

t o
f lo

ca
l e

lec
tio

ns
(66

,20
0.0

0)
54

,70
0.0

0
(11

,50
0.0

0)
(1,
24
2,4

13
.36

)
(3,
04
1,0

90
.45

)
Re

se
rve

s f
or
 co

mm
itm

en
ts

BR
91

Ol
d Y

ea
r C

red
ito

r R
sv

e -
 R

R
Ap

pro
ve

d b
ud

ge
t c

arr
y f

orw
ard

s
(25

8,0
00
.00

)
25

8,0
00

.00
0.0

0

CA
PIT

AL
BR

77
Ca

pit
al 

Re
se

rve
 - G

F H
ou

sin
g

To
 fu

nd
 H

ou
sin

g G
en

era
l F

un
d c

ap
ita

l e
xp

en
dit

ure
(2,

20
2,4

76
.15

)
1,3

00
,00

0.0
0

(90
2,4

76
.15

)
BR

92
Ca

pit
al 

Re
se

rve
 - G

F
To

 fu
nd

 G
en

era
l F

un
d c

ap
ita

l e
xp

en
dit

ure
 

(81
6,4

57
.80

)
(45

3,6
00

.00
)

66
8,2

58
.12

(30
0,0

00
.00

)
(90

1,7
99

.68
)

(3,
01
8,9

33
.95

)
(1,
80
4,2

75
.83

)

TO
TA

L E
AR

MA
RK

ED
 R
ES

ER
VE

S
(10

,26
2,0

05
.80

)
(10

,74
1,0

48
.26

)

GE
NE

RA
L F

UN
D 
BA

LA
NC

E
BS

01
Ge

ne
ral

 Ba
lan

ce
 - R

R
Ge

ne
ral

 ba
lan

ce
(2,

44
6,3

76
.13

)
47

1,6
03

.00
21

2,3
08

.86
(17

4,0
86

.18
)

(73
0,9

56
.58

)
(2,

66
7,5

07
.03

)
(2,
44
6,3

76
.13

)
(2,
66
7,5

07
.03

)

TO
TA

L G
EN

ER
AL

 FU
ND

 R
ES

ER
VE

S A
ND

 B
AL

AN
CE

S
(12

,70
8,3

81
.93

)
(1,
40
6,6

54
.16

)
88
0,5

66
.98

(17
4,0

86
.18

)
0.0

0
(13

,40
8,5

55
.29

)

Pa
ge

 2

Page 78



AP
PE

ND
IX 
11

GE
NE

RA
L F

UN
D 
CA

PIT
AL

 PR
OG

RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he
me

 
Sc
he
me

 D
es
cri
pti
on

Or
igi
na
l

Pa
ym

en
ts

Re
vis
ed

(U
nd
ers

pe
nd
)/

Ap
pr
ov
ed
 

Re
vis
ed
 

Co
mm

en
ts

Sc
he
me

to
Bu
dg
et

Ou
ttu
rn

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Bu
dg
et

Bu
dg
et

 
 

 
 

Co
st

31
/03
/10

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

£
£

£
£

£
BU

ILT
 EN

VIR
ON

ME
NT

 

Va
rio
us

C/
R

Pr
og

ram
me

d M
ain

ten
an

ce
Ne

w 
cre

ma
tor

s
20

0,0
00

0
20

0,0
00

45
5,0

00
65

5,0
00

Co
mp

lex
itie

s i
n p

roc
ure

me
nt 

pro
ce
ss
 ha

ve
 

de
lay

ed
 ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

un
til 
20

11
/12

.

C
Re

ge
nt 

Ar
ca
de

Es
tim

ate
d s

ha
re 

of 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

co
sts

 - r
ec
las

sif
ied

 as
 

rev
en

ue
 ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

as
 as

se
t w

as
 re

va
lue

d a
t 3

1s
t M

arc
h 

20
10

35
0,0

00
0

0
0

GR
EE

N 
EN

VIR
ON

ME
NT

 

LC
60

01
S

S.
10

6 P
lay

 ar
ea

 re
fur

bis
hm

en
t

De
ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

50
,00

0
23

,43
1

26
,56

9
50

,00
0

76
,50

0

Fo
cu
s d

uri
ng

 20
10

/11
 ha

s b
ee

n p
lac

ed
 on

 
sp
en

din
g P

lay
bu

ild
er 

fun
ds
 w
hic

h a
re 

tim
e 

lim
ite
d, 

res
ult
ing

 in
 a 

de
lay

 to
 ot

he
r p

lan
ne

d 
wo

rks
. T

he
 re

ma
ini
ng

 fu
nd

s w
ill 
be

 us
ed

 to
 

co
nti
nu

e t
he

se
 re

fur
bis

hm
en

ts 
in 
20

11
/12

.

LC
60

06
C

Pla
y A

rea
 E
nh

an
ce
me

nt

On
go

ing
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 m
ain

ten
an

ce
 an

d r
efu

rbi
sh
me

nt 
of 

pla
y a

rea
s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
ey
 im

pro
ve
 an

d m
ee

t s
afe

ty 
sta

nd
ard

s 
22

6,0
00

22
8,2

23
(2,

22
3)

80
,00

0
80

,00
0

LC
60

11
P

Pit
tvi
lle
 P
ark

 B
oa

tho
us
e

En
ha

nc
em

en
ts 
to 

Pit
tvi
lle
 P
ark

 in
clu

din
g t

he
 B
oa

tho
us
e 

bri
dg

e f
un

de
d f

rom
 S
ev
ern

 Tr
en

t W
ate

r C
om

mu
nit
y F

un
d 

aw
ard

ed
 fo

llo
win

g t
he

 flo
od

s i
n 2

00
7.

72
,00

0
0

72
,00

0
0

72
,00

0

Th
e b

ud
ge

t o
f £

72
,00

0 i
s f
un

de
d b

y t
he

 
Se

ve
rn 

Tre
nt 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Fu

nd
 fo

r 
im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 th
e P

ittv
ille

 P
ark

 B
oa

tho
us
e 

Br
idg

e. 
 C
on

tra
cts

 ha
ve
 be

en
 le
t, b

ut 
wo

rks
 

wil
l n
ot 

be
 co

mp
let
ed

 un
til 
Ju
ly 
20

11
.

Ma
tch

 fu
nd

ed
 w
ith
 N
atu

ral
 E
ng

lan
d t

o c
on

str
uc
t d

ry 
sto

ne
 

wa
llin

g o
n L

ec
kh
am

pto
n H

ill 
sit
 of

 sp
ec
ial
 sc

ien
tifi
c 

Th
e c

on
str

uc
tio
n o

f d
ry 
wa

llin
g o

n 
Le

ck
ha

mp
ton

 H
ill 
ha

s b
ee

n m
atc

h f
un

de
d b

y 
Na

tur
al 
En

gla
nd

, b
ala

nc
e o

f o
ve
rsp

en
d w

ill 
LC

60
15

P
Le

ck
ha

mp
ton

 H
ill 
dry

 st
on

e w
all

int
ere

st 
(S
SS

I)
62

0,0
00

48
3,0

00
54

0,4
18

(57
,41

8)
be

 fu
nd

ed
 by

 N
atu

ral
 E
ng

lan
d i
n 2

01
1/1

2.

LC
60

20
C

Mu
lti 
Us

e G
am

es
 A
rea

s (
MU

GA
's)

Pr
ov
isi
on

 of
 M
UG

A's
 at

 B
riz
en

 R
ec
rea

tio
n G

rou
nd

, 
Sa

nd
for

d P
ark

, N
au

nto
n P

ark
, a

nd
 O
ak
ley

13
5,0

00
12

1,7
54

13
,00

0
13

,65
0

(65
0)

IN
TE
GR

AT
ED

 TR
AN

SP
OR

T 

EC
00

33
C

CC
TV

 in
 C
ar 

Pa
rks

Ad
dit
ion

al 
CC

TV
 in
 or

de
r to

 im
pro

ve
 sh

op
pin

g a
rea

s a
nd

 
red

uc
e f

ea
r o

f c
rim

e
84

,00
0

29
,11

3
54

,88
7

50
,00

0
10

4,8
00

Fu
rth

er 
wo

rk 
is 
req

uir
ed

 in
 th

e s
tra

teg
ic 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss
 as

so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 C
CT

V.
  

Ca
r P

ark
s a

nd
 C
om

mu
nit
y P

rot
ec
tio
n w

ill 
be

 
wo

rki
ng

 on
 lin

kin
g t

he
 va

rio
us
 C
CT

V 
fac

ilit
ies

 
inc

lud
ing

 op
era

tio
n a

nd
 m

on
ito
rin
g, 

wh
ich

 w
ill 

inc
lud

e t
he

 ne
ed

 fo
r in

ve
stm

en
t in

 A
uto

ma
tic
 

Nu
mb

er 
Pla

te 
Re

co
gn

itio
n (

AP
NR

) 
tec

hn
olo

gy
.  T

he
 20

10
/11

 un
de

rsp
en

d w
ill 
be

 
ne

ed
ed

 in
 20

11
/12

 to
 su

pp
ort

 th
is 

inv
es
tm

en
t.

EC
00

37
C

s1
06

 In
teg

rat
ed

 Tr
an

sp
ort

 D
ivi
sio

n
0

9,6
61

(9,
66

1)

EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 M
AIN

TE
NA

NC
E

EC
00

51
C

Re
-jo
int
ing

 H
igh

 S
tre

et/
Pr
om

en
ad

e p
ed

es
tria

nis
ed

 ar
ea

Re
-jo

int
ing

 w
ork

s r
eq

uir
ed

 to
 im

pro
ve
 sa

fet
y a

nd
 

ap
pe

ara
nc
e o

f th
e c

ore
 co

mm
erc

ial
 ar

ea
60

,00
0

36
,73

4
23

,00
0

15
,25

9
7,7

41
0

7,7
00

Th
e H

igh
wa

ys
 A
uth

ori
ty 
ha

s y
et 

to 
co
nfi
rm

 
da

tes
 fo

r th
e r

em
ain

ing
 w
ork

s t
o b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n, 

the
 un

de
rsp

en
d w

ill 
be

 ne
ed

ed
 

in 
20

11
/12

.

Pa
ge
 1 

Page 79



AP
PE

ND
IX 
11

GE
NE

RA
L F

UN
D 
CA

PIT
AL

 PR
OG

RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he
me

 
Sc
he
me

 D
es
cri
pti
on

Or
igi
na
l

Pa
ym

en
ts

Re
vis
ed

(U
nd
ers

pe
nd
)/

Ap
pr
ov
ed
 

Re
vis
ed
 

Co
mm

en
ts

Sc
he
me

to
Bu
dg
et

Ou
ttu
rn

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Bu
dg
et

Bu
dg
et

 
 

 
 

Co
st

31
/03
/10

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

£
£

£
£

£

LC
60

22
C

Bu
ria
l C

ha
pe

l
Inv

es
t to

 sa
ve
 sc

he
me

 to
 co

nv
ert

 bu
ria

l c
ha

pe
l to

 ha
nd

le 
cre

ma
tio
ns
.

11
0,0

00
11

0,0
00

99
,82

9
10

,17
1

0
10

,10
0

Fu
rth

er 
wo

rks
 to

 th
e C

ha
pe

l a
re 

pla
nn

ed
 

inc
lud

ing
, th

e p
rov

isi
on

 of
 a 

rem
ov
ab

le 
ex
ter

na
l s
pe

ak
er 

sy
ste

m 
for

 la
rge

 fu
ne

ral
s 

tha
t a

re 
un

ab
le 
to 

fit 
wit

hin
 th

e c
ha

pe
ls,
 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
to 

roa
ds
, ro

ad
 m

ark
ing

s a
nd

 
sig

na
ge

 ar
ou

nd
 th

e c
ha

pe
l, n

ew
 

fur
nit
ure

/fit
tin
gs
 fo

r th
e c

ha
pe

l w
ait
ing

 ro
om

 
an

d n
ew

 pl
an

tin
g. 

 Th
e r

em
ain

ing
 bu

dg
et 

wil
l 

be
 re

qu
ire
d t

o f
un

d t
he

se
 w
ork

s i
n 2

01
1/1

2.

LC
60

23
P

Ga
rdn

ers
 La

ne

A 
pa

rt c
ou

nc
il o

wn
ed

 un
ad

op
ted

 la
ne

 w
hic

h p
rov

ide
s 

ac
ce
ss
 to

 th
e a

nim
al 
sh
elt
er,

 G
ard

ne
rs 

La
ne

 P
rim

ary
 

Sc
ho

ol,
 th

e U
niv

ers
ity
's 
pla

yin
g f

iel
d a

nd
 M
idw

int
er 

all
otm

en
ts 
req

uir
ed

 m
ajo

r re
pa

ir p
rio

r to
 G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 
Co

un
ty 
Co

un
cil
 be

ing
 w
illin

g t
o a

do
pt 

it. 
 To

 ne
ga

te 
the

 
co
un

cil
's 
on

go
ing

 m
ain

ten
an

ce
 re

sp
on

sib
ilit
y t
he

 ro
ad

 ha
s 

be
en

 re
pa

ire
d t

o a
do

pta
ble

 st
an

da
rds

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 

the
 ot

he
r o

rga
nis

ati
on

s u
sin

g t
he

 ac
ce
ss
 la
ne

.  T
he

 
co
un

cil
 ha

s r
es
po

ns
ibi
lity

 fo
r m

an
ag

ing
 th

e p
roj

ec
t a

nd
 

inv
es
tin
g t

he
 pa

rtn
ers

 fu
nd

ing
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
.

0
89

,89
1

(89
,89

1)

Th
e r

oa
d h

as
 be

en
 re

pa
ire
d b

ut 
fur

the
r 

pa
ym

en
ts 
tot

all
ing

 c.
 £2

1k
 w
ill 
be

 re
qu

ire
d i
n 

20
11

/12
 to

 co
ve
r th

e f
ina

l c
on

tra
cto

r 
pa

ym
en

ts 
an

d r
ete

nti
on

.  T
he

se
 co

sts
 w
ill 
be

 
fun

de
d b

y t
he

 pa
rtn

ers
.

EC
00

57
C

Re
cy
cli
ng

 V
eh

icl
es

0
61

9,1
38

(61
9,1

38
)

Ca
pit
al 
ex
pe

nd
itu
re 

in 
20

10
/11

 on
 as

se
ts 

req
uir
ed

 fo
r th

e d
eli
ve
ry 
of 

the
 W

as
te 

& 
Re

cy
cli
ng

 S
ch
em

e.
EC

00
58

C
Re

cy
cli
ng

 C
ad

die
s

0
19

2,8
87

(19
2,8

87
)

EC
00

59
C

Re
cy
cli
ng

 24
0l 
Bin

s (
Gr
ee

n W
as
te)

0
27

0,5
80

(27
0,5

80
)

Fin
an
cia

l S
erv

ice
s

GC
ER

P
C

GO
 E
RP

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
ER

P 
sy
ste

m 
wit

hin
 th

e G
O 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
32

1,7
00

21
2,3

09
10

9,3
91

10
0,0

00
20

9,4
00

Ba
lan

ce
 of

 20
10

/11
 bu

dg
et 

wil
l b
e r

eq
uir
ed

 in
 

20
11

/12
 to

 en
su
re 

de
liv
ery

 of
 th

e G
O 

Pr
og

ram
me

.

C
Gl
ou

ce
ste

rsh
ire
 A
irp
ort

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t

ow
ard

s t
he

 re
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
jec

t - 
£1

.2m
 

loa
n

1,2
00

,00
0

1,2
00

,00
0

IC
T

DC
32

04
C

Bu
sin

es
s C

ha
ng

e P
rog

ram
me

Pr
ep

ara
tio
n o

f th
e G

O 
Ce

ntr
e o

f E
xc
ell
en

ce
 pr

op
os
als

 fo
r 

IC
T h

os
tin
g

DC
32

11
C

W
ork

ing
 Fl
ex
ibl
y

De
liv
er 

co
un

cil
 se

rvi
ce
s a

t a
 tim

e a
nd

 pl
ac
e w

hic
h s

uit
 th

e 
cu
sto

me
r.  

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f C
itri
x e

nv
iro

nm
en

t to
 de

liv
er 

bu
sin

es
s a

pll
ica

tio
ns
 to

 th
e h

om
e /

 re
mo

te 
us
ers

 de
sk
top

11
6,0

00
80

,69
8

35
,30

2
0

35
,30

0

Th
e b

ala
nc
e o

f th
is 
bu

dg
et 

wil
l b
e r

eq
uir
ed

 in
 

20
11

/12
 to

 su
pp

ort
 th

e p
roc

ure
me

nt 
of 

a 
rep

lac
em

en
t re

mo
te 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n a

cc
es
s 

ga
tew

ay
, li
ce
nc
es
 an

d p
rof

es
sio

na
l s
erv

ice
s 

as
 a 

res
ult
 of

 th
e c

urr
en

t s
up

pli
er'
s i
mm

ine
nt 

de
co
mm

iss
ioi
ng

 of
 th

e g
ate

wa
y i
n c

urr
en

t 
us
e. 

 Th
is 
is 
ne

ce
ss
ary

 fo
r th

e c
on

tin
ue

d 
de

liv
ery

 of
 th

e r
em

ote
 w
ork

ing
 fu

nc
tio
na

lity
.

DC
32

13
C

St
ora

ge
 A
rea

 N
etw

ork
St
ora

ge
 fo

r th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 da
ta 

in 
a s

ec
ure

, e
xp
an

da
ble

 
an

d r
ob

us
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t
15

5,0
00

15
5,0

00
14

2,2
97

12
,70

3
0

12
,70

0

Th
e r

em
ain

ing
 fu

nd
s w

ill 
be

 ne
ed

ed
 in
 

20
11

/12
 to

 en
ab

le 
ad

dit
ion

al 
se
rve

rs 
to 

be
 in
 

sc
op

e f
or 

co
nti
nu

al 
im
pro

ve
me

nt,
 so

ftw
are

 
an

d p
rof

es
sio

na
l s
erv

ice
s.

Re
cy
cli
ng

 S
ch
em

e.

Pa
ge
 2 

Page 80



AP
PE

ND
IX 
11

GE
NE

RA
L F

UN
D 
CA

PIT
AL

 PR
OG

RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he
me

 
Sc
he
me

 D
es
cri
pti
on

Or
igi
na
l

Pa
ym

en
ts

Re
vis
ed

(U
nd
ers

pe
nd
)/

Ap
pr
ov
ed
 

Re
vis
ed
 

Co
mm

en
ts

Sc
he
me

to
Bu
dg
et

Ou
ttu
rn

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Bu
dg
et

Bu
dg
et

 
 

 
 

Co
st

31
/03
/10

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

£
£

£
£

£
RE

VE
NU

ES
 &
 B
EN

EF
ITS

DC
32

14
G

IB
S 
PT

C 
sc
he

du
ler

Sc
he

du
lin
g s

oft
wa

re 
for

 th
e R

ev
en

ue
s &

 B
en

efi
ts 
Sy

ste
m 

to 
au

tom
ate

 th
e r

un
nin

g o
f p

roc
es
se
s.

10
,60

0
11

,60
0

(1,
00

0)

DS
U

DC
32

12
C

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

co
mm

itte
e w

eb
 sy

ste
m

Th
is 
pro

po
sa
l is

 to
 m

igr
ate

 to
 a 

pu
rpo

se
 bu

ilt 
co
mm

itte
e 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
sy
ste

m,
 m

od
ern

.go
v w

hic
h w

ou
ld 
be

 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e f

rom
 th

e n
ew

 Ja
du

 w
eb

sit
e

20
,00

0
20

,00
0

15
,00

0
5,0

00

A 
sa
vin

g o
f £

5,0
00

 fo
llo
win

g t
he

 pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

an
d i
ns
tal
lat
ion

 of
 th

e C
om

mi
tte

e W
eb

 
Sy

ste
m 

wil
l b
e r

etu
rne

d t
o t

he
 ca

pit
al 

res
erv

e.

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 SE
RV

IC
ES

HC
74

40
C/
SC

G/
 

PS
R

Di
sa
ble

d F
ac
ilit
ies

 G
ran

ts

Ma
nd

ato
ry 
Gr
an

t fo
r th

e p
rov

isi
on

 of
 bu

ild
ing

 w
ork

, 
eq

uip
me

nt 
or 

mo
dif
yin

g a
 dw

ell
ing

 to
 re

sto
re 

or 
en

ab
le 

ind
ep

en
de

nt 
liv
ing

, p
riv
ac
y, 
co
nfi
de

nc
e a

nd
 di
gn

ity
 fo

r 
ind

ivi
du

als
 an

d t
he

ir f
am

ilie
s.

61
4,0

00
61

8,1
00

(4,
10

0)
60

0,0
00

60
0,0

00

HC
74

45
C

Ad
ap

tat
ion

 S
up

po
rt G

ran
t

Us
ed

 m
os
tly
 w
he

re 
es
se
nti
al 
rep

air
s (

he
alt
h a

nd
 sa

fet
y) 

are
 id
en

tifi
ed

 to
 en

ab
le 
the

 D
FG

 w
ork

 to
 pr

oc
ee

d (
e.g

. 
ele

ctr
ica

l w
ork

s).
  

12
,00

0
12

,00
0

0
26

,00
0

26
,00

0

HC
74

00
PS

DH
He

alt
h &

 S
afe

ty 
Gr
an

t / 
Lo

an
s

A 
ne

w 
for

m 
of 

as
sis

tan
ce
 av

ail
ab

le 
un

de
r th

e c
ou

nc
il's

 
Ho

us
ing

 R
en

ew
al 
Po

lic
y 2

00
3-0

6

HC
74

05
PS

DH
Va

ca
nt 

Pr
op

ert
y G

ran
t

A 
ne

w 
for

m 
of 

as
sis

tan
ce
 av

ail
ab

le 
un

de
r th

e c
ou

nc
il's

 
Ho

us
ing

 R
en

ew
al 
Po

lic
y 2

00
3-0

6

HC
74

10
PS

R
Re

no
va
tio
n G

ran
ts

Gr
an

ts 
pro

vid
ed

 un
de

r th
e H

ou
sin

g G
ran

ts,
 C
on

str
uc
tio
n 

an
d R

eg
en

era
tio
n A

ct 
19

96
40

0,0
00

37
5,3

51
24

,64
9

29
9,8

00
32

4,4
00

Th
e r

em
ain

ing
 20

10
/11

 w
ork

s h
av
e b

ee
n 

ap
po

ve
d a

nd
 w
ill 
be

 co
mp

let
ed

 in
 20

11
/12

.

A 
Gl
ou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

-w
ide

 pr
oje

ct 
to 

pro
mo

te 
ho

me
 en

erg
y 

eff
ici
en

cy
, p

art
icu

lar
ly 
tar

ge
ted

 at
 th

os
e w

ith
 he

alt
h 

HC
74

55
PS

DH
W
arm

 &
 W

ell
eff

ici
en

cy
, p

art
icu

lar
ly 
tar

ge
ted

 at
 th

os
e w

ith
 he

alt
h 

pro
ble

ms

HC
92

00
C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 E
na

bli
ng

Ex
pe

nd
itu
re 

in 
su
pp

ort
 of

 en
ab

lin
g t

he
 pr

ov
isi
on

 of
 ne

w 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

us
ing

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 re

gis
ter

ed
 S
oc
ial
 

La
nd

lor
ds
 an

d t
he

 H
ou

sin
g C

orp
ora

tio
n

42
,00

0
12

,00
0

30
,00

0
0

30
,00

0

Th
e r

em
ain

ing
 bu

dg
et 

wil
l b
e u

se
d t

o h
elp

 
fun

d t
ran

sfo
rm

ati
on

al 
im
pro

ve
me

nts
 in
 th

e 
St
.P
au

ls 
are

a t
o p

riv
ate

 ho
us
eh

old
s. 
 Th

is 
wil

l a
ss
sis

t p
riv
ate

 ho
us
eh

old
ers

 to
 ra

ise
 th

e 
sta

nd
ard

 of
 th

eir
 pr

iva
te 

ho
us
ing

 in
 th

e a
rea

, 
to 

ke
ep

 in
 lin

e w
ith
 ne

w 
bu

ild
 co

un
cil
 ho

us
ing

 
sto

ck
.

HC
92

00
C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 E
na

bli
ng

Ex
pe

nd
itu
re 

in 
su
pp

ort
 of

 en
ab

lin
g t

he
 pr

ov
isi
on

 of
 ne

w 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

us
ing

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 re

gis
ter

ed
 S
oc
ial
 

La
nd

lor
ds
 an

d t
he

 H
ou

sin
g C

orp
ora

tio
n

37
0,0

00
37

0,0
00

HC
92

00
C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 E
na

bli
ng

Ex
pe

nd
itu
re 

in 
su
pp

ort
 of

 en
ab

lin
g t

he
 pr

ov
isi
on

 of
 ne

w 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

us
ing

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 C
he

lte
nh

am
 

Bo
rou

gh
 H
om

es
11

0,0
00

11
0,0

00
0

1,7
90

,00
0

1,7
90

,00
0

EC
00

06
C

CC
TV

/To
wn

 C
en

tre
 in
itia

tiv
e

Ex
pa

ns
ion

 of
 on

 st
ree

t C
CT

V 
in 
the

 to
wn

 ce
ntr

e t
o 

inc
rea

se
 sa

fet
y a

nd
 se

cu
re 

the
 en

vir
on

me
nt

55
,00

0
54

,24
5

75
5

50
,00

0
50

,00
0

HE
AL

TH
 AN

D 
WE

LL
 B
EIN

G
R/
P

Ar
t G

all
ery

 &
 M
us
eu

m 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Sc
he

me
Co

un
cil
's 
co
mm

itm
en

t to
 ne

w 
sc
he

me
 as

 ag
ree

d b
y 

Co
un

cil
 20

th 
Ju
ly 
20

08
1,0

00
,00

0
1,0

00
,00

0

LC
40

07
C

Ev
ery

ma
n T

he
atr

e
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t

ow
ard

s t
he

 re
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
jec

t - 
£1

m 
loa

n a
nd

 £2
50

k g
ran

t
1,2

50
,00

0
1,2

50
,00

0
1,2

50
,00

0

IN
TE
RI
M 
BU

DG
ET
 PR

OP
OS

AL
S F

UT
UR

E 
CA

PIT
AL

 PR
OG

RA
MM

E:
C

Te
lep

ho
ny
 sw

itc
h u

pg
rad

e
70

,30
0

70
,30

0

Pa
ge
 3 

Page 81



AP
PE

ND
IX 
11

GE
NE

RA
L F

UN
D 
CA

PIT
AL

 PR
OG

RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he
me

 
Sc
he
me

 D
es
cri
pti
on

Or
igi
na
l

Pa
ym

en
ts

Re
vis
ed

(U
nd
ers

pe
nd
)/

Ap
pr
ov
ed
 

Re
vis
ed
 

Co
mm

en
ts

Sc
he
me

to
Bu
dg
et

Ou
ttu
rn

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Bu
dg
et

Bu
dg
et

 
 

 
 

Co
st

31
/03
/10

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

£
£

£
£

£
C

Ca
r p

ark
 m

an
ag

em
en

t te
ch
no

log
y

25
0,0

00
25

0,0
00

CA
PIT

AL
 SC

HE
ME

S -
 R
EC

LA
SS

IFI
ED

 AS
 

RE
VE

NU
E

DC
10

66
C

La
nd

 &
 P
rop

ert
y p

res
ale

 co
sts

Pr
op

ert
y &

 Le
ga

l c
os
ts 
as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th

e p
rop

os
ed

 
Mi
dw

int
er 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d F

ell
mo

ng
ers

 si
te

10
,00

0
22

,60
5

(12
,60

5)

LC
60

05
C

All
otm

en
ts

All
otm

en
t E

nh
an

ce
me

nts
 - n

ew
 to

ile
ts,
 pa

th 
su
rfa

cin
g, 

fen
cin

g, 
sig

na
ge

, a
nd

 ot
he

r im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 in
fra

-
str

uc
tur

e.
35

3,1
00

33
6,4

50
16

,60
0

6,3
93

10
,20

7
0

10
,20

0

Pla
nn

ed
 to

 us
e r

em
ain

ing
 bu

dg
et 

to 
pu

rch
as
e a

 co
mp

os
t to

ile
t a

t th
e A

lm
a R

oa
d 

sit
e o

nc
e t

he
 lo
ca
tio
n b

ec
om

es
 av

ail
ab

le.

EC
00

43
C

Ra
tio
na

lis
ati
on

 &
 m

ain
ten

an
ce
 of

 st
ree

t fu
rni
tur

e a
nd

 
sig

np
os
tin
g

Ob
so
let
e f

urn
itu
re 

tha
t n

ee
d r

em
ov
ing

. B
ac
klo

g o
f re

pa
irs
 

to 
sig

np
os
ts 
an

d s
tre

et 
fur

nit
ure

 
20

,00
0

8,0
71

12
,00

0
12

,00
0

0

EC
00

54
De

po
t R

ati
on

ali
sa
tio
n

Co
sts

 as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 in
co
rpo

rat
ing

 Te
wk

es
bu

ry 
Bo

rou
gh

 
Co

un
cil
 w
ith
in 
the

 D
ep

ot 
sit
e a

t S
win

do
n R

oa
d

20
0,0

00
19

1,9
73

10
8,0

00
80

,80
7

27
,19

3
0

27
,20

0

Un
de

rsp
en

d t
o b

e c
arr

ied
 fo

rw
ard

 to
 20

11
/12

 
to 

fun
d o

uts
tan

din
g w

ork
s n

ec
es
sa
ry 
to 

co
mp

let
e t

he
 pr

oje
ct.
  T

his
 in
clu

de
s f
urt

he
r 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 th
e H

ou
se
ho

ld 
Re

cy
cli
ng

 
Ce

ntr
e, 

sa
fet

y i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 
an

d b
uil
din

g 
wo

rks
 to

 th
e m

ain
 of

fic
e b

uil
din

gs
.

LC
40

03
C

Pu
bli
c A

rt
0

53
8

(53
8)

TO
TA
L C

AP
ITA

L P
RO

GR
AM

ME
3,2

63
,90

0
3,8

98
,02

3
(63

4,1
23

)
7,6

41
,10

0
8,2

61
,60

0

Fu
nd
ed
 by

:
G

Go
ve
rnm

en
t G

ran
ts

10
,60

0
10

,60
0

G
Go

ve
rnm

en
t G

ran
ts

10
,60

0
10

,60
0

SC
G

Sp
ec
ifie

d C
ap
ita
l G

ran
t (D

FG
)

30
6,0

00
31

0,1
00

30
6,0

00
30

6,0
00

LP
SA

Lo
ca
l P

ub
lic
 Se

rvi
ce
 Ag

ree
me

nt 
P
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 Fu

nd
ing

79
1,0

00
84

8,3
16

PS
DH

Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r D

ec
en
t H

om
es
 G
ran

t
54

8,0
00

52
3,3

51
29

9,8
00

29
9,8

00
HL

F
He

rita
ge
 Lo

tte
ry 
Fu

nd
ing

HR
A
Ho

us
ing

 R
ev
en
ue
 Ac

co
un
t C

on
trib

uti
on

10
0,0

00
10

0,0
00

R
Pr
op
ert

y P
lan

ne
d M

ain
ten

an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
20

0,0
00

45
5,0

00
65

5,0
00

R
AG

&M
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
1,0

00
,00

0
1,0

00
,00

0
S
De

ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 S1

06
50

,00
0

45
,62

9
50

,00
0

50
,00

0
C
Ge

ne
ral

 Ba
lan

ce
s

32
1,7

00
21

2,3
09

C
HR

A C
ap
ita
l R

ec
eip

ts
11

0,0
00

11
0,0

00
39

0,0
00

39
0,0

00
C
GF

 C
ap
ita
l R

ec
eip

ts
22

7,0
00

24
2,9

54
C
HI
P C

ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e
42

,00
0

37
0,0

00
37

0,0
00

C
Pr
ud
en
tia
l B

orr
ow

ing
92

6,5
05

3,6
00

,00
0

3,6
00

,00
0

C
GF

 C
ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e
65

7,6
00

66
8,2

58
1,0

70
,30

0
1,4

90
,80

0
3,2

63
,90

0
3,8

98
,02

3
7,6

41
,10

0
8,2

61
,60

0

Pa
ge
 4 

Page 82



AP
PE
ND

IX 
12

De
ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 (S

10
6) 
- O

utt
ur
n P

os
itio

n 3
1s
t M

arc
h 2

01
1

Ap
pli
ed
 to
 fu
nd

Re
ve
nu

e 
Us

ea
ble

Am
ou

nts
ex
pe
nd

itu
re

De
ve
lop

er
Re

ce
ipt
s/

Ap
pli
ed

fun
de
d f
ro
m

Am
ou

nts
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

Ba
lan

ce
 

Re
fun

ds
to 
fun

d
Ca

pit
al

tra
ns
fer

red
c/f
wd

@ 
1/4

/10
in 
ye
ar

fix
ed
 as

se
ts

un
de
r S

tat
ute

to 
rev

en
ue

@ 
31
/3/
11

£
£

£
£

£
£

De
ve
lop

ers
 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

C-
N7
50
34
-B
99
9

Co
urt
s-K

ing
sd
ich
-B
on
d S

um
 In
de
xe
d L

ink
ed

(19
,80

0.0
0)

(19
,80

0.0
0)

C-
N7
50
47
-B
99
9

St 
Ja
me

s S
ou
th-
Bo
nd
 Su

m 
Ind

ex
ed
 Li
nk
ed

(63
,00

0.0
0)

(63
,00

0.0
0)

(82
,80

0.0
0)

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

(82
,80

0.0
0)

C-
N7
51
30
-E
01
2

Me
rro
wd
ow
n-S

us
tai
na
ble
 Tr
an
sp
ort

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

C-
N7
59
99
-E
01
2

GC
C-
Su
sta
ina
ble
 Tr
an
sp
ort

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

C-
N7
50
38
-H
00
1

Ma
rke

t S
tre
et-
Aff
ord

ab
le 
Ho
us
ing

(29
,62

1.5
0)

12
,00

0.0
0

(17
,62

1.5
0)

(29
,62

1.5
0)

0.0
0

0.0
0

12
,00

0.0
0

0.0
0

(17
,62

1.5
0)

C-
N7
50
70
-L0

01
Du
na
lle
y S

t-P
ub
lic 
Ar
t

0.0
0

(7,
00
0.0

0)
(7,
00
0.0

0)
C-
N7
51
11
-L0

01
Ro
se
mu

llio
n-P

ub
lic 
Ar
t

(3,
50
0.0

0)
13
7.6

8
(3,
36
2.3

2)
C-
N7
51
16
-L0

01
75
-79

 R
ow
an
fie
ld 
Ro
ad
-P
ub
lic 
Ar
t

(5,
34
2.5

0)
(5,
34
2.5

0)
C-
N7
51
19
-L0

01
La
wn
sw
oo
d-P

ub
lic 
Ar
t

(39
9.8

2)
39
9.8

2
0.0

0
C-
N7
51
41
-L0

01
Ha
the

rle
y L
an
e-P

ub
lic 
Ar
t

0.0
0

(25
,00

0.0
0)

(25
,00

0.0
0)

C-
N7
51
41
-L0

01
Ha
the

rle
y L
an
e-P

ub
lic 
Ar
t

0.0
0

(25
,00

0.0
0)

(25
,00

0.0
0)

(9,
24
2.3

2)
(32

,00
0.0

0)
0.0

0
0.0

0
53
7.5

0
(40

,70
4.8

2)
C-
N1
32
81
-P
80
1

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-A

du
lt/Y

ou
th 

(34
,64

9.8
1)

(17
,29

6.5
0)

(51
,94

6.3
1)

C-
N7
50
38
-P
80
1

Ma
rke

t S
tre
et-
Ad
ult
/Yo

uth
(24

,96
8.0

0)
9,0

91
.06

(15
,87

6.9
4)

C-
N7
50
56
-P
80
1

58
-60

 St
 Pa

uls
-A
du
lt/Y

ou
th

(3,
75
6.1

3)
(3,
75
6.1

3)
C-
N7
50
70
-P
80
1

Du
na
lle
y S

tre
et-
Ad
ult
/Yo

uth
0.0

0
(2,
72
0.0

0)
(2,
72
0.0

0)
C-
N7
50
97
-P
80
1

W
elc
h R

oa
d-A

du
lt/Y

ou
th

(6,
03
5.9

4)
6,0

35
.94

0.0
0

C-
N7
51
16
-P
80
1

75
-79

 R
ow
an
fie
ld 
Ro
ad
-A
du
lt/Y

ou
th

(3,
52
9.2

6)
(3,
52
9.2

6)
C-
N7
51
30
-P
80
1

Me
rro
wd
ow
n-A

du
lt/Y

ou
th

0.0
0

(20
1.9

8)
(20

1.9
8)

C-
N7
51
40
-P
80
1

Ch
arl
ton

 La
ne
-A
du
lt/Y

ou
th

0.0
0

(1,
84
0.0

0)
(1,
84
0.0

0)
C-
N1
32
81
-P
80
2

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-A

gg
 G
ard

ne
rs

(1,
88
1.6

2)
1,0

93
.00

(78
8.6

2)
C-
N1
32
81
-P
80
4

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-B

ee
ch
es

(36
4.0

0)
(36

4.0
0)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
80
5

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-C

ae
rna

rvo
n R

oa
d

0.0
0

0.0
0

C-
N1
32
81
-P
80
8

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-N

ew
 C
he
lt w

alk
0.0

0
0.0

0
C-
N1
32
81
-P
80
9

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-C

lyd
e C

res
en
t

(2,
17
2.0

0)
50
8.0

2
(1,
66
3.9

8)

Pa
ge
 1

Page 83



AP
PE
ND

IX 
12

Re
ve
nu

e 
Us

ea
ble

Am
ou

nts
ex
pe
nd

itu
re

De
ve
lop

er
Re

ce
ipt
s/

Ap
pli
ed

fun
de
d f
ro
m

Am
ou

nts
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

Ba
lan

ce
 

Re
fun

ds
to 
fun

d
Ca

pit
al

tra
ns
fer

red
c/f
wd

@ 
1/4

/10
in 
ye
ar

fix
ed
 as

se
ts

un
de
r S

tat
ute

to 
rev

en
ue

@ 
31
/3/
11

£
£

£
£

£
£

C-
N7
50
74
-P
80
9

1 P
rio
rs 
Ro
ad
-C
lyd
e C

res
en
t

(2,
17
2.0

0)
2,1

72
.00

0.0
0

C-
N7
50
38
-P
81
1

Ma
rke

t S
tre
et-
Elm

fie
ld

(27
,80

3.0
0)

(27
,80

3.0
0)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
81
2

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-E

we
ns
 R
oa
d

(15
0.5

0)
15
0.5

0
0.0

0
C-
N1
32
81
-P
81
3

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-F

air
vie
w

(10
6.5

0)
(10

6.5
0)

C-
N7
50
57
-P
81
3

Ell
ers

lie
-Fa

irv
iew

(1,
20
1.5

4)
(1,
20
1.5

4)
C-
N7
50
51
-P
81
6

W
ard

en
 H
ill R

d-H
ath

erl
ey
 Pa

rk
(19

4.3
8)

19
4.3

8
0.0

0
C-
N1
32
81
-P
82
2

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-K

ing
 G
eo
rge

 V
(95

7.5
0)

95
7.5

0
0.0

0
C-
N1
32
81
-P
82
3

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-L

an
sd
ow
n C

res
ce
nt

0.0
0

(97
2.5

0)
(97

2.5
0)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
82
4

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-L

ec
kh
am

pto
n L

an
es

(87
5.0

0)
83
2.0

0
(43

.00
)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
82
7

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-M

on
tpe

llie
r G

ard
en
s

(15
0.5

0)
(15

0.5
0)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
83
1

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-P

ate
s A

ve
nu
e

(1,
02
8.3

4)
1,0

28
.34

0.0
0

C-
N1
32
81
-P
83
2

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-S

t P
ete

rs 
Re
cre

ati
on

0.0
0

0.0
0

C-
N1
32
81
-P
83
3

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-P

ittv
ille
 Pa

rk
0.0

0
0.0

0
C-
N1
32
81
-P
83
4

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-P

rio
rs 
Fa
rm

0.0
0

(18
2.0

0)
(18

2.0
0)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
83
5

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-Q

EII
0.0

0
0.0

0
C-
N1
32
81
-P
83
9

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-W

elc
h R

oa
d

0.0
0

0.0
0

C-
N1
32
81
-P
84
0

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-W

ha
dd
on
 R
oa
d

(28
4.5

0)
(28

4.5
0)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
84
2

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-P

res
tbu

ry
(57

7.6
7)

(57
7.6

7)
C-
N1
32
81
-P
84
3

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-B

en
ha
ll

0.0
0

(15
0.5

0)
(15

0.5
0)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
84
3

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-B

en
ha
ll

0.0
0

(15
0.5

0)
(15

0.5
0)

C-
N7
51
16
-P
84
3

75
-79

 R
ow
an
fie
ld 
Ro
ad
-B
en
ha
ll

(1,
74
2.1

9)
45
8.0

0
(1,
28
4.1

9)
C-
N1
32
81
-P
84
4

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-B

urr
ow
s 

(91
0.0

0)
91
0.0

0
0.0

0
(11

5,5
10
.38

)
(23

,36
3.4

8)
23
,43

0.7
4

0.0
0

0.0
0

(11
5,4

43
.12

)
C-
N7
51
18
-C
OM

M
Ba
rbr
idg
e N

urs
ery

-C
om

mu
nit
y F

ac
iliti
es

(42
,40

7.4
4)

9,6
60
.58

(32
,74

6.8
6)

(42
,40

7.4
4)

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

9,6
60
.58

(32
,74

6.8
6)

To
tal
 D
ev
elo

pe
rs 

co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns

(27
9,5

81
.64

)
(55

,36
3.4

8)
23
,43

0.7
4

12
,00

0.0
0

10
,19

8.0
8

(28
9,3

16
.30

)

Pa
ge
 2

Page 84



Co
un

ci
l T

ax
 a

nd
 B

us
in

es
s 

Ra
te

s
Co

lle
ct

io
n 

Ra
te

s 
20

10
 - 

20
11

AP
PE

ND
IX

 1
3

Cu
rre

nt 
Ye

ar
 C

ha
rg

es
 - 2

01
0/2

01
1

 %
 C
oll
ec
ted

20
10
/20
11
 Ta
rg
et

Re
vis
ed
 20
10
/20
11
 Ta
rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio
d

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

98
.71
%

98
.45
%

98
.60
%

Co
mp

ar
iso
n w

ith
 20
09
/20
10

As
 at
 31
.03
.10

% 
Co
lle
cte
d 3
1.0
3.1
0

To
p Q

ua
rti
le 

98
.41
%

98
.41
%

N/
A

Pr
ev

iou
s Y

ea
rs

 C
ha

rg
es

 O
uts

tan
din

g i
n C

ur
re

nt 
Ye

ar
 (2

01
0/2

01
1) 

 Pr
ev
iou

s Y
ea
r D
eb
ts 
Ou
tst
an
din

g
20
10
/20
11
 Ta
rg
et

Re
vis
ed
 20
10
/20
11
 Ta
rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio
d

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

£2
82
,55
9

£2
40
,00
0

£2
85
,00
0

Co
mp

ar
iso
n w

ith
 20
09
/20
10

As
 at
 31
.03
.10

Am
ou
nt 
o/s
 31
.03
.10

To
p Q

ua
rti
le 

£2
38
,55
8

£2
38
,55
8

N/
A

Cu
rre

nt 
Ye

ar
 C

ha
rg

es
 - 2

01
0/2

01
1

 %
 C
oll
ec
ted

20
10
/20
11
 Ta
rg
et

Re
vis
ed
 20
10
/20
11
 Ta
rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio
d

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

98
.19
%

98
.20
%

N/
A

Co
mp

ar
iso
n w

ith
 20
09
/20
10

As
 at
 31
.03
.10

% 
Co
lle
cte
d 3
1.0
3.1
0

To
p Q

ua
rti
le 

98
.18
%

98
.18
%

N/
A

Pr
ev

iou
s Y

ea
rs

 C
ha

rg
es

 O
uts

tan
din

g i
n C

ur
re

nt 
Ye

ar
 (2

01
0/2

01
1) 

 Pr
ev
iou

s Y
ea
r D
eb
ts 
Ou
tst
an
din

g
20
10
/20
11
 Ta
rg
et

Re
vis
ed
 20
10
/20
11
 Ta
rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio
d

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

£7
51
,09
9

£6
90
,00
0

£7
50
,00
0

Co
mp

ar
iso
n w

ith
 20
09
/20
10

As
 at
 31
.03
.10

Am
ou
nt 
o/s
 31
.03
.10

To
p Q

ua
rti
le 

£6
80
,49
9

£6
80
,49
9

N/
A

Bu
si

ne
ss

 R
at

es
  2

01
0/

20
11

Co
un

ci
l T

ax
  2

01
0/

20
11

Th
e a
rre
ars
 ar
e s
lig
htl
y h
igh
er 
tha
n t
he
 ta
rge
t a
nd
 hi
gh
er 
tha
n a
t th
e s
am
e t
im
e l
as
t y
ea
r. 

W
e a
re 
wo
rki
ng
 w
ith
 co
un
cil 
tax
 pa
ye
rs 
ha
vin
g d
iffic
ult
y i
n p
ay
ing
 an
d t
he
 ar
rea
rs 
are
 be
ing
 

co
lle
cte
d s
lig
hly
 sl
ow
er 
tha
n a
nti
cip
ate
d.

Th
e e
nd
 of
 ye
ar 
co
lle
cti
on
 ra
te 
is 
hig
he
r th
an
 th
e t
arg
et 
an
d h
igh
er 
tha
n a
t s
am
e t
im
e l
as
t 

ye
ar.
 

Th
e a
rre
ars
 ar
e s
lig
htl
y l
ow
er 
tha
n t
he
 re
vis
ed
 ye
are
nd
 ta
rge
t b
ut 
hig
he
r th
an
 at
 th
e s
am
e 

tim
e l
as
t y
ea
r. T
his
 is
 st
ill a
 ve
ry 
go
od
 ac
hie
ve
me
nt.
 W
e a
re 
wo
rki
ng
 w
ith
 bu
sin
es
se
s t
o 

as
ss
it t
he
m 
du
rin
g t
he
 cu
rre
nt 
ec
on
om
ic 
clim

ate
 an
d a
s a
 re
su
lt a
rre
ars
 ar
e b
ein
g c
oll
ec
ted
 

mo
re 
slo
wly
 th
an
 an
tic
pa
ted
.   

Th
e e
nd
 of
 ye
ar 
co
lle
cti
on
 ra
te 
is 
slig
htl
y l
ow
er 
tha
n t
he
 ta
rge
t b
ut 
is 
slig
htl
y h
igh
er 
tha
n t
he
 

sa
me
 tim
e l
as
t y
ea
r. T
his
 is
 a 
ve
ry 
go
od
 ac
hie
ve
me
nt 
in 
the
 cu
rre
nt 
ec
on
om
ic 
clim

ate

Page 85



Page 86
This page is intentionally left blank



 Su
nd

ry 
De

bto
r In

vo
ice

s
Ou

tst
an

din
g 2

01
0 -

 20
11

AP
PE

ND
IX 

14

% 
of

 in
vo

ice
s 

ou
tst

an
din

g m
or

e  
th

an
 on

e m
on

th
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio
d

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

Ge
ne
ral
 Fu

nd
 In
vo
ice
s

10
,00

9
£8

,44
4,4

35
65

9
£6

41
,65

3
17

7
£6

4,0
77

.00
27

%
Le

ss
 th

an
 15

%

 A 
lar

ge
 nu

mb
er 

of 
inv

oic
es

 ar
e r

ais
ed

 be
tw

ee
n 

Ja
nu

ary
 an

d M
arc

h w
hic

h h
as

 re
su

lts
 in

 
pro

po
rtio

na
tel

y m
ore

 in
vo

ice
s t

ha
n u

su
al 

be
ing

 
ou

tst
an

din
g f

or 
mo

re 
tha

n a
 m

on
th 

HR
A 
Inv

oic
es

1,6
24

£2
91

,19
3

48
6

£1
32

,64
2

37
8

£7
7,0

76
78

%
Le

ss
 th

an
 50

%

20
11
 Ta

rg
et 

20
10
/20
11
 Y
ea
ren

d 
Ta
rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio
d

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

Ge
ne
ral
 Fu

nd
 In
vo
ice
s

84
£6

9,2
08

£5
0,0

00
£5

0,0
00

Th
e v

alu
e o

f p
rev

iou
s y

ea
r in

vo
ice

s i
s h

igh
er 

tha
n 

the
 ta

rge
t b

ut 
ac
tio
n i
s b

ein
g t

ak
en
 to

 re
co
ve
r th

e 
su
ms

 du
e

HR
A 
Inv

oic
es

84
9

£2
06

,41
0

£1
40

,00
0

£1
40

,00
0

 Pr
ev
iou

s Y
ea
r In

vo
ice
s 

Ou
tst
an
din

g

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

Pr
ev

iou
s Y

ea
r In

vo
ice

s O
uts

tan
din

g i
n 2

01
0/2

01
1 

Su
nd

ry
 D

eb
t  2

01
0/2

01
1

Cu
rre

nt
 Ye

ar
 In

vo
ice

s 
Ou

tst
an

din
g 

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

Inv
oic

es
 ou

tst
an

din
g m

or
e 

th
an

 a 
mo

nt
h  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

(E
xc

 In
sta

lm
en

t In
vo

ice
s)

As
 at
 31
.03
.11

Cu
rre

nt 
Ye

ar
 In

vo
ice

s -
 20

10
/20

11
Cu
rre
nt 
Ye
ar 
Inv

oic
es
    
    
    
  

Ra
ise
d 

Page 87



Page 88
This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 15

Revised Actual
£ £

EXPENDITURE

General & Special Management 1,803,300 1,781,521
ALMO Management Fee 4,263,700 4,263,700
Rents, Rates, Taxes and Other Charges 39,500 35,664
Transfer to Housing Repairs Account 3,735,000 3,769,814
Provision for Bad Debts 200,000 139,438
Interest Payable 576,900 524,956
Depreciation of Dwellings 3,101,300 3,101,391
Depreciation of Other Assets 78,000 82,946
Debt Management Expenses 46,500 46,500
Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation 122,000 129,671
Housing Revenue Account Subsidy 3,628,400 3,633,762

TOTAL 17,594,600 17,509,363

INCOME

Dwelling Rents 15,773,000 15,823,763
Non Dwelling Rents 404,800 421,192
Charges for Services and Facilities 661,000 665,488
HRA Subsidy - ALMO Allowance 2,515,200 2,515,200
Supporting People Grant 150,000 146,809

TOTAL 19,504,000 19,572,452

NET COST OF SERVICES -1,909,400 -2,063,090

Amortised Premiums / Discounts 8,900 8,891
Interest Receivable -79,400 -88,204

NET OPERATING INCOME -1,979,900 -2,142,402

Appropriations
Revenue Contributions to Capital 649,700 132,969
Transfer from Major Repairs Reserve -78,000 -82,946

HRA SURPLUS carried to reserve 1,408,200 2,092,379

Revenue Reserve brought forward 1,580,800 1,580,800

Revenue Reserve carried forward 2,989,000 3,673,179

HRA OPERATING ACCOUNT

2010/11
Page 89



APPENDIX 16

Revised Actual
£ £

EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance :-
Reactive Repairs 2,559,000 2,640,225
Annual & Cyclical Maintenance 1,176,000 1,129,589

3,735,000 3,769,814

INCOME
Contribution from Housing Revenue Account 3,735,000 3,769,814

Surplus/Deficit for the Year 0 0

Balance brought forward 0 0
Balance carried forward 0 0

Revised Actual
£ £

Balance brought forward 0 0

Major Repairs Allowance 3,101,300 3,101,300
3,101,300 3,101,300

Utilised in Year -3,101,300 -2,797,099

Balance carried forward 0 304,201

HOUSING REPAIRS ACCOUNT 

MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE 

2010/11

2010/11

Page 90



APPENDIX 17  

Revised Actual
£'000 £'000

EXPENDITURE

Property Improvements & Major Repairs (incl fees) 3,391 2,623

Adaptations for the Disabled 350 350

Environmental Works (Tenant Selection) 60 43

Repurchase of Shared Ownership Dwellings 50 46

3,851 3,062
FINANCING

Capital Receipts 100 132
HRA Revenue Contribution 650 133
Major Repairs Reserve 3,101 2,797

3,851 3,062

HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

2010/11

Page 91



Page 92
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 18   
 

Prudential Indicators 2010/11 Outturn                                                             Page 1

The Prudential Code and Indicators – outturn 2010/11 
 
Introduction: 

The Prudential code set out a framework for self-regulation of capital spending which 
allows councils to borrow money to fund capital projects without any limit provided 
the plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.  In order to demonstrate this, the 
Code required the Council to set a minimum number of specific prudential indicators.  
These indicators must be monitored during the year and revised by the Council as 
necessary.  
 
The indicators fall into three categories, according to whether they relate to Capital 
expenditure, External debt or Treasury Management. A comparison of the outturn 
indicators with those set by the Council in February 2011, with an explanation of 
variances and subsequent revisions to the 2010/11 indicators requiring approval 
follows: 
 
 
Capital Expenditure Indicators 
 
Forecast Capital Expenditure 
 
The Code requires the Council to estimate its total capital expenditure, split between 
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and non HRA. 
 
The following table includes estimated and actual expenditure incurred in 2010/11, 
the original estimate for 2011/12 and revised estimate for 2011/12 resulting from the 
impact of the 2010/11 outturn position. The actual outturn position for 2010/11 is to 
be noted and the revised estimate for 2011/12 (marked *) to be approved by 
Members. 
 
Capital Expenditure 
 
Capital 
programme  

2010/11 
Revised 

 
£000 

2010/11 
Outturn 

 
£000 

2011/12 
Estimate  
11/02/11  
£000 

2010/11 * 
 To be Revised 

27/06/11  
£000 

General Fund 3,254 3,779 7,641 7,641 
HRA 3,851 3,062 4,828 5,602 
 
Total 

 
7,105 

 
6,841 

 
12,469 

 
13,243 

 
 
 
The main variance between 2010/11 revised and 2010/11 General Fund actual is 
due to the Capitalisation of expenditure of Recycling Vehicles, Bins and Food 
Caddies which had in previous years been funded by leasing arrangements. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



Appendix 18   
 

Prudential Indicators 2010/11 Outturn                                                             Page 2

 
Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to the net revenue stream 

  
This is an indicator of affordability.  It would not be prudent for borrowing costs to be 
a significant proportion of net revenue either now or in the future.   
 
The following table includes the actual figures for 2009/10 and estimates and the 
actual for 2010/11 of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream.  
 
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 

 
 2009/10 

Actual 
2010/11 
Revised 

2010/11 
Outturn 

Non-HRA 3.77% 2.23% 3.03% 
       HRA 3.74% 3.10% 2.55% 
 
 
 
Capital Financing Requirement 

 
The capital financing requirement measures the authority’s underlying need to 
borrow for capital purposes. In accordance with best professional practice, 
Cheltenham Borough Council does not associate borrowing with particular items or 
types of expenditure. The authority has an integrated treasury management strategy 
and has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public 
Services. Cheltenham Borough Council has, at any point in time, a number of 
cashflow scenarios both positive and negative, and manages its treasury position in 
terms of its borrowings and investments in accordance with its approved treasury 
management strategy and practices. In day to day cash management, no distinction 
is made between revenue cash and capital cash. External borrowing arises as a 
consequence of all the financial transactions of the authority and not simply those 
arising from capital spending. 
 
The Council can borrow without limit, provided it ensures such borrowing is 
affordable, prudent and sustainable. 
 
The following table includes the estimated and actual capital financing requirement at 
31/3/11, the original estimate for 31/3/12 and revised estimate for 31/3/12 (marked *) 
resulting from the impact of the 2010/11 outturn position. The actual outturn position 
at 31/3/11 is to be noted and revised estimate for 31/3/12 is to be approved by 
Members. 
 
 
 
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 
 31/03/11 

Estimate 
 

£000 

31/03/11 
Actual 

 
£000 

31/03/12  
Estimate 
11/02/2011 
£000 

31/03/12 * 
Estimate 

 
£000 

Non-HRA 25,834 26,760 28,818 29,309 
HRA 18,728 18,728 18,728 18,728 
Total CFR 44,562 45,488 47,546 48,037 

Page 94



Appendix 18   
 

Prudential Indicators 2010/11 Outturn                                                             Page 3

 
Through Prudential borrowing in 2010/11 the Council funded the capital expenditure 
for Recycling Vehicles, Food Caddies and Bins, which in past had been leased. The 
forecast for 31st March 2012 does not take account of a possible reduction in the 
CFR of an estimated £2.5m in 2011/12, should the appeal to the Icelandic Supreme 
Court confirm that local authority deposits in the collapsed Icelandic banks have 
priority status (see paragraph 4.15 of the Outturn report). This would reduce the Non-
HRA CFR to £26.8m and the overall CFR to £45.5m. 
 
Net borrowing and the Capital Financing Requirement 

 
CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities includes the 
following as a key indicator of prudence: 
 
“In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a capital 
purpose, the local authority should ensure that the net external borrowing does not, 
except in the short term, exceed the total of  the capital financing requirement in the 
preceding year plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for 
the current and next two financial years.” 
 
Local authorities may borrow temporarily to cover cash flow shortages but over the 
medium term should only borrow to finance capital expenditure. 
 
In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for capital 
purposes, the Council needs to ensure that its net external borrowing does not 
exceed its Capital Financing Requirement over the current and next three years. The 
table below demonstrates that the estimated and actual level of net investments 
remains lower than the capital financing requirement in each year, and therefore 
meets this requirement. 
 
The actual outturn position for 2010/11 is to be noted and the revised estimate for 
2011/12 (marked *) to be approved by Members. 
 
Estimated net borrowing and capital financing requirement at year end 
 

 2010/11 
£’000 

Estimate 
2010/11 
£’000 
Outturn 

2011/12 
£’000 

Estimate 
11/02/2011 

2011/12 
£’000 

Estimate 
27/6/11 * 

Gross borrowing 57,013 50,133 60,612 59,500 
Investments 15,535 15,759 15,535 14,950 
Net (Investment)/ 
borrowing 

41,478 34,374 45,077 44,550 
  
Capital financing 
requirement 

 
44,562 

 
45,489 

 
47,546 

 
48,037 

 
As can be seen from the table, the net borrowing for the council did not breach the 
capital financing requirement for 2010/11. 
 
 
 
 

Page 95



Appendix 18   
 

Prudential Indicators 2010/11 Outturn                                                             Page 4

Incremental impact of capital expenditure on the council tax and housing rents 
 
A fundamental indicator of the affordability of capital expenditure plans is its impact 
on the council tax and housing rents.  Any borrowing for capital purposes has an 
impact on the revenue account and, to the extent it is not supported by government 
or other contributions, on council tax and/or housing rents.  Using capital receipts to 
fund capital expenditure also has an impact because the assets sold would no longer 
generate rental income or investment income.  The use of revenue funding to fund 
capital clearly has a direct impact on the revenue account and council taxes/rents.  
The completed capital schemes will also have an impact in terms of running costs 
and income generated. 
 
The Council must estimate the incremental impact of its capital expenditure plans on 
the council tax and housing rents.  
 
The estimate of the incremental impact of capital investment decisions, over and 
above capital investment decisions that have previously been taken by the Council 
for 2010/11 and for average weekly rents were: 
 
For the Band D Council Tax 
 

2010/11 
Estimate 

£ 
2010/11 
Outturn 

£ 
nil nil 

 
 
 
 
For average weekly housing rents 
 

2010/11 
Estimate 

£ 
2010/11 
Outturn 

£ 
*nil *nil 

 
 
* The Council is reducing housing rents over this period in line with the rent 
restructuring plan, hence capital investment decisions do not impact on the level of 
council house rent, but impact on the level of funds available to fund repairs. 
 
The outturn position is the same as estimated since the council tax and housing rents 
were set, in February 2010, at levels to fund the capital programmes approved by 
Members. 
 
External Debt Indicators 

 
Two limits were set and monitored to ensure borrowing is prudent, affordable and 
sustainable.  These limits, together with the Treasury Management limits discussed 
below, replaced the section 45 limits imposed by the Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989, which the Council previously approved in February/March each year. 
 
Authorised Limit 
 

Page 96



Appendix 18   
 

Prudential Indicators 2010/11 Outturn                                                             Page 5

The Council set an authorised limit for its external debt which took account of the 
following:  
 
• the possible maximum level of borrowing that may need to be incurred and 

the limit beyond which borrowing will be prohibited 
 

• the statutory limit specified in section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2003 
 
• reflects a level of borrowing which, although affordable in the short term may 

not be sustainable 
 
• The ‘outer boundary’ of the Council’s possible need to borrow. 
 
In respect of its external debt, the Council approved the following authorised limits for 
its total external debt gross of investments. The Council delegated authority to the 
Section 151 Officer, within the total limit for any individual year, to effect movement 
between the separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long term liabilities, in 
accordance with option appraisal and best value for money for the authority.  
 
Authorised Limit for External Debt 
 
 2010/11 

 
£000 

2011/12 
Original 

 
£000 

2011/12 
Revised 

 
£000 

Borrowing 83,000 81,000 81,000 
Other long term liabilities - - - 
Total 83,000 81,000 81,000 
 
In setting the limit, account must be taken of the authority’s current commitments, 
existing plans and the proposals for capital expenditure and financing, and with its 
approved treasury management policy statement and practices.  
 
This limit represents the worst case scenario, i.e. the effect on the cash flow of 
receiving no council tax income and borrowing to the maximum of the capital 
financing requirement, in addition to investments held. The calculation follows a 
prescribed formula and is in excess of the expected levels of borrowing in 
accordance with Treasury. 
 
The Council did not breach this boundary during 2010/11. 
 
 
Operational Boundary 
  
 
The Council approved the following operational boundary for external debt for the 
same time period. The operational boundary for external debt is based on the same 
estimates as the authorised limit but reflects directly the estimate of the most likely, 
prudent but not worst case scenario, without the additional headroom included within 
the authorised limit to allow for example for unusual cash movements. The 
operational boundary represents a key management tool for in year monitoring. 
Within the operational boundary, figures for borrowing and other long term liabilities 
are separately identified. The Council delegated authority to the Section 151 Officer, 
to effect movement between separately agreed figures for borrowing and other long 

Page 97



Appendix 18   
 

Prudential Indicators 2010/11 Outturn                                                             Page 6

term liabilities, in a similar fashion to the authorised limit.  
 
The boundary may be breached occasionally due to unexpected cash flow shortages 
but a sustained breach would indicate the Council may be in danger of breaching the 
Authorised Limit.  
 
Operational Boundary for External Debt 
 
 2010/11 

 
£000 

2011/12 
Original 

 
£000 

2011/12 
Revised 

 
£000 

Borrowing 67,000 71,000 71,000 
Other long term liabilities 0 0 0 

Total 67,000 71,000 71,000 
 
The operational boundary represents the maximum expected operational borrowing 
at a given time, which is significantly lower than the prescribed authorised limit. This 
measure reflects a more realistic view of likely cash flow scenarios, and should not 
be exceeded. 
 
The Council did not breach this boundary during 2010/11. 

 
The Council’s actual external debt at 31st March 2011 was £50.133 million. It should 
be noted that actual external debt is not directly comparable to the authorised limit 
and operational boundary, since the actual external debt reflects the position at a 
single point in time. 

 
 
 
Treasury Management Indicators 
 
Adoption of the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management in the Public Services. This includes the delegation of the day to day 
Treasury Management Function to the section 151 Officer. 

 
 
Upper limits on interest rate exposure 

 
The Council must set upper limits on its exposure to changes in interest rates for at 
least the next three years.  An upper limit must be set for both fixed and variable 
rates covering both borrowing and investments. Investments are all classed as 
variable rate exposure as they are all repayable within 365 days. 
 
The purpose of these indicators is to reduce the likelihood of an adverse movement 
in interest rates or borrowing / investment decisions impacting negatively on the 
Council’s overall financial position. 
  
The Council set an upper limit on its fixed interest rate exposures of its gross 
outstanding borrowing and an upper limit on its variable interest rate exposures of its 
gross outstanding borrowing.  
 

Page 98



Appendix 18   
 

Prudential Indicators 2010/11 Outturn                                                             Page 7

This means the Section 151 Officer manages fixed interest rate exposures within the 
range 50% to 100% and variable interest rate exposures within the range 0% to 50%. 
 
This has not been breached during 2010/11. 

 
Maturity structure of borrowing 
 
The Council set both upper and lower limits with respect to the maturity structure of 
borrowing.  This indicator is designed to be a control over an authority having large 
concentrations of fixed rate debt needing to be replaced at times of uncertainty over 
interest rates.  Therefore the aim should be a relatively even spread of debt 
repayment dates. 

 
The Council sets upper and lower limits for the maturity structure of its borrowings as 
follows: 
 
Amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each period is: 
 
 Upper Limit Lower Limit 
Under 12 months 50% 0 
12 months and within 24 months 50% 0 
24 months and within 5 years 100% 0 
5 years and within 10 years 100% 0 
10 years and above 100% 0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Conclusions: 
No breaches of the prudential code or indicators took place during 2010/11. 
 
Members are asked to note the outturn for 2010/11 and approve the revisions to the 
2011/12 estimates (marked with *). 
 
 

Page 99



Page 100
This page is intentionally left blank



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
19

Ev
ery

ma
n t
he
atr

e f
ina

nc
ial
 su

pp
or
t 2
01
1/1

2 t
o 2

01
6/1

7

Pr
op
os
al 
ag
ree

d b
y c

ou
nc
il (
Fe

bru
ary

 20
10
) - 

£1
m 
loa

n w
ith
 in
ter

es
t, £

25
0k
 gr

an
t, a

dd
'n 
pro

pe
rty
 gr

an
t in

 m
ov
e t
o f
ull
 re

pa
rin

g l
ea
se
 an

d m
ark

et 
ren

t a
nd
 re

du
cti
on
 in
 gr

an
t o
f £
30
k o

ve
r 6

 yr
s

EV
ER

YM
AN

 TH
EA

TR
E

20
10
/11

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

20
15
/16

20
16
/17

20
17
/18

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
CI
G 
Re

vie
w

CI
G 
Re

vie
w

CI
G 
Re

vie
w

Na
tur

e o
f s
up
po
rt

Co
mm

un
ity
 In
ter

es
t G

ran
t (C

IG
)

14
8,8

00
 

14
8,8

00
    
    

14
8,8

00
   

14
8,8

00
   

14
8,8

00
    
    

14
8,8

00
 

14
8,8

00
 

Ad
dit
ion

al 
gra

nt 
to 
co
ve
r m

ov
e t
o f
ull
 re

pa
irin

g l
ea
se
 

(re
ph
as
ed
 pe

r re
qu
es
t)

60
,00

0
    
    
  

15
,00

0
   

15
,00

0
   

To
 be

 re
vie

we
d

Ad
dit
ion

al 
gra

nt 
to 
co
ve
r in

su
ran

ce
 lia

bil
itie

s t
ak
en
 on

 by
 

the
atr

e f
rom

 th
e c

ou
nc
il

3,0
00

    
    
    

3,0
00

    
   

3,0
00

    
   

3,0
00

    
    
    

3,0
00

    
 

3,0
00

    
 

To
 be

 re
vie

we
d

Ad
dit
ion

al 
gra

nt 
to 
co
ve
r m

ov
e t
o m

ark
et 
ren

t
53
,25

0
    
    
  

48
,25

0
    
 

43
,25

0
    
 

38
,25

0
    
    
  

33
,25

0
   

28
,25

0
   

To
 be

 re
vie

we
d

Cu
rre

nt 
ad
dit
ion

al 
su
bs
idy

 pa
id 
by
 C
BC

Ma
int
en
an
ce
 lia

bil
ity
 

15
,00

0
   

En
gin

ee
rin

g i
ns
ura

nc
e 

3,0
00

    
 

To
tal
 an

nu
al 
su
pp
ort

16
6,8

00
 

26
5,0

50
    
    

20
0,0

50
   

19
5,0

50
   

19
0,0

50
    
    

20
0,0

50
 

19
5,0

50
 

Ac
tua

l re
nt 
pa
ya
ble

(14
,10

0)
(72

,75
0)

(72
,75

0)
(72

,75
0)

(72
,75

0)
(72

,75
0)

(72
,75

0)
Ne

t a
nn
ua
l s
up
po
rt (

co
st 
to 
CB

C)
15
2,7

00
 

19
2,3

00
    
    

12
7,3

00
   

12
2,3

00
   

11
7,3

00
    
    

12
7,3

00
 

12
2,3

00
 

Ne
t im

pa
ct 
on
 le
ve
l o
f s
up
po
rt o

n M
TF

S -
 re

du
cti
on
 in
 pr

op
ert

y g
ran

t
(5,

40
0)

(5,
00
0)

(5,
00
0)

(5,
00
0)

(5,
00
0)

(5,
00
0)

No
tes

 (i)
 Ba

se
lio
ne
 re

bt 
su
bs
idy

 £5
8,6

50
 (7

2,7
50
 - 1

4,1
00
)

    
    
  (i
i) R

en
t re

vie
w 
aft
er 

6 y
rs 
the

n e
ve
ry 
5 y

rs 
to 
co
inc

ide
 w
ith
 ne

w 
rat

ea
ble

 va
lue

, re
nt 
rev

iew
 fo
r fi

rst
 6 
yrs

 of
fse

t b
y a

dd
'n 
gra

nt,
 af
ter

 w
hic

h o
ffs
ett
ing

 gr
an
t w

ill b
e r

ev
iew

ed
.

    
    
 (ii
i) C

om
mu

nit
y I
nte

res
t g
ran

t (C
IG
) re

vie
w 
ev
ery

 3 
yrs

 - a
ss
es
se
d a

ga
ins

t c
rite

ria
 fo
r d

eli
ve
ry 
of 
CB

C 
ou
tco

me
s, 
ne
xt 
rev

iew
 20

14
/15

.

Page 101



Page 102
This page is intentionally left blank



   
$phtwln3p.doc Page 1 of 4 Last updated 15 June 2011 
 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Council – 27th June 2011 

Constitution Working Group update on the Review of the 
Constitution 

 
Accountable member Corporate Services – Colin Hay 
Accountable officer Borough Solicitor 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

E.B. & I 

Ward(s) affected None specifically 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary This report advises members on the proposed timescale for the review of 

the Constitution.  The review was commenced last year but was deferred 
pending the outcome of various matters which will have an impact upon 
the drafting of the Constitution, including the Council’s decision in 
December 2010 on strategic commissioning and the approval of a new 
management structure.  At that meeting the Council also approved 
amendments to the Constitution to address actions identified by the 
Council to respond to recommendations in the Public Interest Report.  
Amendments to the Officer Delegation Scheme in Part 3H of the 
Constitution have also been made under authority delegated to the 
Borough Solicitor to ensure that the Scheme is consistent with the new 
management structure which was implemented in April 2011.   
The Constitution Working Group has now resumed its work and intends to 
complete the review by October 2011.  This timescale reflects the need for 
the Financial Rules to be amended in collaboration with the Council’s 
partner authorities in the GO project. 

Recommendations The Council is asked to note that amendments have been made to 
the Officer Scheme of Delegation and to approve the timescale for 
the comprehensive review of the Constitution. 

Financial implications None directly arising from this report. 
The creation of a standardised set of financial rules (with any local 
variations as appropriate) across the participating authorities in the GO 
project will support cross working across authorities, assist in the 
standardisation of the ERP system build and process redesign which will 
ultimately help to drive out the savings estimated in the business plan. 
Contact officer: Mark Sheldon, mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 264123 

Agenda Item 11
Page 103



   
$phtwln3p.doc Page 2 of 4 Last updated 15 June 2011 
 

Legal implications Contained in the report. 
Contact officer:  Sara Freckleton , 
sara.freckleton@tewkesbury.gov.uk.  01684 272011 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None directly arising from this report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 264355 

Key risks See attached risk assessment. 
1. Background  
1.1 A comprehensive review of the Council’s Constitution was commenced last year BOTH to 

address the Council’s Action Plan approved in March 2010 and also to recognise the fact that the 
last full review of the Constitution was in 2005. 

1.2 In December 2010, the Council approved a number of amendments to the Constitution which 
were deemed to be necessary to satisfy the Council’s Action Plan.  However, the Council had 
resolved in October that the comprehensive review would be deferred pending resolution of 
matters which would have a bearing on the drafting of the Constitution, including the decision on 
the strategic commissioning proposals and the consequential management restructure. 

1.3 Part 3 of the Constitution sets out the Responsibility for Functions (Scheme of Delegation to 
Cabinet, Committees and Officers).  The Officer delegation (Part 3H) has recently been amended 
by the Borough Solicitor (April 2011) as required by the Constitution, in order to give effect to be 
implemented in April  2011 of the revised Management Structure as approved by the Council 
(December 2010).  

1.4 The Constitution which is available on the Council’s website includes the amendments which 
were approved by the Council in December and also those referred to in paragraph 1.4 above.  

1.5 The Constitution Working Group has now recommenced work on the review.  The areas being 
considered include 

• The Responsibility for Functions.  Part 3 is being comprehensively reviewed including the 
Officer Delegation Scheme. 

• The Council Committee and Cabinet Procedure Rules.  Part 4 is being reviewed including 
the Financial and Contract Procedure Rules. 

As Members are aware, the GO project involving the Council and its other partners (Cotswold, 
West Oxford and Forest of Dean) is nearing first stage implementation and it is intended that, as 
far as is possible, the Financial Rules to which the participating authorities work are consistent 
(with any local variations as appropriate).  It is considered that the update will be completed in 
time for approval by the partner Councils in September/October 2011.   

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 To advise members on the changes which have taken place to the Constitution and on the 

proposed timescale for completion of the comprehensive review. 
3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 The Working Group considered whether it should proceed with the review ahead of the proposed 

Page 104



   
$phtwln3p.doc Page 3 of 4 Last updated 15 June 2011 
 

revision of the Financial Rules but concluded that this would be a “piecemeal” rather than 
comprehensive review which would not make best use of the available resources. 

4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 Council may recall that consultation took place with all Members and with the Senior Leadership 

Team last year and the responses will be taken into account within the review.  If Members wish 
to make any further observations or comments on the Constitution, particularly any suggestions 
for amendment, then these can be made to any member of the Constitution Working Group 
(Councillors Les Godwin, Colin Hay and Duncan Smith) or to the Borough Solicitor/ Monitoring 
Officer.  The Working Group will be meeting on a number of occasions between now and the 
beginning of October and would welcome any input from Members to inform the review. 

Report author Contact officer: Sara Freckleton, sara.freckleton@tewkesbury.gov.uk,  
01684 272011 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
Background information 1. Report and Minutes of Council dated 22nd March 2010 

2. Report and Minutes of Staff & Support Services Committee dated 
29th July 2010 

3. Report and Minutes of Standards Committee dated 9th July 2010 
and 17th September 2010 

4. Report and Minutes of the Council of 11th October 2010 
5. Report and Minutes of the Staff & Support Services Committee of 

the 28th October 2010 
6. Report and Minutes of the Council of 13th December 2010 

 

 

Page 105



   
$phtwln3p.doc Page 4 of 4 Last updated 15 June 2011 
 

 
Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1 
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 Legal risks of challenge to 
decisions and processes 
arising through occasional 
but not comprehensive 
review 
 

Borough 
Solicitor 

6/6/11 3 1 3 Reduce Comprehensive review of 
constitution is being 
undertaken 

12/10/11 Borough 
Solicitor 

 

 

P
age 106


	Agenda
	4 To approve and confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 16 May 2011
	9 Imperial Gardens outline design and consultation
	2011_06_27_COU_9_Appendix_1_Comment_Card_Summary
	2011_06_27_COU_9_Appendix_2_General_Comments
	2011_06_27_COU_9_Appendix_3_CiB_Comments

	10 Financial Outturn 2010/11 and Quarterly Budget Monitoring to May 2011
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_2_Summary_outturn_performance_position_GF
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_3_pages_ 1-7_Service_Level_Outturn_2010-11
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_3_pages_8-9_Programmed_Maintenance_2010-11
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_4_Capital_charges
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_5_Interest_and_investment_income
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_6_Significant_variances_10-11
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_7_Carry_forward_requests_2010-11
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_8_use_of_balances_and_reserves
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_9_2010-11_Treasury_outturn
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_9a_Credit_Risk_Score
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_10_Movement_on_earmarked_reserves_and_general_balances
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_11_GF_Capital_Programme
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_12_Section_106_receipts
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_13_CTAX_ NNDR_Collection
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_14_Sundry_Debt_Collection
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendices_15-17_HRA
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_18_Prudential_Indicators_10-11
	2011_06_27_COU_10_Appendix_19_Everyman_Theatre_support

	11 Constitution Review working group - update on the review of the constitution

